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18. Mary Almira® Alexander®®. Born, 26 Jan 1806, in York Co., SC. Died, 15
May 1836, in York Co., SC. Burial in Bullock Creek, Presbyterian, Cemetary.

Her marker reads Mary A. Alexander, wife of James McCluney Jan. 26, 1806,
May 13 1836. Her son William born Dec. 6, 1828, died Jan 7, 1829 and her
husband James McCluney who died June 5, 1853, age 70, lie beside her in the
Rev. Joseph Alexander’s plot.

She married James McCluney in York Co., SC. Born, circa 1804. Died, 5 Jun
1853, in York Co., SC. Burial in Bullock Creek, Presbyterian, Cemetary. In 1849
James McCluney bought 5 ac. on the Broad River from J. W. Thompson (York Co. SC
DB 0 p. 442). In 1848 he bought 183 Ac. on the Broad River from J. W. Thompson
(Ibid., p. 443). Children:

i. Willian® McCluney. Born, 6 Dec 1828, in York Co., SC. Died, 7
Jan 1829, in York Co., SC. Burial in Bullocks Creek,
Presbyterian, Cemetary.

19.  John Madison® Alexander®. Born, 15 Dec 1813, in Bullock’s Creek, York
Co., SC. Died, 11 Jun 1855, in Pickens Co., AL. Burial in Carrollton, Pickens
Co., AL. Census: 1840, in Pickens Co., AL. Census: 1850, in Pickens Co., AL.
Occupation: Merch./0fficial.

He served as Postmaster, Clerk of Court, Coroner, and Justice of the
Peace in Pickens County, Al. He was also a merchant and part owner of the firm
Alexander and Kennedy located at Carrollton. He died from Asthma. Member of the
T00F .

In the 1840 census of Pickens Co., Al p. 352, he and wife are age 30-40,
and have one slave. There are no children.

28 Oct. 1847 John Alexander patented 40 ac. under U. S. Grant # 24687 for
SW 1/4 SE 1/4 Sec. 4 TI7S RIS (Pickens Co. U. S. Grants, Pickens Co., AL).

The 1850 census of Pickens Co, AL p. 96 family 1787, J. M. Alexander,
merchant, age 37, Land value $400, born in SC, wife Dorinda A., age 32, born in
SC, William H. H., age 10, Mary M. C. age 8, Minerva S. T., age 3, and Sarah C.
C. age 5/12, a1l children born in AL.

The 1850 Slave Census for Pickens County, AL., Vol. 7 p. 569 Lists J. M.
Alexander as owner of six slaves, including 3 males ages 30, 3 and 1, and 3
females age 20, 4 and 9.

The following obituary was probably written by his father: " Died at his
residence near this place on Monday the 11th of June 1855 of an asthmatic
affection of a protracted character, John M. Alexander, Esq., age 41 years, 5
months and 26 days. The deceased was born December 15, 1813 in York District,
South Carolina. He removed with his family in 1826 and settled at Yorkville,
this county. He early engaged in mercantile pursuits, did business at Columbus,
Miss. and Pickensville, and removed to Carrollton in 1849 to reengage in that
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bought 640 acres of Tand from James Martin of York Co. 26 Jan. 1797 for L.100
stg., land granted to Joseph Hall on 26 mile Creek 16 Jul. 1784. Wit. John
Smith, Daniel Smith, John Atkin. DB C/D. "Pendleton Deeds".

The 1800 census of Pendleton District, SC shows Jonathan Smith with 1
male 0-10, 21 males 10-15, 1 male 26-49 , 3 female 0-10, 1 Female 16-25 (his
new wife?).

His pension application states "that he volunteered as a Whig in the time
of the Revolutionary War at fifteen years of age under Captain Jacob Barnett of
Col. Moffits regnt. which was about three days before the Battles at Cowpens,
and from that time continued to serve under General Sumter and others until the
end of the war, in the whig service, which time he was in several skirmishes
but was in no major engagement.

"Your petitioner conducted General Sumter after he was wounded in the
Battle of Black Stocks, to his fathers house, where he remained several days
until he became able to travel, during which time he continued to wait upon
him. Your petitioner was a poor boy at the time of the war, all the property he
owned consisted of three horses, and the Tories took them all from him which Y
Toss he never got over.” He appiied for a pension 17 Nov¢ 1728, 3tating he was /52
66 years of age. The pension was approved by the Senate on Dec. 8, 1828 and by
the’S. C. House of Representatives Dec. 17, 1828. Affidavits by William
Willson, a Revolutionary War soldier who had fought with his brother Daniel
Smith in the Battle of Stono where he received his mortal wounds, remembered
that Jonathan’s father’s house was considered a haven for distressed whigs.

According to his pension application, and that of Elizabeth, his wife,
one of their children was deformed. Who and how is not mentioned. Both he and
his wife pleaded extreme poverty in their applications.

His Revolutionary War records may be found in "Audited Account of
Jonathan Smith, SC Archives, Columbia, SC, AA7138A, Ro11 136 Frames 632-665.

Of his nine children by his second marriage, 5 settled in Tuscaloosa
County, AT, and 2 to Autauga County, with 2 remaining in SC.

Will'of Jonathan Smith, Anderson District. ...Hy sons Whitaker Smith,
Aron Smith, and Gideon Smith, and my daughters Hannah Lewis, Mary Duckworth,
Catherine Harden, Amy McCulley, and Lettice Dickson shall have one shilling
apiece...Son Daniel Smith §25.00...wife Elizabeth Smith to live where I now
reside posessing the balance of the estate for the purpose of raising the
younger children...to give part to them as they become of age or marry, at her
discretion. At her death or remarriage estate to be sold and divided anong the
children to wit: David Smith, Jesse B. Smith, William Smith, Jonathan N. Smith,
Artimissa Smith. My son William Smith to have $50. more than the other
children...Whitaker Smith and Aaron Smith and my beloved wife Elizabeth Smith
Exrs. 12 Sept 1829. Jonathan Smith. Wit: Alex. Moorhead, John Kay, Nancy Kay.
Proved Sept. 20, 1829. Bond by Whitaker Smith and Elizabeth Smith 29 Sept.
1829. Appraisers Lewis Sherril Sr., Nimrod Smith Sr., Aaron Smith Sr., John
Kay. 5 Nov. 1829. Whitaker and Elizabeth petitioned for sale 29 Sept. 1829.
Sale held 6 Oct. 1829. Appraised value 5 Nov. 1829 $439. Sale Bill 5 Nov. 1829
$261.34 3/4. Sale goods were mostly livestock and farm products and some
implements. His debts were Tisted at $257.07 3/4 and there were receivables of
$224.18. On 22 Mar. 1832, Whitaker Smith, Acting Admin. with Will Annexed
petitioned for the sale of land on SE side of Town Creek supposed to contain 25
or 30 acres.

He married, first, Margaret <Katherine?> Guyton®”, daughter of Joseph
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Guyton <Giton, Gyton, Gaiton> and Hannah Whitaker, circa 1786 (2), in York or
Spderson. Co.. SC. Born, circa 1776 (7), in Union' (Cherakes). () at. Died, 28
Sep 1796, in Union (Cherokee), Co., SC. LDS indicates that she was called
Molly. Children:

16 i. Whitaker* saith.
17 i. Capt. Aaron Smith.
Hannah Smith®®. Born, 2 Jan 1791 (2), in York Co., SC. She
married Jesse Lewis.
Called Hannah Lewis in her father’s will of 1829, she
received one_shilling.
iv. Gideon Saith”. Born, 1793 (2), in York Co., SC. Died, 2 Jan
1839, in Anderson Co., SC.

In 1787 Gideon bought a tract of Tand in Union Co., s
from John Steen (DB B/22). In 1800 he bought Tand from James
Hoorehead in Union Co. (Union Co., SC DB G-308). His crudely
garved headstone Ties in an unused cemetary now on the Clenson
University AG School campus.

V- Mary Swith. Born, 9 Feb 1794 (2), in York Co., SC. She married
Pulaski Count Duckworth.

Named Mary Duckworth in her father’s will of 1829, she

received 1 shilling.

He married, second, Ann Elizabeth Smith <or Dunn?2>°°, after 1799 (22) in
York Co., SC. Born, circa 1780 (7), in York Co., SC. Died, 15 Ney 1862, in
Anderson Co., SC.

Following the death of her husband, who had been granted a pension for
Service in the Revolutionary War, she petitioned the state to contime the
pension, and 2 pension of $30.00 per year was granted based un por. - extrene
affliction with a Targe family of children, one of Which oo deformed, destitute
of the necessary conforts of life..." (See Rov. War ponsion application of
Jonathan Guyton). She was probably buried in the 01d Lobanm Baptist Church
Cemetary, now on the Clemson University Campus. Children:

vi. Catherine Smith®®. Born, circa 1800 (2), in York Co., SC. She
married Unknown Hardon.
Harden in her fathers will of 1829, she

vii. i - Born in Anderson Co., SC. She married Unknown

Named Any McCulley in her father’s will of 1829, she
received 1 shilling.
Viti. Lititia clettice> Smith®. She married®* John Dickson Jr.=2,
Jan 1825 (2), in Anderson Co., SC.
Named Lettice Dickson in her father’s will of 1829, she
received one_shilling.
ix. Daniel Smith"". Born, before 1808 (2), in Anderson Co., SC.
¥hile his older brothers and sisters only received one
shilling in_his father’s will of 1829 Daniel Received $25 0g.
X. David Smith®". Born in Anderson Co., SC.
Named as a younger child in his father’s will of 1829, he
received a share of the remainder.
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xi. Jesse Rhodes Smith®*.

He was named as a younger child in his fathers will of

1829, and was entitled to a share of the remainder.
xii. William Smith®>. Born in Anderson Co., SC.

Named as a younger child in his father’s will of 1829 he
was awarded a share of $50.00 more than his other younger
brothers and sisters in the remainder of the estate.

xiii. Johnathan N. Smith®®.

Named as a younger child in his father’s will of 1829, he
received a_share of the remainder,

xiv. Artimissa Smith®>. Born, after 1808 (?), in Anderson Co., SC.
She married Unknown Abernathy.

Named as a younger child in her fathers will probated

1829, she received a share of the remainder of the estate.

12.  David® Smith (Henry Sr., 4)°°. Born, circa 1766 (2), in Augusta Co., VA.
Died, Feb 1806, in Union Co., SC. Occupation: Farmer.

On 3 April 1787 a plat was filed for David Smith 620 acres 96 Dist., and
on 2 June 1788 for 640 ac. 96 Dist. (SC State Plats 1784-1810 v. 11 p. 243 and
V. 24 p. 94, SC Archives).

The 1790 census of Camden District, York County, SC shows David Smith 1
male over 16 and 1 female.

In 1791 David Smith bought a tract of land from Josiah Docket (DB C/412

~ Union Co., SC.).

In 1792 he received his father’s plantation in his will in fee talc.,
which would be sold after his death, if he had no heirs, and divided among a1l
of brothers and sisters, with his mother to have use of the estate during her
Tife or widowhood.

2 Sept 1793. David Smith appointeed Executor estate of John Herrington
decd. (ibid, p. 366). John Harrington is probably David’s father-inlaw. Abraham
and Joseph Guyton were witnesses. (Union Co., SC Wills 1787-1849 p. 28).

27 Oct. 1795 David Smith sold a gray horse and mare and cattle to Mary
Smith for L.50 (DB D/272 Union Co., SC)

In 1797 David bought tracts of land from State of South Carolina, John
Price and John Lee (DB E p. 120, 147, 150 Union Co., SC)

5 Jan. 1798 David Smith vs Landon Waters. Attach. Dismissed at Plantiffs
cost. ("Union Court Minutes” p. 487).

In 1800 David Smith bought a tract of land from John Davis (DB G p.92
Union Co., SC).

; In 1802 David Smith bought a tract of land from Nicholas Corry (DB H p.
81

In 1803 he bought land from Thomas Lusk (DB H/231).

Will of David Smith. Landed property in hands of my beloved wife Baesheba
for Tife or widowhood, she to be Exec. with Young J. Harrington (Probably her
brother). If she remarries, she to have the use of one-third of my land and
moveable property together with the use of negro wench Sue with her
issue...children to be raised and reasonably schooled out of her third with the
use of Negro Sam. Other two thirds of land equally divided between my two sons
James and Henry Smith when Henry is of age, also to my well beloved daughters

= Fanny and Delilah the other two thirds of my moveable property to be divided
among them as they come of age. 1 Feb. 1806. David Smith (X) his mark. Wit: Wm.

-




image98.jpeg
DESCENDANTS OF COL. JOHN SMITH OF VIRGINIA 31 JuL 1995 63

THIRD GENERATION

Cotter, Joseph Moorhead, Thos. Lusk. Proved by Wm. Cotter 25 Feb. 1806. (Union
Co., SC Will Book A, p. 90-92).

Thomas Luck and Bersheba Luck, she being the widow of David Smith who
dec’d in 1806, conveyed her 1/3 interest in the lands of the estate of David
Smith to James and Henry Smith, heirs of David Smith for $100. 27 Jan 1817. (DB
N/314 Union County, SC.).

A David Smith bought land in 1811 from John Prenell and L. and Thomas
Heaton. This is another David Smith who also s01d land to John Smith Jr. in
1831. (DB L/229 and 231 and V/306 Union Co., SC).

He married Beersheba Harrington, daughter of John Harrington and Unknown
Woman in Union Co., SC. Died in Union Co., SC.

Her father is said to be John Harrington, for whom her husband David
Smith was named Executor, but only Drury is shown in the 1790 Census in Union
Co., p. 93. Her co-executor for the will of her husband in 1806 was Young J.
Harrington, probably her brother. In that will she received the use of all of
his estate for her lifetime, or one third, plus the use of slaves Sue and Sam,
if she remarried (Union Co., SC., Will Book A, p. 90-92). 27 Jan. 1817 Bersheba
Lusk, the widow and relict of David Smith, having intermarried with Thomas
Luck, she and Luck convey her 1/3 interest in the landed estate of David Smith
to his heirs James and Henry Smith for $100. (DB N/314, Union Co., SC).
Children:

James® Smith. Born, before 1785 (?), in York Co., SC.

Henry Smith. Born, circa 1788 (2), in York/Union Co., SC.
Fanny Smith. Born, circa 1790 (2), in York/Union Co., SC.
Delilah Saith. Born, circa 1790 (?), in York/Union Co, SC.





image99.jpeg
64 31 JuL 1995 DESCENDANTS OF COL. JOHN SMITH OF VIRGINIA

FEOQURTH GENERATION

13.  Hannah® Smith (Capt. Abraham Esq., 7)°. Born, 22 Aug 1775, in York Co.
SC. Died, Sep 1849, in Carrollton, Pickens Co., AL. Burial: 1849°(2), in
Carrollton, Pickens Co., AL.

Inherited Negro wench Winnie in her father’s will of 1806. Before 1827
she sold her 1/8 interest in her father’s home place to Amos Davis (Union Co.,
SC DB $/499*).

She is listed as dying in Sept. 1849 at age 75 of Chronic Complaints in
the 1850 Mortality Census of Pickens Co. AL.

FOR CONTINUATION OF THIS LINE SEE THE ALEXANDER FAMILY.

She married Dr. Samuel Davies Alexander®”, son of Rev. Joseph Alexander
VDM DD and Esther Davies, 27 Jan 1796, in York Co., SC. Born, 21 Nov 1771 (2),
in Craven (York), Co., SC. Died, 11 Nov 1855, in Carrollton, Pickens Co., AL.
Census: 1810, in York Co., SC. Census: 1840, in Pickens Co., AL. Census: 1850,
in Pickens Co., AL. Occupation: Physician.

While he’gave his birthplace as South Carolina, he was probably born in
Mecklinburg Co., NC, moving as an infant to York Co, S. C. He began the
practice of medicine before 1800, and moved his family to Pickens County, Al.
in 1826.

In the 1790 census of York Co., SC., page 30, Dr. Samuel is apparently
Tiving with his parents.

The 1800 census of York Co., S. C. page 624, shows Dr. Samuel Alexander,
age 16-26, with a wife the same age, and with two male children ages 0-10
(George Davis and Abraham Smith) and 2 slaves. He lives by his father and
mother.

In the 1810 Census of York Co. SC, p. 259, Dr. Samuel Alexander has 2
males under 10 (George Davis and James Madison), 1 male 10-16 (Abraham Smith),
1 male 26-45 (the Dr.), 1 female under 10 (Sarah Selina), and 1 female 26-45
(Hannah), with 3 slaves. His brother George lives nearby, probably on the Tand
inherited from their father.

On 27 May 1817 he and James Garrison posted Administrators bond in the
estate of Samuel Davies, his maternal grandfather, in Mecklinburg Co., NC.
After many Tawsuits, the estate was settled 29 Jan. 1825. In the estate sale on
10 June 1817, Samuel bought a slave named Sally for $600.00.

1820 Census of York Co. SC, Village of York, page 169. 1 male under 10
(John Madison), 2 males 16-25 (Abraham Smith and George Davis), 1 male 45 plus
(the Dr.), 1 female under 10 (Sarah Selina), 1 female 10-15 (Mary Almira), 1
female over 45 (Hannah). 3 slaves.

According to Garrison’s deposition in his Tawsuit in 1825, Samuel D.
Alexander Teft York County SC in November 1824, "abscounding to parts unknown."
It is uncertain whether he came then to Alabama, later sending for his wife and
two youngest children, or was elsewhere. At any rate, he seems to have been in
Alabama by 1826.

1830 Census of Pickens Co., Al.p. 132, Samuel D. Alexander has 1 male
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10-15 (John Madison), 1 male 60-70 (the Dr.), 1 female 10-15 (Sarah Selina), 1
female 40-50 (Hannah).

1840 Census of Pickens Co., Al. p. 353 S. D. Alexander Tists 1 male
60-70, 1 female 15-20, and his wife 50-60. 2 female slaves.

1850 Census of Pickens Co., Al., So. District, p.017. J. W. Bryan, age
31, Farmer, real property value $1500, b. KY 1819; Sarah, age 30, F, Born in SC
1820; Columbia, age 4, F, Born Al 1846; William, age 1, M, born Al. 1849;
Samuel Alexander, age 77, M, Physician, b: Unknown 1773. 2 female slaves.

We have no’insight into the character and disposition of this Physician
in his mature years. We do have some indications in young adulthood, that if
there was a snake in the family tree, he may well have been it. His father’s
will indicated a lack of respect for his oldest son, had harsh words for him,
and indicated a selfish bent. His brothers and sisters were forced to sue in an
unsuccessful attempt to recover their substantial inheritance from their
maternal grandfather’s estate. Dr. Samuel, together with his brother-in-Tlaw,
James Garrison, first sued several times to have the will of Samuel Davis,
(often spelled Davies) his grandfather, overturned and themselves appointed
administrators. They sold the assets of the estate for considerable money and
Samuel, according to Garrison, who also had to sue him, "abscounded with the
buTk of the money for parts unknown, leaving his family behind.” His brothers
and sisters secured a judgement against him, but there is no evidence that
Samuel, then Tiving in Alabama and out of reach of the South Carolina courts,
ever responded or made any accounting. There is no record of his attending
medical school, and he may have apprenticed himself to a practicing physician.
In any event, he was probably well-educated as his father, a Princeton graduate
and scholar, conducted an academy along the classical lines, and there were
multitudes of books listed in the inventory of his father’s estate. The Census
of 1800 Tists him as a Dr., so he was practicing medicine by that time.

We know that he settied in Pickens County Alabama, in Yorkville (mow
Ethelsville), by 1826, according to the obituary he wrote for his son John
Madison Alexander. We'know from Garrison’s suit that he "abscounded” in
November of 1824, and he may have come to Alabama at that time, later returning
for his family. His place of burial is unknown, but is probably at the city
cemetary in Carrollton, where there are many unmarked graves and illegible
markers. I have searched the few and well-hidden cemetaries around Ethelsville
with no success. He was 1iving with his daughter Sarah, and her husband, Jesse
Bryan, and their children in 1850, his wife having died a year earlier.

Samuel may have been the one responsible for the great confusion about
the identity of his father’s wife. Most authorities, including those of the
Presbyterian Church, identify her as the daughter of the Rev. Samuel Davies,
President of Princeton College (Then Nassau Hall, The College of New Jersey at
Princeton), which Rev. Joseph Alexander attended. However, the will of Samuel
Davis of Mecklinburg County, NC, states that his only daughter Esther married
Rev. Joseph Alexander, and there was much litigation over his estate, centering
around Dr. Samuel’s administration thereof. Samuel apparently contributed to
the confusion by stating that his son, James Madison Alexander was the grandson
of the Rev. Davies, President of Princeton College, in the obituary he wrote at
the time of his sons death.

ABSTRACTS OF LAWSUITS INVOLVING DR. SAMUEL DAVIES ALEXANDER:

York Co. SC Court of Equity No. 18 File #1*: John T. Mcdunkin et ux, et
al, vs Samuel D. Alexander and James Garrison. Bill for discovery and relief,
May 1823. Plantiffs George Alexander, Rev Robert B. Walker and Editha Alexander
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Walker, John Thomas McJunkin and Margaret Alexander McJunkin, Hugh Bankhead and
Judith Alexander Bankhead. Samuel Davis died in Mecklinburg Co., NC in 1815
with no lawfu] heirs except the heirs of his only daughter Esther who married
Rev. Joseph Alexander and had the following issue: Samuel D. Alexander, George
Alexander, Ann, who married James Garrison, Editha, who married Robert B
Walker, Margaret, who married John T. McJunkin and Judith, who married Hugh
Bankhead. Joseph and Hester Alexander died before the death of said Samuel,
Teaving the above, his grandchildren, as the only legatees. They believe he
died leaving a will and an estate of at least $3,400. The defendants went into
NC and took out letters of administration, took posession of the property, and
disposed of it, and have made no accounting to the heirs who demand an
accounting and distribution of the proceeds. The case file includes subpoenas
issued to Sam and James, and an indication that James was served on May 3,1823.
There is an inventory and report of sale by Isaac Alexander, Clerk of Court of
Common Pleas, Mecklinburg Co., NC, showing proceeds of $3,211.03 on the sale
alone, dated May 5, 1823. Judgement for the plantiffs entered June 15, 1824,

York County SC Court of Equity Case 18 File #2.* Answer of James Garrison
dated Sept 20, 1825. The case file includes an itemized sale bill for $3,538.73
including interest from 10 June 1818 at 6%, and evidence for debt listing
approx. $640.00 in accounts which were to be collected by the administrators,
and vouchers for the sale expenses of James Garrison_including legal fees of
$1,090.76 dated 1/12/1825. He generally admits the claims of the plantiffs, and
states that he and Samuel D. Alexander sued twice in Mecklinburg County, and
once in Lincoln County,NC before getting the will of Samuel Davis overturned,
and themselves appointed as Administrators. He implies that the reason may have
been that the will of Samuel called for the freeing of his slaves. As blood
kin, Samuel Davies Alexander took charge of the bulk of the money from the sale
and all notes for collection, and had refused to make any acounting to him, or
to settle the estate as promised. He stated that he had expended, through
expenses and partial payment to the other heirs, funds such that the amount
remaining was less than the amount of his (wife’s) share. He states that Samuel
Teft about Nov. last year, and defendant has been unable to find him, and has
appealed to (Samuel’s) wife without result, but that he had found in her
posession a receipt for payment in full by Wm. Bundy, (2nd. husband of Judith
Alexander Bankhead) and George Alexander. Answer dated 1 July 1825

Case 18 File #3*. York County, SC., Court of Equity. Copy of levy against
all assets of James Garrison and Samuel D. Alexander dated 5/27/1828.

Case 31 File #1* York Co. SC Court of Equity. 1825. Bill for discovery
and relief. James Garrison vs. Samuel D. Alexander, et al. References Case #18
above. Samuel D. posessed himself of virtually all of the estate of Samuel
Davis and has refused to make any accounting or distribution thereof: That the
said Samuel D. has lately,” to wit; about the month of November last,
abscounded from the district and has gone to parts unknown...leaving his wife
and children behind but leaving no visible estate; that John Blair of Yorkville
has a note on Thomas 6. Polk payable to Samuel Davis Estate given for a balance
due at the sale of $149. with interest, which was deposited with Blair by
Samuel D. for collection, which Blair refuses to deliver; That Samuel D.
posessed a valuable piece of land in York District which was sold 10/4/1823 by
the Sheriff to John Blair for $100. to satisfy an execution by Blair in the
amount of $310.; that John Blair informs him that it was agreed prior to the
sale that Blair would bid in the Tand which was worth much more, then sell it
to best advantage and refund the surplus to Alexander, and that he, Blair, had
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business as one of the firm of Alexander and Kennedy, where he resided at the
period of his decease. At the time of his death he held the offices of Justice
of the Peace and Postmaster. He had been honored at different times with many
important public trusts, having been elected as County Assessor of Taxes by the
commissioner’s court for several years in succession by their unanimous vote.
He was an efficient, faithful public officer, very laborious and attentive to
business. The deceased was descended from an ancestry of much celebrity. He is
the son of Dr. Alexander, now 1iving at this place, aged 85 years, and grandson
of the distinguished Rev. Joseph Alexander, D. D. ,York District, South
Carolina, author of the well known volume of "Alexander’s Sermons”; and the son
in law of Rev. Sanuel Davies, President of Princeton College. Consequently, the
deceased was the great grandson of that great divine. On April 4th, 1839, he
married Miss Dorinda, daughter of the late Walter W. Gilkey of this county,
whom he Teaves with four children to mourn their great bereavement.

"It would be remarkable if the descendant of so remarkable and
intelligent a parentage had never been a subject of religious impressions. We
are inforned that he entertained a hope of a religious change for many years
before his death. His life was always exemplary, his example good, but with the
exception of a short period in the Methodist connection, he was not, owing to
his location, a communicant of any church. He expressed a willingness to meet
death and was less anxious about himself than about his family and orphan
children.

"He died resigned, expressing hope of salvation through the merits of the
savior of mankind, His remains were followed to their final resting place by a
Targe concourse of friends and neighbors, being buried by the brethyren of the
Order of 0dd Fellows, of which he was a worthy and faithful member.”( Lincoln:
"Alexander” p. 47-8.)

He married Dorinda Gilkey®®, daughter of Walter W. Gilkey and Unknown,
1839, in Pickens Co., AL. Born, 8 May 1808, in Union (Cherokee), Co., SC. Died,
2 0ct 1861, in Pickens Co., AL. Burial: 1861, in Antioch Cemetary, Pickens Co.,
AL

She moved to a farm very near Antioch Cemetary in Pickens county after
her husbands death. Per Clanahan’s "History of Pickens County", p. 65 her
obituary was printed 30 Oct. 1861: Dorinda Alexander, the wife of J. M.
Alexander formerly of Carrollton died in her residence in Pickens Co. Oct. 2.
Was born in Union Dist., SC 5/8/1808. Joined the Cumberland Presbyterian Church
16 years ago. Survived by three daughters. Her brother was a noted judge in
Pickens County. Her grandfather was Samuel Gilkey, of York SC and Pickens Co.
The author has a photocopy of her obituary. Children:

William Henry Harrison® Alexander®®. Born, 1840, in Pickens
Co., AL. Died, 21 Sep 1861, in Pickens Co., AL. Burial: 1861,
in Antioch Church.

ii. Mary Cornelia Madeline Alexander®®. Born, 1842, in Pickens Co.,
AL.Died, Jan 1867, in Pickens Co., AL.

Minerva Savannah Texana "Tessie" Alexander.

Sarah Clementine Castina Alexander®®. Born, 1849, in Pickens
Co., AL. Died, 1878. Burial: 1878, in Friendship Cen.,
Columbus, MS.

21
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20.  Nancy® Smith (Whitaker, 16).
She married James Webb. Children:

i. Whittaker® Webb®.
74, Samuel Webb®*.

31 JuL 1995

73
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business as one of the firm of Alexander and Kennedy, where he resided at the
period of his decease. At the time of his death he held the offices of Justice
of the Peace and Postmaster. He had been honored at different times with many
important public trusts, having been elected as County Assessor of Taxes by the
commissioner’s court for several years in succession by their unanimous vote.
He was an efficient, faithful public officer, very laborious and attentive to
business. The deceased was descended from an ancestry of much celebrity. He is
the son of Dr. Alexander, now living at this place, aged 85 years, and grandson
of the distinguished Rev. Joseph Alexander, D. D. ,York District, South
Carolina, author of the well known volume of "Alexander’s Sermons"; and the son
in Taw of Rev. Samuel Davies, President of Princeton College. Consequently, the
deceased was the great grandson of that great divine. On April 4th, 1839, he
married Miss Dorinda, daughter of the late Walter W. Gilkey of this county,
whon he leaves with four children to mourn their great bereavement.

"It would be remarkable if the descendant of so remarkable and
intelligent a parentage had never been a subject of religious impressions. We
are informed that he entertained a hope of a religious change for many years
before his death. His Tife was always exemplary, his example good, but with the
exception of a short period in the Methodist connection, he was not, owing to
his Tocation, a communicant of any church. He expressed a willingness to meet
death and was Tless anxious about himself than about his family and orphan
children.

"He died resigned, expressing hope of salvation through the merits of the
savior of mankind. His remains were followed to their final resting place by a
Targe concourse of friends and neighbors, being buried by the brethyren of the
Order of 0dd Fellows, of which he was a worthy and faithful member.”( Lincoln:
"Alexander” p. 47-8.)

He married Dorinda Gilkey®*, daughter of Walter W. Gilkey and Unknown,
1839, in Pickens Co., AL. Born, 8 May 1808, in Union (Cherokee), Co., SC. Died,
2 Oct 1861, in Pickens Co., AL. Burial: 1861, in Antioch Cemetary, Pickens Co.,
AL

She moved to a farm very near Antioch Cemetary in Pickens county after
her husbands death. Per Clanahan’s "History of Pickens County", p. 65 her
obituary was printed 30 Oct. 1861: Dorinda Alexander, the wife of J. M.
Alexander formerly of Carrollton died in her residence in Pickens Co. Oct. 2.
Was born in Union Dist., SC 5/8/1808. Joined the Cumberland Presbyterian Church
16 years ago. Survived by three daughters. Her brother was a noted judge in
Pickens County. Her grandfather was Samuel Gilkey, of York SC and Pickens Co.
The author has a photocopy of her obituary. Children:

i. William Henry Harrison® Alexander®®. Born, 1840, in Pickens
Co., AL. Died, 21 Sep 1861, in Pickens Co., AL. Burial: 1861,
in Antioch Church.

ii. Mary Cornelia Madeline Alexander®®. Born, 1842, in Pickens Co.,
AL."Died, Jan 1867, in Pickens Co., AL.

21 iii. Minerva Savannah Texana "Tessie" Alexander.

iv. Sarah Clementine Castina Alexander®®. Born, 1849, in Pickens
Co., AL. Died, 1878. Burial: 1878, in Friendship Cem.,
Columbus, MS.
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21.  Minerva Savannah Texana "Tessie"® Alexander (John Madison, 19)°°. Born,
16 Dec 1846, in Carrollton, Pickens Co., AL. Died, 29 Nov 1920, in Columbus,
Lowndes Co., MS. Burial: 1920, in Friendship Cem., Columbus, MS.

A photo in the author’s posession indicates she was a beautiful woman.
She attended Liberty and Pickneysville Female Institutes.

She married®® Cicero Leonidas Lincoln "Lee"®, 18 Nov 1869, in Columbus,
Lowndes Co., MS. Born, 14 Oct 1844. Died, 28 Jan 1939, in Columbus, Lowndes
Co., MS. Burial: 1939, in Friendship Cem. Resided in 714 So. 3rd. Ave,
Columbus, MS. Occupation: Mayor/ColumbusHs.

Called "Lee”, he and "Tessie" were married by Rev. J. T. Steinback at the
home of Jessie and Sarah Bryan, where they had met, in Columbus, MS. later
became Deputy Sheriff, Sheriff, and Clerk of Chancery Court for Lowndes County,
and Mayor of Columbus, MS.

He Tived at 714 So. 3rd Ave, which was built by his father in 1833.

He was a private in Co. K, 14th Miss. Infantry in the Civil War, and a
Captain in Co. D., 2nd Miss. Infantry in the Spanish American War. He later
became a Colonel in the Miss. National Guard. He was admitted to the Bar in
1902.

Cicero was named guardian for the orphaned children of William Butler
Bryan, son of Jesse and Sarah Bryan. There is an extensive file on this family
in"the Lon Will Lincoln Collection in the Columbus, MS, Library. Children:

i. Norman Lee” Lincoln®®. Born, 15 Sep 1870, in Columbus, Lowndes
Co., MS. Died, 5 Mar 1950, in St. Louis, M0. Burial: 1950, in
Bellefonte Cem. He married Augusta Helm Porter®®.

ii. Alma Pearl Lincoln®°. Born, 24 Sep 1872, in Columbus, Lowndes
Co., MS. Died, 9 Jun 1874, in Columbus, Lowndes Co., MS.
Burial: 1874, in Friendship Cem.

ifi. Otis Ivanhoe LincoIn®°. Born, 12 Dec 1874, in Columbus, Lowndes
Co., MS. Died, 28 Aug 1878, in Columbus, Lowndes Co., MS.
Burial: 1878, in Friendship Cem.

iv. Capt. Atwell Theron Lincoln®®. Born, 12 Dec 1874, in Columbus,
Lowndes Co., MS. Died, 1 Sep 1918, in France. Military Sv in U.
S. Army WNI, (KIA). Burial: 1918, in Belfontaine, St. Louis,
H0>. He married Annie Lou Porter.

v. Berton Alexander Lincoln®®. Born, 9 Jul 1880, in Columbus,
Lowndes Co., MS. Died, 1 Apr 1940, in Columbus, Lowndes Co.,
MS. Burial: 1940, in Friendship Cem. Occupation: Lawyer. He
married Bessie Lanies Brown®®.

vi. Sue Mae Lincoln®®. Born, 13 May 1883, in Columbus, Lowndes Co.,
MS. Died in Columbus, Lowndes Co., MS.

She and her batchelor brother, Lon Will Lincoln, Tived at
719 3rd Ave. So., Columbus, S, the family home. My Mother, who
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*Zula Atwood, Frank Eddens Jr. Mildred Shumaker Guy Smith Jr., Smith
Cousins Four, (CS71.5643/1987), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library
(Southern History), Birmingham, Al. William Fletcher Booger, Gleanings of
Virginia History, (Washington, D. C. 1903, the author);, (F221.872/1903).,
in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History), Birmingham, Al.
& C. E. May, Life Under Four Flags in North River Basin of Virginia,
(McClure Press), (F232.A9m38), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library
(Southern History), Birmingham, Al. & Fredrick Adams Virkus, F.I.A.G., The
Compendum of American Genealogy, Vol.7, (Chicago, 1942, Inst, . of
American, Genealogy)., (CS69.V5V7)., in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library
(Southern History), Birmingham, A1.’& Lynn Chalkley, Chronicles

of the Scotch Irish Settlement of VA:, (Baltimore, 1965, Geneal. Publ. Co,
.)-, (F232.A929/1965), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern
History), Birmingham, Al. & Aronhime, Gordon, "Colonel John Smith
1701-1783" Augusta Histor.Soc., Augusta Co., VA Historical, Society, Vol.
14 No.1, Spring 1978, p.6-32, in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library
(Southern History), Birmingham, Al. & Lyman C. Draper, The Draper
Collection of Mss.., State Historical, Society of, Wisconsin, (Microfilm),
Preston and, Virginia Papers, in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library
(Southern History), Birmingham, Al. & Lewis Preston Summers, Annals of
Southwest Virginia, (Baltimore, Gen. Publ. Co., 1970), in custody of
Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History), Birmingham, A1.

Augusta Co. Order Bk 1 p. 350 per Aronheim "Col. John Smith" p. 29.

>"smith Cousins”; p.1. Booger "Gleanings"; p. 330-3. Virkus "Compendum 7";
p-881. "Col. John Smith" p.16 & Chalkley "Chronicles";.

“ChaTkley "Chronii

les™; p. 78 & Booger "Gleanings”; & "Smith Cousins"; &
May: "Four Flags"; .

“"Smith Cousins"; & Booger "Gleanings"; & May: "Four Flags"; p. 153-155.
©"Col. John Smith" p. 5 & Chalkley "Chronicles”;.
7*Col. John Smith® p.5.

“May: "Four Flags"; 154-7 & "Smith Cousins”; p.3 & will of John Smith.
"Col. John Smith" p.19, 29 & "Col. John Smith".
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“Booger *Gleanings”; p. 333. "Smith Cousins"; p. 3. & Draper Collection,
Draper Collection of Manuscripts, Madison, Wisc., Historical, Soc. of
Wisc., 1929, Calendar of Tenn, and King Mtn., Papers,(micro)., in custody
of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History), Birmingham, Al.

*°Booger "Gleanings”; p. 333 "Smith Cousins”; p.1-3. May: "Four Flags";
151-9. Chalkley "Chronicles"; p. 65, 72. Joseph A. Waddell, Annals of
Auqusta Co.. Virginia:, (2nd. Ed., Bridgewater, Va. 1902, C. J. Carrier,
Co. Reprinted, 1958)., (F232.A9w2/1958), in custody of Birmingham, AL,
Library (Southern History), Birmingham, Al. p.151, 160.

**Booger "Gleanings"; p. 333.
*?Ibid. p. 333-4.
*>Ibid. p. 334. “Augusta County"; p.151.

“May: "Four Flags"; p. 159. Booger "Gleanings"; p.337-8. "Augusta County";
p. 151. "Smith Cousins”;.

*“Booger "Gleanings”; p. 160.

*°Ibid. p. 347.

*7Ibid. p. 347-8.

*®Ibid. p345ff.

**Ibid. p.347.

*°They had nine children. Booger "Gleanings"; p. 347-8.
=hig. .

**Unmarried.

**Booger "Gleanings”; p.362.

*Ibid. p. 563.

*°Ibid. p. 364-5.

#°*Smith Cousins”; p. 4-13, 18, 20. Booger "Gleanings"; Union County

Historical Foundation, A History of Union County SC, (A Press Inc.,
Greenville, SC, 1977)., in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern
History), Birmingham, A1. p.63 & Lawrence K. Wells, York Co., SC,

inute! County Court1786-1797, (Columbia, SC, Brent W. Holcom,
1981)., in custody of Sanford University Library, Birmingham, AL &
Chalkiey "Chronicles”;.

*’Augusta Co. VA. Deed Book 7, 1755-8, Va. State Library, Richmond, Va. Reel
4, p. 362-4. Estate of Henry Smith, York County Estate papers, Case 63,




image13.jpeg
78

31 JuL 1995 DESCENDANTS OF COL. JOHN SMITH OF VIRGINIA

NOTES AND REFERENCES

Files 2875 and 1907, SC Archives, Columbia, SC. "Audited Accounts Issued
to Henry Smith for Military Duty" SC Archives AA 7127 p. 1b-24bl. Stubs to
Indents. Book Q #365; Book X #2030; Books T & A re. Certificate 238.
Craig, Rev. John; " List of Baptisms, Augusta Co. Va.; 1740-49, p. 21. 33.
Hatke, Staunton, VA. (Cited in "Cousins’, p.9).

“°Child baptized 2 Oct. 1748.

*"May: "Four Flags"; Booger "Gleanings"; & Chalkley "Chronicles";.
*°Died between 1790 and 1794.

> "smith Cousins”; p.
= See Revolutionary War pension application of brother Jonathan,
"Audited Account of Jonathan Smith," South Carolina Archives, Columbia,
SC, AA 7138-A, page 3p.

33%Col. John Smith™ p. 5 & Chalkley "Chronicles”; & Booger "Gleanings"; p.24
& Chalkley "Chronicles”;.

**Chalkley "Chronicles®;.
SBooger "Gleanings"; p. 345ff & Chalkley "Chronicles”;.

*°Brent Howard Holcomb CG, Union County S.C. Will Abstacts 1787-1849, (Brent
Holcomb), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History),
Birmingham, Al. & "Smith Cousins"; & Guyton Bobo McCall, Some Descendants
of Joseph Guyton (Guiton) , (Author, 4060 Land, 0’Lakes Dr., NE, Atlanta,
A & D. A. R. Patriot Index, (Daughter’s of, the American Rev,
Washington,DC), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History),
Birmingham, Al. & Lutie Davidson & Margaret Sizemore Douglas, Davidson
Eamily History, (Unpublished, mss), in custody of Walter Orien Holliman
Jr. "Walt", 2601 Chandalar, [ane, Pelham AL 35124 & "York Co. Minutes" &
Brent Howard Holcomb CG, Union County, SC Minutes of the County Court
1785-1799, (Southern, Historical Press, 1979, Easley, SC), in custody of
Samford University Library, Birmingham, AL.

*"Maryland Historical Society, St.John/ St.George Parish Registers, (Family
Line, Publ)., in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History),
Birmingham, Al. F. Edward Wright, Inhabitants of Baltimore Co. 1692-1763,
Family Line Publ, 1987, Silver Springs, MD 20904, (F187.82W74-1987, in
custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History), Birmingham, Al.
Church of Christ of LatterDaySaints, LDS Ancestral File Numbers: 935-Tq
Helen Guyton Rees, Guytons Galore, (Portland, OR., Binford and Mort,
Publishing), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History),
Birmingham, Al. . "Joseph Guyton"; Linda G. Cheek, Ancestors and
Descendants of Smiths, (Linda Cheek, Rt.8 Bx 48, Easley SC 29640, 1987) p.
L

3%"Joseph Guyton"; p.113. WB-A p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Abraham Smith.
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NOTES AND REFERENCES
*°Ibid. p. 113. WB-A p97-101 Union, SC 1806 Abraham Smith Will.
“°Ibid. p. 112. No other record.
“IWB-A p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Will of Abraham Smith.
“*"Joseph Guyton"; p. 113. WB-A p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Abraham Smith.

p- 113. Executor Abraham Smith WB-A p.97-101 Union Co, SC. 1806.
““Ibid. p. 113.

“®Ibid. p.113. WB-A p.97-101 Union, SC 1806. Cheek

*Smith Ancestors® p.1.

““per Sarah Smith Davis suit re: estate of Mary Smith.
“7"Joseph Guyton"; p. 112. WB-1 p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Abraham Smith.
“®"Union Co. SC" p. 21 & "York Co. Minutes" & "Union Co. SC Minutes".

“*Mildred Smith Shusaker, Guyton-Whitaker- Smith Family Group Sheets,
(Unpub. HSS) Church of LDS AFN: "Smith Cousins”; p. 1-13.

®°"smith Cousins"; p. 12.& "York Co. Minutes® p.14, 66 & "Union Co. SC
Minutes*.

®!National Archives Rev. War Penison Application Micro Roll 804 Roll 2214,
Henry Smith of Franklin Co. GA.*.

®DAR "Patriot Index", 1982 Supp. p. 42.

®Per Rev. War Pesinon Application for widows pension dated Feb 28, 1853,
included in husbands penison file. W2183.

*Janice L. Abercrombie and Richard Slatten, Virginia Publick Claims
County:, (Athens, 6a., 1991, Iberian Pub1.C0), ., F232.A%a22/1991, in
custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History), Birmingham, Al. p.
10, 12'& "York Co. Minutes" & "Union Co. SC Minutes".

®“James E. Woodley, Editor, A Collection of Upper South Carolina Geneal.
& Family Record, (Southern, Historical Press, 1981, Easley, SC), in
custody of Samford University Library, Birmingham, AL p. 65.

®S"Smith Cousins"; p.16-27.

7Ibid. p.1, 7, 13. Church of LDS AFN:.

®®"Smith Cousins"; p.16.

®°Ibid. p. 16. "Joseph Guyton"; p. 114.

“°Per pension file AA7138A Jonathan Smith.
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©11592 p. 16.

“2"pendleton Messenger” wedding notice 26 Jan 1825.

“2"Smith Cousins”; p. 16.

““Ibid. p. 16. Mother Tived with him after father’s death.

“**Upper So. Carolina”.

“°WB-A p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Will of Abraham Smith. Lon Will Lincoln,
Joseph Alexander, Tanner, (Unpubl. MSS), in custody of Columbus,Miss.
Public Library, Columbus, Miss. .

*’1bid. p.45-6.

**The Crescent Family Record, Origin and History of lexander, (Chicago.
1904, American Publish, ers Assn., CS71.A38 1904, in custody of Samford
University Library, Birmingham, AL pp.17-19. Lincoln:"Alexander”,.

7°Nelson F. Smith, History of Pickens County from 1817-1856, (Nelson F.
Smith, )., in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History),
Birmingham, A1. p.185-7, James F. Clanahan, History of Pickens County
AL 1540-1920, (Clanahan Publ., Carrolton, AL), in custody of Birmingham,
AL, Library (Southern History), Birmingham, Al. p.102-5.

Lincoln: "Alexander", .

7'"Joseph Guyton"; p. 113. WB-A p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Est. of Abraham
smith.

7?1bid. p. 113. Married Sarah ?722.
72Ibid. p. 113, for children of both marriages.

7*Ibid. p. 113. for children.
7°Ibid. p. 113. Married a Phillips.
7€Ibid. p. 112. WB-A p.97-101 Union, Sc 1806 Abraham Smith.

77"Smith Cousins"; p.12-25. "Joseph Guyton"; p. 114.

7%Mar of 1812 Pension Applications-Whitaker Smith, Anderson Co., SC., U. S.
Archives, Washington, DC. Military Records of Ist. Corpl. Whitaker Smith,
Nash’s Regiment, S> C> Vols. U. S. Archives, Washington, DC.

7®Birth date may have been 8 October.

®°"Joseph Guyton"; p. 114.
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®2*smith Cousins"; p. 31. “Joseph Guyton"; p. 114.

®2Joseph Guyton"; p. 114.

*>Lincoln: "Alexander”, Smith:*Pickens Co.", Clanahan *"Pickens Co.”, p.45.
**smith:*Pickens Co.", p.65.
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ZSB: Col. John Suith® 1603 Parents: Natwal
1700 England” Oce: Patriot/Planter
French & Indian, Rar
me Ulster, Ireland 5%
m Botentart Co., A
783 Rockinghan Co., VA
WIFE: Wargaret Barrington <2>° 1602 Parents: Natural

Bom: cirea 1700 (2) England
Died: after 1788 (2) Rockinghan Co., A,

CHTLIREN (X = ancestor of preparer)

1| Nase: Col. Abrabam Sith* 1604 Parents: Natural
22 Ireland Occ: PlanterPatriot
Prench & Indian, Rar & Rev. War
(2) Augusta Co., VA 537
To: Sarah Caldvell 1611
ied: circa 1781 Rockingban Co., A
circa 1781 Hossy Creek Cex.
: Judge Daniel Suith” 1605 Parents: Natwal
1 Ulster, Ireland Occ: Planter/Soldier
French\Indian, Wars
circa 1751 uqusta Co. & 56
Jane Gean> Barrison 1628
oct 1761 Rockinghan Co., TA

8 Dayton Cenetary

3| Name: Hemry Suith 5r.%” 1606 Parents: Natural
K| Bom: 21 Ulster, Treland Occ: Planter/Soldier
¥ Prench-Tndian, & Rev. Wars
circa 1746 (2) Mugusta Co., T 539
To: Avelia Unkvon “Aay, Enie, Aine™* 1615
Died: 1782 Suith’s Ford, York Co., SC.
ms hugusta Co., W
1766 Craven (fork), Co., SC
John Saith Jr.” 1607 Parents: Natural
1730 Ulster, Treland Occ: Soldier.
French & Indian, ¥ar
26 Jun 175 B, Vause, Hontgomery Co., VA.
Joseph Swith'® 1608 Parents: Natural
: 73 Chester co. PA occ: Soldier

Prench & Indian, Sar
Walter Orien Bolliman Jr. "Walt"
Rel. to husband: 66-Grandson Rel. to wife: 66-Grandson
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JRSBD: Col. John Suith

AIFE: Margaret. Barrington <2

CRILDREN (Continued)
Died:  Jul 1756 Bt Vause, Hontgosery Co., VA
6 : Rillian Saith™ 1087 Parents: Natural
I before 1741 n
ied: (deceased)
7 : David Saith'” 4088 Parents: Natural
[ 0 Jul 1741 Orange (hugusta), A
ed: (deceased)
8| : Jonathan Swith> 1089 Parents: Katural
¥ 2 Jul 1744 orange (ugusta), VA
1490
: Unknown wosan 450
: (deceased)
9| Bame: Lowisa Suith <louisa>™* 1633 Parents: Natural
7 Bom: 6oct 1745 Nugsta Go., T
¢ B72
Lieut. Hugh Reece Bowen 1610
Maiden Spring, Tazesell Co., VA
Tinkling Springs, Church
10| i 090 Parents: Hatural
[l Botentort Co., VA

1ula Mtvood, Prank Eddens . Wildred Shunaker oy Suith Jr., Saith Cousins Four, (CS7L.S643/1987), in custody of Biraingban,
AL, Library (Southern History), Birningham, Al. Williaw Fletcher Booger, Gleanings of Virginia History, (Washington, D. C.
103, the author);, (F221.872/1903)., in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History), Birmingham, Al. & C. E. May,
Life Under Four Flags in North River Basin of Virginia, (cClure Press), (F232.19038), in custody of Birminghan, AL, Library
(Southern History), Biruingban, Al. & Fredrick Adaws Virkus, F..A.G., The Conpendun of Aserican Genealoay, Vol.7, (Chicago,
1942, Inst, . of Anerican, Genealogy)., (CS69.75V7)., in custody of Birninghan, AL, Library (Southern Eistory), Birninghan,
AL & Lynn Chalkley, Chronicles of the Scotch Irish Settlement of VA;, (Baltimore, 1965, Geneal. Publ. Co, .).,
(F232.1929/1965), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern Ristory), Birninghaw, Al. & Aronhise, Gordon, "Colonel
Jobn Seith 1701-1783" Auqusta Bistor.Soc., hugusta Co., VA Historical, Society, Vol. 14 Ho.1, Spring 1978, p.6-32, in custody
of Birminghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birminghan, Al. & Lynan C. Draper, The Draper Collection of Mss.,, State
Historical, Society of, Wisconsin, (Kicrofila), Preston and, Virginia Papers, in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern
History), Birsinghan, Al. & Levis Preston Sumers, mnals of Southwest Virinia, (Baltinore, Gen. Publ. Co., 1970), in custody
of Birninghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birninghas, Al.
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Z=BD: Col. John Swith
AIFE: Marqaret Barrington <2

REFERENCES (Contimued)

hugusta Co. Order Bk 1 p. 350 per Aronhein "Col. John Saith" p. 29.

>*Saith Cousins"; p.1. Booger "Gleanings"; p. 330-3. Virkus *Conpendum 7°; p.881. Col. John Snith* p.16 & Chalkley
*Chronicles" ;.

“Booger "Gleanings"; p. 33 *Suith Cousins"; p.1-3. Hay: "Four Flags"; 151-9. Chalkley "Chronicles"; p. 65, 72. doseph A.
Waddell, Anpals of Augusta Co., Virginiai, (2nd. Ed., Bridgewater, Va. 1902, C. J. Carrier, Co. Reprinted, 1958).,
(F232.0992/1958), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History), Birmingham, Al. p.151, 160a-4(.

May: "Pour Flags"; p. 159. Booger "Gleanings"; p.337-8. "hugusta County"; p. 151. "Smith Cousins';.

“*saith Cousins"; p. 4-13, 18, 20. Booger *Gleanings"; Union County Historical Foundation, st story of Union County SC, (A
Pres Tnc., Greemille, &, 197)., in custody of Birningtas, AL, Library (Soutbern History), Birainghan, AL. p.63 & Laveence
K. fells, York Co., SC, Ninutes of the Courty Court1786-1797, (Colusbia, SC, Brent W. Holcomb, 1981)., in custody of Samford
Tniversity Library, Birninghan, AL & Chalkley "Chronicles®;.

huqusta Co. VA. Deed Book 7, 1756-8, Va. State Library, Richmond, Va. Reel 4, p. 342-4. Estate of Heary Saith, York County
Estate papers, Case 63, Files 2875 and 1907, SC Archives, Colusbia, SC. "Audited Accounts Issued to Benry Saith for Military
Duty" SC Archives A 7127 p. 1b-24bl. Stubs to Indents. Book Q #365; Book X #2030; Books T & A re. Certificate 238, Craig,
Rev. John; " List of Baptises, Augusta Co. Va.; 1740-49, p. 2L. 33. Hatke, Staunton, VA. (Cited in "Cousins’, p.9).

“cnild baptized 2 Oct. 1748.

“ChalKley "Chronicles"; p. 78 & Booger "Gleanings"; & "Suith Cousins"; & ay: "Four Flags";

**rsuith Cousins"; & Booger "Gleanings"; & May: "Pour Flags®; p. 153-155.
2001, John Smith" p. 5 & Chalkley *Chronicles";.

*¥1¢ol. Jon Swith"

*Ibid. p. 5 & Chalkley "Chronicles"; & Booger "Gleanings"; p.24 & Chalkley "Chronicles";.

“May: *Four Flags"; 154-7 & "Snith Cousins®; p.3 & vill of John Suith. "Col. John Smith" p.19, 29 & "Col. John Smith".
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o<BD: Col. Abrahan Suith® 1604 Parents: Natwal
om: 12 Ireland Occ: Planter/Patriot
Hilit. French & Indian, War & Rev. Rar
arr: () Mugsta Co., T 7
Died: circa 1781 Rockinghan Co.,
Buried: circa 1781 Hossy Creek Cex.
Fatber: Col. John Saith 1603
Notber: Margaret Harrington <2> 1602
WIFE: Sarah Caldvell” 1611 Parents: Natwal
Died: (deceased) Augusta Co., T
CRTLDRIN (1 = ancestor of preparer)
1| Hase: John Suith” 1612 Parents: Natural
K| Bom: 16 Dec 1755 Mugusta Co. VA Occ: Farmer/Soldier
tarr: 14 Sep 1775 Rockinghan Co., VA 5%
To: Hary Jane Saith <Bart> 1613
Died: (deceased)
2| Name: Henry Suith® 1614 Parents: Natural

1758 Nugusta Co. A
Died: (deceased)

REFERENCES

*Willian Fletcher Booger, Gleanings of Virginia Eistory, (Washington, D. C. 1903, the author);, (F221.B72/1903)., in custody of
Birainghan, AL, Library (Southern istory), Birninghan, AL. p. 333 Tula Atvood, Frank Eadens Jr. Mildred Shunaker

Guy Saith Jr., Suith Cousins Four, (CS71.5643/1367), in custody of Birwinghan, AL, Library (Southern History) , Biruinghan, AL.
p.1-3. C. E. Hay, Life Under Pour Flags in North River Basin of Virginia, (McClure Press), (F232.A9038), in custody of
‘Birninghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birainghan, AL. 151-9. Lymn Chalkley, Chronicles of the Scotch Irish Settlesent
of 1;, (BiltiRore, 1565, Geneal. PubL. Co )., (F232.%8/1965), in custody of Birminghan, L, Library (Southern History),
Birminghan, AL. p. 65, 72. Joseph A. Waddell, Annals of Augusta Co., Virginia:, (2nd. Ed., Bridgevater, Va. 1902, C. J.
Carrier, Co. Reprinted, 1959)., (F232.A992/1958), in custody of Birainghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birninghax, AL.

P.151, 160augp.
“Booger "Gleanings"; p. 33.

Ibid. p. 333-4.

‘ared by: Walter Orien Hollisan Jr. "Walt”
Rel. to husband: 56-Grandlephes Rel. to wife:
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NID‘ Col. Abrahan Saith’ 1604 Parents: Fatural
2 Ireland Occ: Planter Patriot
Prench & Indian, War & Rev. War
(2) Muqusta Co., VA 537
circa 1781 Rockinghan Co., VA
circa 1781 Mossy Creek Cen.
+ Col. John Smith 1603
+ Margaret Barrington <2> 1602
: Sarah Caldvell® 1611 Parents: Natural
: (deceased) Jugusta Co., VA
CHILOREN (1 = ancestor of preparer)
1 1612 Parents: Natural
Ll Augusta Co. VA Occ: Parmer/Soldier
Rockinghan Co., VA 538
Mary Jane Saith <Bart> 1613
ied: (deceased)
1614 Parents: Natural

Jugusta Co. VA

“Willian Fletcher Booger, Gleanings of Virainia History, (Rashington, D. C. 1903, the author);, (F221.872/1903)., in custody of
Biruinghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Biruinghan, AL. p. 333 Zula Atvood, Frank Eddens Jr. Mildred Shumaker
Guy Saith Jr., Suith Cousins Four, (CS71.5643/1587), in custody of Birainghan, AL, Library (Soutbern istory), Birninghan, Al.

P-1-3. C. E. May, Life Under Four

River Basin of Virginia, (WcClure Press), (F232.A9838), in custody of

Hlags in Borth
Bmm;hal AL, Library (Southern History), Birninghan, AL. 151-9. Lynn Chalkley, Chronicles of the Scotch Irish Settlesent
of Wi, (Baltizore, 1965, Geneal. Publ. o, )., (232.1929/1965), in custody of Birninghan, AL, Library (Southern History),

Bimninghar, A1

65, 72. Joseph A. Waddell, Amnals of Augusta Co., Ui

a;, (20d. Bd., Bridgesater, Va. 1902, C. J.

Carrier, Co. Reprinted, 1958)., (F232.4992/1958), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Southern History), Birninghas, AL.

p.151, 160augp.
*Booger *Gleanings”; p. 333.
*Ibid. p. 3334,

ared by: Walter Orien Bollisan Jr. "Walt®

Rel. to husband: 56-Grandliephew Rel. to uife:
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<BAND: Judge Daniel Smith" 1605 Parents: Natural
som: me Ulster, Treland Occ: Planter/Soldier
Hil FrenchIndian, Wars
Narr: circa 1751 Jugusta Co. VA 56
Died: Ot 1781 Rockinghan 0., VA
Buried 1781 Dayton Cesetary.
Father: Col. John Suith 1603
Nother: argaret Barrington <2> 1602
WIFE: Jane <Jean> Barrison” 1628 Parents: Hatural
Bom: ms5
Died: 17% Rockinghen 0., A
Father: Daniel Harrison 16%
Hotber: Unknow vosan 1637
‘CHILDREN (X = ancestor of preparer)
1| Name: John Saith’ 1644 Parents: Matural
N[ Born: 30 Nov 1752 Jugsta Go., TA
Karz: circa 1776 () Nugusta Co., VA. 554
To: argaret Davis 1661
Died: before 1778 Jugusta Co., TA
Name: Daniel Seith 1665 Parents: Hatural
Born: 25 Jun 1754 Jugusta Co., T
Died: (deceased)
3| Name: Joseph Sith® 1646 Parents: Natural
| Bom: 9 Feb 1756 Jugusta Go., A
Died: (deoeased)
4| Mame: Robert Seith® 1643 Parents: Hatural
K| Bor: 2 Nov 1757 Jugusta Co., VA
Wilit.: Rev. Wer
Died: (deceased)
5| Name: Margaret Saith” 1647 Parents: Natural
F| Bom: 27 Oct 1759 ugusta Co., VA
Died: (deceased)
6| Name: Lieut. Benjaxin Suith® 1648 Parents: Natural
| Born: 25 bay 1761 Jugusta Co., T
i Rev. Rar
Marr: cirea 1782 (2), Augusta Co., VA 553
| __%o: Elizabeth Cravens” 1660

ared by: Walter Orien Bollisan Jr. "Walt"

Rel. to husband: 56-Grandephey Rel. to wife:
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JSBD: Judge Daniel Suith
AIFE: Jane <Jean> Barrison

‘CHILDREN (Continued)
Died: 18 Aug 1812 Lancaster, Ghio
Buried: Lancaster, G, Rethodist Cen
7 m Saith” 1649 Parents: Natural
H 6 Sep 1763 Nuqsta co.,
(deceased)
8 : Jane B. Siith 1650 Parents: Natural
H 19 Jul 1765 Nuqsta Co.,
: 551
To: Suith Lofland 1657
Died: (deceased)
9| Mase: Sarah Suith 1651 Parents: Natural
P| Bom: 13 oct 1767 Nuqsta 0o., B
Died: (deceased)
77 Name: Abrahan Suith™® 1652 Parents: Katural
-, Bom: 23 Jul 1770 nuqsta Co.,
Died: (deceased)
1| Kase: Willian Suith™ 1653 Parents: Natural
N Bom: 20 hug 1775 ugista Co.,
tarr: 550
To: Diana Kchonough 1656
Died: (deceased)
12| Nae: James Suith'* 1654 Parents: Natural
W Bom: 6 Har 1779 Jugusta Co., VA
tarr: 1804 () 519
To: Rebecca Bamett 1655
Died: (deceased) M. Vernon, 0B
| mERs

*C. E. Hay, Life Under Four Flags in North River Basin of Virginia, (Heclure Press), (F232.A9238), in custody of Birninghan,

AL, Library (Soutbern Bistory), Birminghan, Al. p. 159. William Fletcher Booger, Gleanings of Virginia History, (Washington,

D.C. 1903, the author);, (F221.872/1903)., in custody of Birminghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birainghay, AL. p.337-8.

Joseph A. Waddell, Amnals of Auqusta Co., Virginia;, (2d. Ed., Bridgevater, Va. 1902, C. J. Carrier, Co. Reprinted, 1958).,
,~ (F232.0992/1956), in custody of Birwinghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birninghax, AL. p. 151. fula Atuood,

Frank Eddens Jr. Mildred Shusaker Guy Suith Jr., Saith Cousins Four, (CST1.S643/1987), in custody of Biraingban, AL, Library

(Southern History), Birninghan, AL
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JPSBMD: Juge Daniel Suith
AIFE: Jane <Jean> Barrison

'REFERENCES (Continved)

Booger "Gleanings"; p. 160.

*Ibid. p. 345ff & Lym Chalkley, Chronicles of the Scotch Irish Settlenent of Uh;, (Baltimore, 1965, Geneal. PUbL. Co, ).,
(F232.1929/1965),, in custody of Birningban, AL, Library (Southern Bistory), Birningban, AL.

“Booger Gleanings"; p. 7.

*Ibid. p. 37-5.

“Ibid. pIsEf.

Ibid. p.347.

"hey bad nine children. Booger "Gleanings*; p. 347-8.

°Ibid. -

*married.
“*Booger *Cleanings”; p.362.

7 Ibid. p. 364-5.
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1606 Parents: Natural
Ulster, Irelad Occ: Planter/Soldier
Prench-Indian, § Rev. Fars
ugusta Co., VA® 539
Saith's Ford, York Co., SC.
Nugusta Co., T
Craven (York), Co., SC
Father: Col. John Seith 1603
Nother: Nargaret Barrington <2> 1602
WIFE: Axelia Unknown *huy, Euie, Aize™ 1615 Parents: Natural
Bom: circa 1726 (22)
Died: circa 1792 (2) Seith's Ford, York Co., SC*
‘CHILDRN (1 = ancestor of preparer)
1| dame: Letty Saith cletitiad> dletticed> 1663 Parents: Natural
P Bom:cira 1743 (2) W
Died: (deceased)
2| Name: Leah saith 1664 Parents: Natural
B Bom:cira 1745 (2) W
Died: (deceased)
=
3| Name: Capt. Abraham Smith Esq.® I Parents: Natural
W hugusta Co., T Occ: Judge/Planter
X Rev, far
tarr: circa 174 (?) Canden Dist., York Co., SC u
Hary Gayton "Holly" 38
Jun 1606 tnion (Cherokee), Co., SC
17% Canden Dist., York Co., 5C
180 tnion Co., SC
4 Jotm Saith” 1627 Parents: Ratural
W Feb 1747/ Botentort Co., VA
27 apr 1749 Jugusta, 7A., 01d Stone, Presb. Church
565
Sarah Guyton *Sally" 5
Died: 31 Dec 183 suith's Ford, York Co., 5¢
Nase: enry Suith Jr.* 1616 Parents: Natural
Rockinghan Co., A cc: Planter/Soldier
Rev. ar
Warr: before 1800 1215
To: Sareh Unknowm Surmase 373
1 _pied: 8 aan 1800 Frarklin Co., @

ared by: Walter Orien Bollizan Jr. "Walt"

Rel. to husband: 56-GrandSon Rel. to vife: 56-GrandSon
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/SBAND: Benry Suith Sr.
JIFE: haelia Onknow Ay, Baie, Alne”

CHILIREN (Continued)
6| Name: Willian Suith’* 1621 Parents: Natural
Nl Bom: circa 1761 (2) York Co., SC
Harr: a1
To: Kartha Onkaown Surnase 214
Died: (deceased) s
: Jonathan Saith® us Parents: Natural
1762 (2) Rockinghan Co., VA Occ: Farser/Soldier
circa 1786 (2) York or Anderson, Co., C 3
Hargaret <Katberine?> Guyton 51
14 Sep 1829 Anderson Co., SC
7% Canden Dist., York Co., 5C
1800 Pendleton Dist., Anderson Co., SC
Lieut. Daniel Saith***** 1617 Parents: Natural
circa 1764 (2) ugusta Co., VA
Rev. Rar

cira 1777 (2) Battle of Stono, SC

David Suith’* 1619 Parents: Matural
circa 1766 (2) Augusta Co., VA Occ: Farser
(2) Tnion Co., ¢ 541
Beersheba Harrington 1620
Feb 1806 Tnion Co., SC
: Sarah Suith 18 Parents: Hatural
circa 170 (2) York Go., SC
542
Tnknown Ransey 162

: after 1792

*Iula Mwood, Frank Eadens Jr. Hildred Sbusaker Guy Snith Jr., Suith Cousins Four, (CSTL.Sé43/1987), in custody of Birainghas,
AL, Library (Southern Ristory), Birmingham, Al. p. 4-13, 18, 20. Willian Fletcher Booger, Gleanings of Virginia History,
(vashington, D. C. 1903, the author);, (F221.B72/1903)., in custody of Birninghas, AL, Library (Soutbern History), Birainghas,
AL Tnion County Historical Fowdation, 3 History of Union Comty SC, (A Press Inc. , Greenville, SC, 1977)., in custody of
‘Birninghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birninghas, Al. p.63 & Lanrence K. Wells, York Co., SC, Minutes of the County

. Courtiz66-1797, (Coluabia, SC, Brent W. Bolconb, 1981)., in custody of Samford Oniversity Library, Birainghan, AL & Lynn
(Chalkley, Chronicles of the Scotch Ixish Settlement of VA:, (Baltimore, 1965, Geneal. Publ. Co, .)., (F232.1929/1965), in
‘custody of Birninghaw, AL, Library (Southern Bistory), Birminghan, AL.
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JESBD: Benry Suith St
JIFE: Mnelia Unknown “hxy, aie, Aine®

REFERENCES (Contimed)

“Augusta Co. VA, Deed Book 7, 1755-8, Va. State Library, Richwond, Va. Reel 4, p. 342-4. Estate of Henry Suith, York County
Estate papers, Case €3, Files 2675 and 1907, SC Archives, Colusbia, SC. "udited Aooounts Issued to Benry Swith for Hilitary
Duty” SC Archives AA 7127 p. 1b-24bl. Stubs to Indents. Book O #365; Book X #2030; Books T & A re. Certificate 238. Craig,
Bev. Jobn; " List of Baptisus, Augusta Co. Va.; 1740-49, p. 21. 3. Hatke, Staunton, VA. (Cited in *Cousins’, p.9).

“child baptized 2 Oct. 1748.

“c. . May, Life Under Four Flags in North River Basin of Virginia, (HcClure Press), (F232.09038), in custody of Birminghas,
AL, Library (Southern Ristory), Birningham, Al. Booger *Gleanings”; & Chalkley "Chronicles’

“Died betveen 1790 and 1794.

“Brent Howard Holcosb CG, Union M $.C. Will Abstacts 1787-1849, (Brent Bolcomb), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library
(Soutbern History), Birwinghan, AL. & *Suith Cousins"; & Gayton Bobo HoCall, Soge Descendants of Joseph Guyton (Guiton) ,

(huthor, 4060 Land, 0'Lakes Dr., NE, Atlanta, GA & D. A. R. Patriot Index, (Daughter’s of, the American Rev, Washington,C),
in custody of Bireinghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Biruinghan, AL. § Lutie Davidson & Margaret Sizeaore Douglas,
Davidson Fapily History, (Unpublished, nss), in custody of Walter Orien Hollinan Jr. "Walt", 2601 Chandalar, Lare, Pelbn AL
35124 & "York Co. Minutes" & Brent Hovard Holcoab CG, Union County, SC Minutes of the Courty Court 1785-1799, (Southern,
Historical Press, 1979, Easley, SC), in custody of Sanford University Library, Birninghan, AL.

“*Tnion Co. SC* p. 21 & "York Co. Ninutes” & "Union Co. SC Mimutes".
-
“*saith Cousins; p. 12.& "York Co. Minutes” p.14, 66 & "Onion Co. SC Minutes”.
“Hational Archives Rev. Rar Penison Application Micro Roll 804 Roll 2214, Henry Smith of Franklin Co. GA.%

*“Janice 1. Abercrombie and Richard Slatten, Virginia Publick Clains Auqusta County:, (Athens, Ga., 1991, Therian PubL.Co),

F232.19a22/1991, in custody of Birmingbaw, AL, Library (Southern History), Birmingbam, AL. p. 10, 12 & "York Co. inutes® &
"Inion Co. SC Hintes*.

= See Revolutionary War pension application of brother Jonathan, "Audited Account of Jonathan Suith,* South Carolina
Archives, Colusbia, SC, AA 7138-, page 3p.

*“Jases E. Woodley, Editor, A Collection of Upper South Carolina Geneal. & Fanily Becord, (Southern, Bistorical Press, 1981,

Easley, 5C), in custody of Sanford University Library, Birninghas, AL.
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PSBAD: Capt. Abraham Swith Esq.” a Parents: Natural
Jomn: circa 1747 Jugusta Co., T cc: Judge/Planter
Rev. Rar
(2) Canden Dist., York Co., 5C 17
Union (Cherokee), Co., 'SC
Canden Dist., York Co., 5C
tnion Go., SC
1606
1 Brie, Aine' 1615
WIFE: Mary Guyton "Molly™ 38 Parents: Natural
Bom: circa 1755 Craven (Union), Co., SC
Died: 1831 (2) Pickens Co., AL
censis: 180 Pickens Co., AL
Canss: 1810 Tnion Co., SC
censis: 1820 thion Co., SC
Fatber: Joseph Guyton <Giton, Giton, Gaiton> 2
Hother: Bamnah Whitaker ]
(1 = ancestor of preparer)
1| Nase: Hamah Sitn’ 2] Parents: Hatural
i 2 g 1775 York Co. ¢
b 27 Jan 179 York Co., SC 2
~ Dr. Samel Davies Mlexander n
Sep 1649 Carrollton, Pickens Co., AL
189 (2) Carrollton, Pickens Co., AL
2| Name: John Seith® 72 Parents: Hatwal
[ 176 Yotk Co., ¢
1053
To: Am Unknown surnase ae
Died: before 1831 (2)
Buried:
3| Name: Henry Saith® w2 Parents: Natural
¥ om: 778 Craven (York), Co., SC
Died: before 1831  (22)
Buried:
4 Aaron Suith® m? Parents: Natural
¥ 70 (2) York Co., SC
before 1806 (2) York Co., SC
5| Name: Joseph Seith’ 3 Parents: Matural
Al Bom: 1781 (2) York Co., SC.
ared by: Walter Orien Bollinan Jr. "Walt”

Rel. to wife: 4G-GrandSon
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FESBD: Capt. Mbrahan Saith Esq.
FE: ary Guyton "Holly*

CHILIREN (Contimued)
563
1688
Died: before 1831 (22)
Buried:
6| Nane: Mary Suith "Polly™ " Parents: Natural
H 783 fork Co., SC
(2) York or Onion o, 5C 2
110
7 0 Parents: Natural
N 15 (2) York o,
Died: before 1806 (2) York Co., SC
8| Name: Daniel Swith™® el Parents: Hatural
¥ om: 1788 (2) York Co., S
Marr: cixea 1815 (2) 564
) & Am C. Bird” 1688
Died: after 1831 (72)
Buried:
9| Name: Sarah Suith "salley"*" n Parents: Natural
B Bom: 790 York Co., S¢
warr: 585
To: Unknoin Davis 61
Died: 180 (2) York Go., 8¢
Buried:
10| Neme: Moses Suith'” m Parents: Natwral
K| Bom: 794 York Co., ¢
Died: before 1622 Tnion Co., SC
1 Catherine Saith"* 7 Parents: Natural
B 1797 York Co., ¢
cirea 1817 (2) Union Co., SC 1
Dr. D. Willian Richards 7
(deceased) Bickens Co., AL
BEFERENCES

*Brent Hovard Holcotb C5, Union Courty S.C. Will Abstacts 1767-1849, (Brent olconb), in custody of Birainghan, AL, Library
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pt. Abrabam Suith Bsq.
ATFE: Mary Guyton "Holly"

REFERENCES (Continved)

(Southern Ristory), Birmingham, Al. & fula Atwood, Frank Eddens Jr. Mildred Shumaker Guy Smith Jr., Suith Cousins Four,
(CS71.5643/1987), in custody of Birningban, AL, Library (Southern History), Biruinghan, AL. & Guyton Bobo Hocall, Soae
Descendants of Joseph Guyton (Guiton) , (Author, 4060 Land, 0'Lakes Dr., NE, Atlanta, GA & D. A. R. Patriot Index, (Daughter’s
of, the Anerican Rev, Washington, IX) , in custody of Birainghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birninghan, AL. §& Lutie
Davidson & Margaret Sizeaore Douglas, Davidson Fanily istory, ((npublished, ss), in . in amtody of Ralter ories Bollna i
"Halt*, 2601 Chandalar, Lane, Pelhan AL 35124 & Lawrence K. Wells, York Co., SC, inutes of the County Court)786-1797,
(Coluabia, S, Brent W. Folconb, 1981)., in custody of Saaford University Library, Biruinghan, AL & Brent Hosard Holoosh G5,
Tnion County, SC Hinutes of the Comty Court 1785-1799, (Southern, Historical Press, 1979, Easley, SC), in cistody of Sasford
niversity Library, Biringhan, AL.

Maryland Historical Scciety, St.John/ St.George Paish Registers, (Fanily Line, Publ)., in custody of Biruinghan, AL, Library
(Southern History), Birainghan, Al. F. Edvard Wright, Inhabitants of Baltisore Co. 1692-1763, Fanily Line Publ, 1987, Silver
Springs, HD 20904, (F187.B2W74-1987, in custody of Birninghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birninghan, AL. Church of
Christ of LatterDaySaints, LDS Ancestral File Nusbers: 9305-T0 Helen Guyton Rees, Sutons alox, (Pocland, Binford and
Mort, Publishing), in custody of Birningham, AL, Library (Southern Ristory), Birningham, Al. . "Joseph Guyton”; Linda G.
Chesk, Ancestors and Descendants of Swiths, (Linda Cheek, Bt.8 By 48, Easley SC 29640, 1987) p. 1.

%WB-1 p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Hill of Abrahan Suith. Lon Will Lincoln, Joseph Alevander, Tamer, (Unpubl. KSS), in custody of
Coluabus,Hiss. Public Library, Columbus, Kiss. .

o “*Joseph Guyton"; p.113. WB-A p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Abrahaw Smith.
“Ibid. p. 113. WB-A p37-101 Union, SC 1606 Abrabam Suith Hill.
“Ibid. p. 112. Mo other record.

“iB-2 p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Will of Abrahan Smith.

“*Joseph Guyton"; p. 113. WB-A p.97-101 Union, SC 1606 Abraban Suith.

L p. 113,
“°Ibid. p. 113. WB- p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Est. of Abrahan Swith.
**Ibid. p.113. WB-A p.97-101 Union, SC 1806. Cheek:"Snith Ancestors" p.1.
**Joseph Guyton"; p. 112. WB-1 p.97-101 Union, SC 1806 Abrabam Suith.

*’Ibid. p. 112, WB-A p.97-101 Union, Sc 1606 Abrahan Swith.
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BAD: John Suith’ 1627 Parents: Hatural
Feb 1747/ Botentort Co., VA
chr: 27 pr 1749 Mugusta, VA., 01d Stone, Presb. Church
Marr: 515
Died: 31 Dec 1834 saith's Ford, York Co., SC
Father: Benry Saith sr. 1606
Hotber: Anelia Unknowm *Axy, Euie, Aine" 1615
WIFE: Sarah Guyton "Sally™ 52 Parents: Natural
Bomn: 29 0ct 1763 tnion (cherokee), Co., SC
Died: 17 Apr 1600 York Co., ¢
Buried: 1800 saith Cen., York Co., 5¢
Father: Joseph Guyton <Giton, Gyton, Gaiton> 2
Wotber: Famah Whitaker 2
‘CHILDREN (¥ = ancestor of preparer)
2982 Parents: Natural

*Tnion County Historical Fowdation, ) History of Union Comty §C, (A Press Inc., Greenville, SC, 1977)., in custody of
Birminghan, AL, Library (Southern History), Birninghan, AL. p. 21 & Laurence K. Wells, York Co., SC, Minutes of the County
Court1786-177, (Colubia, SC, Brent §. Holcoab, 1381)., in custody of Samford University Library, Birningbas, L & Brent
Bovard Holcosb C5, Union County, SC inutes of the County Court 1765-1799, (Southern, Historical Press, 1979, Basley, 0), in
custody of Saaford University Library, Birainghan, AL.

“Mildred Snith Shuaker, Guytor-#hitaker- Saith Fanily Group Sheets, (Unpub. HSS) Church of Christ of LatterDaySaints, LDS
Ancestra] File Nusbers: Iula Atwood, Frank Eddens Jr. Mildred Shusaker Guy Smith Jr., Smith Cousins Four, (CS71.5643/1987), in
custady of Birainghan, AL, Library (Soutbern History), Birsingan, AL. p. 1-13.

" Sred by valter Orien Bollinan oc. "Wale”
Rel. to husband: 4G-Grandephew Rel. to wife: 4G-GrandNephew
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/=SBAD: Benry Seith Jr.*** 1616 Parents: Natural
2omn: 18 hug 1759 Rockinghan Co., W Oce: Planter/Soldier
Rev. ar
before 1800 1215
8 Jan 1840 Franklin Co., 6
1606
» Baie, Ame" 1615
1618
WIFE: Sarah Unknown Surnane” 3673 Parents: Natural
Bom:
chr:
Died: (deceased)
Buried:
Prob:
Inigr:

CEILDREN (X = ancestor of preparer)

7~ *ula Mwood, Frank Badens Jr. Hildred Shunaker Guy Suith Jr., Saith Cousins Pour, (CS71.5643/1987), in custody of Birwingbas,
A, Library (Soutbern istory), Birminghan, Al. p. 12.& Lavrence K. Wells, York Co., SC, Hinutes of the County Court1786-1757,
(Colusbia, SC, Breat ¥. Holcowb, 1981)., in custody of Sanford University Library, Birminghan, AL p.14, 66 & Brent Hosard
‘Holoowb G, Union County, SC Hinutes of the Comty Court 1785-1799, (Southern, Historical Press, 1979, Easley, SC), in custody
of Sanford University Library, Birainghan, AL.

“Mational Archives Rev. War Penison Application Micro Roll 804 Roll 2214, Henry Suith of Pranklin Co. GA.#

L. R. Patriot Index, (Daughter’s of, the American Rev, Washington,DC), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library (Soutbern
History), Birningba, AL. 1982 Supp. p. 42.

ared by: Walter Orien Holliman Jr. "Walt®
ReL. to husband: 4G-Grandbephes Rel. to vife:
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Benry Suith Jr.>* 1616 Parents: Natural
18 hug 1759 Rockinghan Co., VA Oce: Planter/Soldier
Rev. Rar
+ 10 Feb 1819 Franklin Co., Gh. 540
8 Jan 1840 Franklin Co., G
Benry Suith St. 1606
Auelia Unknown "huy, Enie, Aine® 1615
1800: Sarah Unkoown Surnase 373
WIFE: Margaret Hemning” 1618 Parents: Natural
Died: 18 Dec 1865 Prarklin Co. @

‘CHILDRRN (X = ancestor of preparer)

283 Parents: Natural

*1ula Muood, Frank Bddens Jr. Hildred Shusaker Guy Suith Jr., Saith Cousins Four, (CS7L.S643/1987), in custody of Biruinghan,
AL, Library (Southern istory), Birninghas, Al. p. 12.& Lavrence K. Wells, Jork Co., SC, Kinutes of the County Court1786-1757,
(Colubia, SC, Breat ¥. olcowd, 1981)., in custody of Sanford University Library, Biringban, AL p.14, 66 & Brent Fovard
Bolcosb G, Union Courty, SC Hinutes of the Cownty Court 1785-1799, (Southern, Historical Press, 1979, Easley, S¢), in custody
of Sanford University Library, Birninghas, AL.

“Mational Archives Rev. War Penison Application Nicro Roll 804 Roll 2214, enry Suith of Franklin Co. GA.*

Per Rev. ar Pesinon Application for widows pension dated Peb 28, 1853, included in husbands penison file. W2183.

‘ared by: Walter Orien Bollisan Jr. "Ralt"
Rel. to husband: 4G-Grandliephes Rel. to wife:
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1620 Parents: Natural
(2) York Co., SC
911
s
1606
1615
214 Parents: Natural
284 Parents: Natural

7~ “Janice L. Abercrosbie and Richard Slatten, Virginia Publick Claius Auqusta County;, (Athens, Ga., 1591, Therian Publ.Co), .,
F232.1522/199L, in custody of Birninghan, AL, Library (Southern Ristory), Birninghan, AL. p. 10, 12 & Lawrence K. fells,
Tork Co., €, Minutes of the County Court1786-1797, (Colusbia, SC, Brent . Holcoab, 1981)., in Custody of Saford niversity
Library, Birninghan, AL & Brent Hovard Holcob G, Union County, SC Hinutes of the County Court 1785-17%9, (Southern,
Historical Press, 1979, Easley, S€), in custody of Sanford University Library, Biruinghas, AL.

“Jases . Woodley, Hditor, A Collection of Upper South Carolina Geneal, § Fanily Record, (Southern, Historical Press, 1981,
Basley, ), in custody of Saaford University Library, Biraingha, AL p. 65.

‘ared by: Valter Orien Bollisan Jr. Walt”
FeL. to husband: 4G-Grand¥ephes Rel. to vife:
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Jonathan Suith” us Parents; Natural
1762 (2) Rockinghan Co., VA Occ: Parser/Soldier
circa 1786 (2) York or Anderson, Co., ¢ »
14 5ep 1829 Anderson Co., SC
1730 Canden Dist., York Co., SC
1800 Pendleton Dist., Anderson Co., SC
Eenry Saith Sr. 1606
Anelia Unknown "hay, uie, Alse" 1615
1799: Ann Elizabeth Suith <or Dumn?> 1626
WIFE: Marqaret <Katberine® Guyton” 51 Parents: Natural
Bom: circa 1776 (2) Union (Cherokee), Co., SC
Died: 28 Sep 179 ion (Cherokee), Co., SC
Father: Joseph Guyton <Giton, Gyton, Gaiton> 2
Hotber: Bamnah Whitaker @
CHILDREN (X = ancestor of preparer)
1f  Bame: Whitaker Saith’* 1665 Parents: Matural
M| Born: 26 Jan 1787 (2) York Co., ¢
Karr: 31 Kar 1808 592
To: Hary Hoorbead m9
7 Died: 15 Sep 1850 Anderson Co., SC
Buried Hopevell Church, Cenetary
2| Name: Capt. aron Sith® 1666 Parents: Natural
[ : 26 Jul 1789 (2) York Co., SC
19301810 York o, € 558
Elizabeth Saith’ 1672
15 g 1864 (2)
3| Base: Hamnah Suith” 1669 Parents: Natural
Pl Bom: 20an 1M1 (2) York Co., 5C
tarr: 556
To: Jesse Lewis 1670
Died: (deceased)
4| Bame: Gideon Suith” 1667 Parents: Natural
¥ Bom: 793 (2) York .,
Died: 2 Jan 1839 Mnderson Co., SC
5 Hary Saith 1668 Parents: Natural
7 9Feb 1794 (2) York Co., SC
A e 551

‘ared by Walter Orien Bollixan Jr. "Walt"
Rel. to husband: G-Grandephes

Rel. to wife: 4G-Grandlephe
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/SBAND: Jonathan Suith
AIFE: Nargaret <hatberine? Guyton

‘CHILOREN (Continued)

To: Pulaski Count Duckvorth 1671
Died: (deceased)

*2ula Atwood, Frark Badens Jr. Hildred Shusaker Guy Swith Jr., Saith Cousins Four, (CS71.5643/1987), in custody of Biringhan,
AL, Library (Soutbern Bistory), Birnioghas, AL. p.16-27.

*Ibid. p.1, 7, 13. Church of Christ of LatterdaySaints, LbS Ancestral File Musbers:.

>Saith Cousins"; p.12-25. Guyton Bobo HoCall, Some Descendants of Joseph Guyton (Guiton) , (Autbor, 4060 Land, OLakes Dr.,
X, Mlanta, G p. 14,

“Rar of 1812 Pension Applications-#hitaker Suith, Anderson Co., SC., U. S. Archives, Kashington, IX. Military Records of lst.
Corpl. hitaker Suith, Nash's Regisent, $> O Vols. U. S. Archives, Washington, 0C.

Birth date may have been 8 October.
“rSuith Cousins"; p. 31. “Joseph Guyton®; p. 114.

/7 "Joseph Guyton"; p. 114.

**Suith Cousins"; p.16.

“Ibid. p. 16. "Joseph Guyton™; p. 114.
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/<SBAND: Jonathan Smith* us Parents: Natural
aom: 1762 () Rockinghan Co., VA Gcc: Farser/Soldier
Narr: after 1799 (22) York Co., SC 544
Died: 14 Sep 1829 Anderson Co., SC
census: 17%0 Canden Dist., York Co., SC
census: 1800 Pendleton Dist., Anderson Co., SC
Census:
Father: Benry Suith Sr. 1606
Hotber: Anelia Onknow "Auy, Enie, Aime" 1615
otter v:
1786: Nargaret. Katberine?> Guyton 51
WIFE: A Elizabeth Suith <or Dum” 1626 Parents: Natural
Bomn: circa 1780 (?) York Co., SC
Died: 14 Jov 1862 Anderson Co., SC
CHTLDRRN (1 = ancestor of preparer)
1| Hame: Catherine Suith’ 1675 Parents: Natural
Pl Bom: circa 180 (2) fork Co., 5C
tarr: 562
To: Unknown Bardon 1687
Died: (deceased)
o) Bame: hay Saith® 1676 Parents: Hatural
7| Bom: (2) Mderson Co., ¢
Harr: 561
To: Onknown HoCulley 1686
Died: (deceased)
3| ase: Lititia <lettice> Suith’ 1677 Parents: Hatural
¥ Bom:
darr:  Jan 1825 (2) Mnderson Co., SC 560
To: John Dickson Jr. 1685
Died: (deceased)
4| Base: Daniel Suith® 1678 Parents: Hatwral
M| Bom: before 1808 (2) Anderson Co., SC
Died: (deceased)
5| Nase: David Saith” 1679 Parents: Natural
¥ om: (2) dnderson Co., S
Died: (deceased)
4| _lame: Jesse Rhodes Saith” 1680 Parents: Natural

ared by: Walter Orien Bollisan Jr. "Walt®
Rel. to husband: 4G-Grandlephes Rel. to ife:
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/SBAD: Jonathan Sxith
AIFE: Am Plizabeth Saith <or Dum?>

‘CHTLDREN (Contimued)
N Bom:
Died: (deceased)
7 : Willian Suith® 1681 Parents: Natwral
[ (2) Anderson Co., SC
¢ (deceased)
8| < Johnathan K. Saith® 1682 Parents: Natural
N
1 (deceased)
9 : Artinissa Suith® 1683 Parents: Natural
H : after 1808 (2) Anderson Co., SC
3 559
nknown Abernathy 1684
mns

“Iula Mood, Frank Eddens Jr. Hildred Shusaker Guy Snith Jr., Suith Cousins Four, (CS71.5643/1987), in custody of Birminghan,
AL, Library (Soutbern History), Birninghan, AL. p.16-27.

“Per pension file AATI38A Jonathan Suith.

**saith Cousins"; p.16.

1592 p. 16.

®*Pendleton Hessenger” wedding notice 26 Jan 1825.
“*Suith Cousins”; p. 16.

“Ibid. p. 16. Hother lived with hin after father’s death.
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/BAD: David Seith® 1619 Parents: Natural
Born: circa 1766 (2) Mugusta Co., VA Occ: Farmer
(2) Tnion Co., SC 50
Feb 1806 Tnion Co., SC
Henry Suith Sr. 1606
Anelia Unknown "Any, Enie, Aine* 1615
1620 Parents: Natural
3144
3143
4092
1 : Janes Suith 3146 Parents: Natural
Ll before 1785  (?) York Co., SC
ied: (deceased)
P a7 Parents: Natural
g () York/tnion Co., 5¢
3 18 Parents: atural
F| (?) York/Union Co., SC
' 3 Parents: Natural
¥ (2) York/tnion Co, 52
REPRINCES
*Janes E. Woodley, Editor, A Collection of Upper South Carolina Geneal. & Fanily Record, (Southern, Historical Press, 1961,

Basley, S0), in custody of Sanford University Librery, Birsinghaa, AL.

‘ared by: Walter Orien Hollisan Jr. "Walt"
Rel. to husband: 4G-Grandbephes Rel. to vife:





image40.jpeg
23%
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Prepared by: Walter Orien Holliman Jr. "Walt"

EIRST GENERATION

1. Col. John' Smith’. Born, 1701, in England®. Died, 1783, in Botentort Co.,
VA. Military Sv in French & Indian, War. Burial: 1783, in Rockingham Co., VA.
Occupation: Patriot/Planter.

So much has been written by so many about this colorful pioneer and
military officer that it is difficult to include everything that is known. Here
I have attempted to paint a full picture. No two authorities agree on
everything. The most reliable sources are The Draper Manuscript Collection,
available on microfilm, which consists mainly of original documents, letters,
or copies of same, and mostly written by players in the game. A detailed
account of this ancestor may be found in Gordon Aronheim, "Col. John Smith
(1701-1783)", Augusta Historical Bulletin Vol. 14 No. 1, Spring 1978, published
by Augusta Co. Historical Society, Staunton, VA., pages 6-32. If nothing else,
this publication is useful because of the over 100 notes with references and
sources which has proven invaluable in locating original documents. Kegley’s
work is not about John Smith, but a large volume of the material has to do with
him. It is generally documented, but not always. Lyman Chalkley, Chronicles of
the Scotch Irish Settlement in Virginia , volumes I, II, and 111 contains an
abstract of all the relevant Augusta County Documents with a high degree of
accuracy. These and other sources are included in the endnotes.

Called the most accomodating and ardent patriot on the frontier in his
time, John Smith is frequently named as a Captain in official records, but he
was later promoted to Major and Colonel. He was a noted Indian Fighter during
the French and Indian Wars, a farmer and businessman, who -settled near
Sangerville, Augusta Co., VA. The following appears in Virkus’ List of
Inmigrant Ancestors in Vol. 7 of The Compendum of American Genealogy:

“Smith, John (ca. 1698-1776), officer British army, from Ireland to
Augusta Co., Va., ca. 1730; Capt. Va. Militia, 1742-60, served in Col. George
Washington’s regt. in French and Indian War; cdr. Ft. Vause, which was captured
by French 1756 and sent to France as a prisoner of war, 1756-58; m. in Ireland,
1719, Margaret."

While most authorities use a birth year of 1698, Aronheim cites Augusta
Co., VA Order Book 1 p. 350, dated 20 Nov. 1766, which states in a deposition
that John Smith was then 65 years of age, which would indicate a birth date of
1701 (Aronheim "Col. John Smith" p. 29).

Captain John Smith was land rich and cash poor, partly because he often
used his own funds to pay his Militia Troops or to buy their food and
equipment, often signing notes for amounts really the responsibility of the
government. There are a number of court actions over the years in Augusta
County dealing with this indebtedness, and in fact he spent one term in jail
for such debt.

William Fletcher Boogner, in "Gleanings", states that “Capt. John Smith,
born 1698, in England, settled with his parents in ... Ulster, Ireland; is said
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EIRST GENERATION
to have been an officer of the British army and married, in 1719,
Margaret . immigrated to America about 1730, with his wife and children;

settled Ist, in Chester Co., Pa., and then, about 1740 removed with the
McDowells and others, to Orange, now Augusta, County, Virginia, and on June 26,
1740, proved the importation of himself, his wife Margaret, their sons Abraham,
Henry, Daniel, John and Joseph and also Robert McDowell from the colony of
Penna.... He settled on land not far from "Narrow Back®, or Little North
Mountain, Tocated on the North River on or before 1740. When Augusta County was
taken_from Orange, the first court was held in Staunton Dec.9, 1745. On June
26, 1742, John Smith qualified as captain of the militia for Augusta County.

"As a protection against the inroads of the Indians, he had several rude
forts, or block-houses, constructed in the Valley, one of which was in the
county of Botentourt, on the James river, where Pattonsburg was subsequently
Tocated. This fort became the scene of memorable events.

“Shortly after his arrival on the frontier, about 1738, John Smith with
five other partners including the noted Col. James Patton, who assumed control
of the venture, buying out all partners save Smith and Zachaariah Lewis, were
granted a patent of 100,000 acres on the waters of the James and Roanoke
Rivers. These were Tands on the far ends of the earth then and this appears to
be perhaps the first blanket grant that could be surveyed piecemeal and not in
one huge tract, such as the Beverly Manor. Smith was put in charge of selling
and surveying the Tand, and was to receive for this, in addition to his sixth
part of the profits, ten percent for his work. He got nothing, and many years
later, in May 1767, filed a bill for a suit which came to Augusta County Court
for judgement in November 1770, when Col. Smith was 69 years old. He remained
in that work for ten years. (Aronheim "Col. John Smith", p. 25 citing Augusta
Co. VA., Court Judgements 1770-A; will of Col. James Patton, W B 2, p. 31 ff).

Orange County, VA was formed from Spottsylvania in 1734. The author is
uncertain whether the early entries relate to "our John Smith, as most sources
do not put him in Orange County until about 1738.

21 Jan 1734 John Smith took the oath as Justice of the Peace and Justice
of the county court in chancery. (Orange Co., VA Order Book 1, p. 1).

A In 1735 John Smith was Tisted with 3 tithables (Ibid, Tithables 1734-82,
p. 2).

Sept. 1736 John Littler and John Smith were named as Executors for estate
of Robert Whartington (Ibid, Order Book 1, p. 94-5).

In 1737 John Smith listed with 2 tithables and in 1738 with 3 tithables
In 1739 there are two John Smiths, one with 3 tithables and one with 1 tithable
(op cit, Tithables 1734-82 p. 8, i3, 18, 20).

The first record which we are certain belongs to "our" John Smith was 26
Jun 1740 when John Smith proved the importation from Ireland through 5
Philadelphia of himself, wife Margaret, Abraham, Henry, Daniel, John, Joseph {¢™
and Robert McDowell, and was allowed 50 acres for each head right.(*Kegley* p.
45).

3 Nov 1740. "Upon consideration of the petition of John Smith, Zachary
Lewis, William Waller, Robert Green and Benjamin Waller, leave is granted them
to Enter for and Survey one Hundred thousand acres of land in that part of
Orange County which will be in the County of Augusta when that county shall
take place on the River and branches of the Roanoke and the Branches of James
River. (Minutes of the Council, P. R. 0. Colonial Office, London, Class 5, Vol.
1423 per “Kegley" p. 60). "This grant is different from those the council had
been accustomed to giving in that no particular tract of land is described.” It
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could apply to any available tract of land within the boundaries described.
Ermn the beginning, John Smith was the only one charged with selling the land
Ibid.).

24 June 1742 John Buchanan, John Smith, Samuel Gay, James Cathray and
John Christian qualified as Captains of Militia. (*Annals of Augusta® p. 43,
"Kegley” p. 139). John Smith’s Company #1 consisted of John Smith, Captain;
John Moffet, Lieutenant; William Anderson, Ensign; Daniel Daniston, Sergeant,
etc (Chalkley II p. 508; Preston Papers, Aug. Co. Muster Roll 1742).

March 30, 1745, John Smith patented 400 acres of land on Mossy Creek
including the big spring ("4 Flags" p. 156).

In May of 1745 the order of Council granting the 100,000 acres was
renewed to John Smith and others for 50,000 acres. ("Kegley" p. 60).

John Smith was mentioned in a lawsuit in County Court Judgements, Augusta
County, Feb. 1745/6. This suit comes to court again in April and June of 1746.
Col. Smith and George Breckenridge are the principals, and the suit is over a
matter that occoured in Orange County in 1739, proving Smith was in the country
by then. (Aronheim p. 7).

8 Feb 1745/6 John Smith witnessed a deed George and Robert Breckenridge
to Samuel Wilson (Chalkley IIT p. 252; Aug. Co. VA DB 1 p. 12).

In 1746 Thomas Lewis surveyed for John Smith 100 ac lying on N sd of land
he lived on at a place called "The Great Meadows" N bank of N br. of Shenandoah
*4 Flags” p. 156).

1 Jan 1746 John Smith gave a note to Patrick Dowell for L.1 payable on
demand to William Hughes (Aronheim p. 8; Aug. Co. VA Court Judgements, Sept.

1747).
Early in 1746 John Smith was elected to the Augusta County Vestry, and ”7 —
attended meetings 6 Apr 1747 and and 20 Jul 1747.

12 May 1746 Joseph Russel] and John Smith make affidavit (Chalkley III p.
18; Aug. Co. VA Order Book 1 p. 45).

18 June 1746 John Smith witnessed a deed Robert Green of Orange Co. to
Robert McKay (Ibid, p. 255; DB 1, p. 102).

19 June 1746. Jno. Smith wit. deed Zeruiah Borden, widowand Benj.

Borden, Exrs of Benj. Borden to Francis McCune (Chalkley III p. 455, 436; Aug.
Co DB 1 p. 102, 120)

Nov. 1746. Benjamin Borden vs. John Smith--Benjamin and Magdalene, his
wife, extrx of John McDowell. Writ dated 26 Jul 1746 (Chalkley I p. 295;

Augusta Co. Court Judgements, Nov. 1746).

19 Mar 1746/7. David Davis and John Smith to lay off a road from the Co.
Ho. to top Blue Ridge, near Rockfish Gap, and from thence to Falls of James
River and Fredricksburg (Chalkley IIT p. 27; Aug. Co. VA 0B 1 p. 175).

25 May 1747 Augusta Co., VA. James Patton, John Smith, George Anderson
and William Finley sat on a court martial regarding bounties for the killing of
wolves ("Draper Collection, Preston Papers,” 1q035). 3 Sept. 1747 John Lewis,
John Brown, and John Wilson issued instructions to the sheriff concerning
payments for killing wolves. (Ibid, 10036-37).

Probably the site of one of his earlier homes was on a tract of 400 acres
patented 25 June 1747 on the South Fork of the North River of the Shenandoah
adjacent to Col. James Woods. John Smith sold it to Silas Hart 5 June 1749,
with wife Margaret releasing Dower. (Aronheim p. 6; DB 2 p. 250, Augusta Co.,
VA).

In 1747 The settlers on the Southernmost branch of the S. bank of the
Potomac were John Patton, Sr. and Jr., Roger and William Dyer, William
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He witnessed a deed on Craig’s Creek 21 Nov. 1753. (Chalkley III; Augusta
Co., VADB 5 p. 490).

In Nov. 1753 John Smith was among those named to work on a road from
Edmonstons Mill to Fork Meeting House ("Kegley’s Frontier® p. 145).

In 1753 or 1754 Col. Smith was sent for by his neighbors the Looneys to
witness a drunken act of his old friend Robert Looney which resulted in his
being a star witness in numerous lawsuits ten years later."01d Robert had a
numerous family of grown and married sons. His son Absalom agreed to return
home to live, and he made an agreement with a couple of his brothers Daniel and
Peter. Robert claimed later he had been drunk when this agreement was made and
that Daniel’s title to his brother Absalom was no good (Aronheim p. 10).

21 Mar 1754. John Smith a surety for Susannah Patton, admx of Jacob
Patton (Chalkley III p. 33; Aug. Co. VA DB 2 p. 20). John Smith vs. John
Pickens--Motion. To judgement obtained in Orange Co. 1743 )Chalkley I p. 369;
Aug. Co. Ct. Judg. March 1754-).

19 Sept 1754 witnessed a bill of sale William Scott, yeoman, to John
Maxwell, yeoman (Ibid, p. 36; Sept. 1754).

In 1755 Capt. John Smith Tived near Looney’s Ferry and helped in the
construction of a fort there ("Kegley" p. 69). According to May, as Captain of
Augusta County Militia Company Number 1, he was present at Braddock’s
disasterous defeat in 1755,

26 Nov. 1755. The will of Col. James Patton, dated 1 Sep 1750, was
proved. The entry includes the fact that "Testator was agent for John Smith,
Zachary Lewis, Wn. Waller, Wm. Green, Wm Parks for the Roanoke and James River
Grants (Chalkiey III p. 41; Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 131ff).

Governor Dinwiddie, after being informed of the death of Col. Patton and
the destruction of the Drapers Meadows settlement, in letters dated 11 Aug.
1755 outlining the Sandy Expedition to take the Shawnee towns on the Ohio
River, to Col. Buchanon, he advised that a company of 40 men was to be raised
by Smith. In a Tetter to Haj. John Smith he said; "Col. Patton had my positive
orders to appoint you comander of the Company of Rangers raised in your
county. How he came not to obey it, I know not, however, you may raise fifty
men which with the company commanded by Captain Preston and a company from
Lunenburg of 50 men that have orders to march immediately to your assistance I
conceive will be enough to scour the woods of the enemy and encourage the
people to return to their plantations...” On 13 August Dinwiddie wrote to Major
Lewis that Captain Preston and Smith were "to be at no place”, meaning that
they were to be rangers with no permanent station (Draper Collection, Preston
Papers 10090).

John Smith did raise a company and went on the abortive expedition to Big
Sandy in Feb. 18- March 11, 1756, returning with his men near starvation when
promised rations did not materialize.. (“Four Flags" p. 152-3; Draper
Collection, Preston Papers, p.10090, 96-133 and Frontier Wars Papers p. 96).

The Dinwiddie Papers indicate that early in 1756 the Governor in a letter
to Major Lewis says he had ordered Capt. Hogg with 40 men, that a draft of 60
men would be made from the companies of Capts. Preston and Smith, to be
comnanded by the latter, for the Sandy Creek affair. (*Annals of Augusta Co."
p. 129).

"Captain John Smith was one of the leaders, with Captains Hogg, Smith,
Woodson, Preston and others, of the Sandy Creek Expedition against the
Shawnees, described as one of the most tragic_campaigns of the Virginia
frontier. Promised provisions did not materialize. Colonel Preston’s Diary of
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the Sandy Creek Expedition relates that they set out on 9 Feb 1756 from Ft.
Prince George and was later joined by Cherokee Indians and Companies of
Captains Hog, Smith, Overton, Woodson, Pearis, Dunlap and others; left Ft.
Frederick 19 Feb. for Shawnee towns; traveled via Bear Garden, Burk’s Garden
and head of Clinch River and reached head of Sandy Creek 28 Feb; marched down
Sandy Creek for several days; men mutinied for lack of provisions: 8 Mar all
but the officers and twenty or thirty men deserted. ("Draper Collection:
Preston Papers” 10096-133).

March 1756. King vs Oneal. John, Henry and Daniel Smith with several
others signed a petition saying they were daily troubled by John 0’Neal " a
person of evil fame, who being 111 natured evil, designing, citigious, wicked
man....0"Neal found quilty (Chalkley I p. 313; Aug. Co. Court Judgements March
1756 [A]).

*15 Apri1 1756. The committee (of the House of Burgesses) appointed to
inquire into the conduct of the officers and men in the late expedition against
the Shawnees reported that they had examined several witnesses and agreed that
Major Lewis, who commanded the expedition, discharged his duty with integrity
and resolution and that the i11 success thereof was entirely owing to the
refractory and mutinous behavior of Capt. Obediah Woodson, John Smith and John
Montgonery who commanded the volunteers. Whereupon it was ordered that an
address be made to the governor to desire that his Honor would be pleased to
stop the pay of the said Woodson, Smith and Montgomery, and that the officers
never more be employed as officers in his Majestie’s service (Journals 1756-8,
P. 369 per "Kegley" p. 227-8).

20 April 1756. John Smith appeared before the committee and presented
witnesses who cleared his name. It was resolved that the said John Smith did
not misbehave himself, and acted with honor, and that he ought to receive his
pay. Ordered that the’comnittee...make an ailowance to the said John Smith for
his pay..... (Journals 1758-61 p. 20, 26 per "Kegley" p.228).

8 May 1756. John Smith and Margaret to Mathew Hall L.30, 250 ac. on North
Branch of the South River of the Shanando. Teste: Joshus and John Mathews, Jr.
(Chalkley III p. 342; Aug. Co. DB 7 p. 307).

225, 1" 1796 John Smith signed a receipt for beef for his company (*Kegley” p.
9).

John Smith made a receipt to Alexander Mackie for supplies for Ft. Vause
(Journals of House of Burgesses p. 439).

16 Aug 1756 John Smith claimed 400 ac on a br of the Roanoke River called
Goose Creek including the Great Lick ("Kegley’s Frontier p. 109).

25 June 1756. Captain John Smith was taken prisoner by the French and
Indians at Ft. Vause, now Montgomery County, VA. at the head of the Roanoke, 10
miles from present day Christansburg. (Draper Collection, 10083). A list of
casualties in the Indian Wars in 1755-6 1ists Capt. Smith and Peter Looney as
taken prisoner at Ft. Vause and Joseph Smith killed. John, Jr. is not listed.
17 June 1757. John Smith’s will presented. Exrs. refused to act. Abraham Smith,
one of the Exrs. and heir-at-law, was summoned, but failed to appear; two of
the witnesses are dead. Robert Renix, the remaining witness, proved jt, and the
Court, knowing the signatures of the testator and witnesses, it is recorded. On
dune 20, 1757 John Smith--suit abates by death of. (Chalkley I p. 76 Augusta
Co. 0B 5, p. 371).

From Boogher, “Gleanings”, we learn that "Captain John Smith, with
seventeen men, held a (private) fort, called Fort Vause...which was Tocated on
the head waters of the Roanoke river, (the westernmost and southernmost outpost
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of that time) about ten miles from where Christiansburg now stands. (per
Aronheim : just west of present Shawsville, VA and Just south of US 11). This
fort was invested by three hundred French and Indians, and after a brave
resistance for three days, the garrison agreed to surrender- the fort, upon a
stipulation allowing them to return to their homes. Astonished amg mortified at
finding so few men in the fort, the enemy disregarded the terns of the
gurrender and held the survivors--now only nine or ten in number-.as prisoners.
Two of Capt. Smith's sons were with him; John, who was wounded during the
seige, and killed by an Indian after the surrender. The prisoners were taken

faper D) Tipping open the Tining of his coat and sewing it between. whjch
defeated the most diligent search for it. On arriving at Paris, Capt. Smith
produced the agreement, and, upon exhibiting it to the proper authorities, was
Promptly released, and with his two companions, was sent to London. whecs'he
received quite an ovation, a street being named in his honor-.

In June 1756 Andrew Lewis wrote a letter to Gov. Dinwiddie explaining the
burning of Ft. Vause, and requested that a new fort be built there (*Draper
CoTlection” Preston Papers, 100131-135).

Having received no word of any survivors at Ft. Vause, all survivors
having been taken captiveand the fort destroyed by fire. Augucta County
authorities concluded that all had been slain (*Four Flags® p. 83) Teas the
i1l of John Smith was presented in Augusta County, for probate (Augusta Co.
prder Book V., p. 371 & Will Book A, 1770-1800, Va. State Library. Richmond,
Reel 20 p. 180-1).

2oy 1756 John Mathews Jr. elected to Augusta Parish Vestry to replace
Hajor John Smith (now a captive) (Chalkley IT p. 445: Aug. Co. Paris Vestry
Book p. 186).

The Will, dated May 7, 1753 and witnessed by James Patton, Robert Remick
and Humphrey Madison was’ probated June 17,1757 and "orders the following
disposition of property: First, he devises to his wife Margaret sl the stock
of horses and cattle, all his household goods, a11 moveables whatsoever, and
whatever tract of his land she might choose for her own use ami enjoyment
Stipulating that her death this part of the estate is to be bestowss me their
Jaughter Louisa...his remaining Tand to be divided equally among his sons
William, Joseph, David, Jonathan, and James Jordan. And third. b bequeaths his
jons Abraham, Daniel, Henery and'John Five shillings each. He names bupac
Harrison, Silas Hart and his oldest son Abrahan as executors. The wiz 1o

PeceUiTing seasons symbolizes plenty.... The signature on the will is in a bold
hand." (“Four Flags™ p.154).

17 Nov 1757 Last will of John Smith, Jr., was proved, with brother
Abraham relinquishing all rights, apparently refusing also to accept the death
of his brother. On Nov. 18, Abraham Smith, eldest son and heirste o o John
Smith, now a prisoner in the French Dominions, refused to admr.. whereupon
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Israel Christian, a creditor, qualifies during Smith’s absence. (Chalkley I, p.
78; Aug. Co. 0B 6 p. 43, 51).

18 Nov. 1757. Israel Christian’s bond (with Charles Campbell and Abraham
Smith) as administrator of John Smith, now a Captive in the French Dominions
(Chalkley III p. 47, Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 220).

12 Jan 1758 Margaret Smith gave a receipt to William Preston for L.20
which was allowed her to ease the distress of she and her children by the
assembly in the previous May and received by Preston from the Treasurer
("Draper Collection” Preston Papers, 600140). Aroneim (p. 16) reports that the
Colonel rode over with his sister Mary to make the payment, Margret (sic) Smith
*signing in a bold hand".

Smith apparently returned from his captivity in the period beween his
wife receiving the above payment and the next entry.

17 Feb 1758 Col. Patton’s estate shows Maj. John Smith owes for land
bought 4 Oct. 1754 (Chalkley IIX p. 75; Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 205).

20 Mar 1758 Robert Donald vs. Israel Christian, admr. John Smith. John
Smith having returned from captivity it is ordered that the administration of
his estate be revoked (Chalkley I, p. 79; Aug. Co. OB 6 p. 124).

"4 April 1758 John Smith presented a claim that in the year 1755 he was
appointed Captain of a company of rangers, and continued in the service until
he was made a prisoner in 1756; and that he expended large sums of his own
money in purchasing provisions and other necessaries for his company, but being
taken prisoner had no opportunity of applying to have his accounts settled till
this time.

"April 3, 1758. A Memorial of John Smith, late a captain of a company of
Rangers on the frontiers of this colony, had been read in council and referred
to the House, setting forth, That in June 1756 the said Smith in Ft, Vause, in
Augusta, with a small party, was attacked by the enemy, which (after having
defended it till he had but three men left) he was at length obliged to
surrender: That the Enemy then most inhumanely murdered his eldest son before
his face, and carried him prisoner to the Shawnese Towns and French Forts, and
from thence to Quebec, where he was put on a Cartel ship and carried to
England. That from the observations he made, while a prisoner, he is of opinion
that a small party of men (about 800) might, if properly conducted, easily
destroy those Indian Towns and perhaps some of the French Forts.-- That while
in England he had the honour to be introduced to Mr. Secretary Pitt, to whom he
communicated his observations, who highly approved his scheme, and recommended
hin to Lord London to encourage him and promote such an enterprise.--That he
has Tost three sons and great part of his fortune in the service of his
country, and that being sti1l ready and zealous for his majesty’s Service, and
well acquainted with the Route necessary to be taken to distress the Enemy in
those parts. he humbly offers himself to undertake such an Expedition if it
should be approved of." (Journals of the House of Burgesses, 1756-58, p. 499
per "Kegley: p. 233-4).

"April 12, 1758. The committee to whom this petition was referred
reported that it appears that John Smith WAS appointed a Captain of a company
of Rangers by commission bearing date the 25th of May 1756, and taken prisoner
the 25th of June following, at Vause’s Fort, that he had several of his own
guns there, which were made use of in defence of the fort, an horse employed in
going to mill, a mare which he rode thither a few days before and several other
things, all which were taken by the enemy in the reduction of the fort, and
that he has but lately returned from captivity.-- He ought to be allowed the
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sum of 1.15/10, being 10 shillings per day, for his pay as captain from the
date of his commission to the time of his captivity; and the further sum of
L.100 for the arms and other things furnished for the use of the fort, and as a
reward for his bravery in the defence thereof" (Journal of the House of
Burgesses 1756-1758, 505 per "Kegley" p. 233-4).

A summary of the payments he received were pay as a major L.0/13/0; for
horse impressed and killed L.9/12/66; balance of his pay and sons pay as
Tieutenent L.20/15/0; for provisions, horse hire and enlisting men L.199/0.

He was allowed L.83.13.9 prisoner pay for his time of internment (“Annals
" p. 150-1). He also collected back pay for himself and his son John, but,
unaccountably, not for Joseph who died during captivity.

17 Nov. 1758 John Smith qualifed Colonel of Militia. William Preston
qualified Major of Militia (Chalkley I p. 82; Aug. Co., VA OB 6, p. 223).

20 Nov 1758 John Smith was again appointed as a Vestryman, and served
until 1769. "He was an ardent Episcopalian® ("4 Flags" p. 157; Aronheim p. 18;
Aug. Co. Vestry Book p. 233).

In 1759, he qualified as Coroner, and on May 8th Colonel Smith and John
Buchanan made an accounting of the flour at Ft. Fauquirer (this is the small
fort built at Looney’s Ferry). ("Draper Collection” Preston Papers, 20020).

18 May 1759. John Smith’s bond, with Abraham and Daniel Smith as
sureties, 3 adnr for Jno. Witchell (or Mitchell) (Chalkley III p. 54; Aug. Co.
W8 2 p. 314).

27 July 1759 William Preston orders Capt. James Lockhart to draft 20 men
and send them to the part of the calf pasture *that is most annoyed by the
Indians" in the absence of Colonels Smith and Buchanan. (Ibid, 300138). It is
unknown where the two had gone.

In 1759 John Smith was granted 100 ac. S sd of James River ("Kegley’s
Frontier" p. 162).

26 Sep 1759 Benj. Davis of Orange County by power of attorney to Elnathan
Davies to John Smith, Gent., 100 ac. S side James River cor. Robert Looney for
L.50. James Patton, Robert Looney were other early settlers in this Mill Creek
comnunity. John Smith’s land was on the south side of Mill Creek adj. Looney
and Benjamin Davis. He purchased the Davis land and entered the land where
Pattonsburg stands, and lived here until his death (Augusta Co., VA DB 8 p. 220
per "Kegley" p. 83, 162).

21 Nov 1759 John and Margaret Smith sold a 400 ac tract on Goose Creek at
the Great Lick, on side of Smith’s Creek, near mouth of Lick Branch (now the
site of downtown Roanoke City) to Malcomb Campbell, who owned adjacent land.
Sent to William Campbell, the heir-at-law by his order Oct. 1773 (Aronheim p.
195 Aug. Co. VA DB 8 p. 238).

23 Nov 1759 Abraham Smith qualified Major of Militia, William Craven
qualified Ensign. John Smith qualifies admr. of Benj. Davis, dec’d. Elithorn
Davis, his oldest brother, having refused to take the admn. John Smith took the
usual’oaths (Augusta Co. WB 2 p. 349 per “Kegleys Frontier* p. 88 and Chalkley
1p. 85; Aug. Co. 0B 6 p. 335).

26 and 27 Aug 1759 Col. Smith made his last recorded appearance as a
Vestryman (Augusta County Vestry Book, p. 263-4 per Aronheim p. 19).

17 Feb 1760. John Smith was a surety for Eve Aphinger’s bond as admx of
Peter Apinger (Chalkley III p. 61; Aug. Co. WB 3 p.

13 Mar 1760/19 May 1761, John Saith and Margaret Smith witnessed the will
of John Bowen. They, with Louisa and Peter Looney, who had served at Ft. Vause,
and Col. John Buchanon went the 25 miles upriver to the home of John and Lillie
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Bowen, on the North side of the River about half-way between present Clifton
Forge and Eagle Rock. The visit was to attend the Bowens during the serious
ilness of the elder John Bowen, and at this time all of the adults present
signed as witnesses to his will, including John and Margaret and Jonathan, but
not Louvisa, who was under age. "It is well known by record of the John Smiths
that Louvisa married Rees Bowen, son of John and Lillie Bowen," probably in
1762 (Aronhein p. 19-20; Chalkley I1I p. 62; Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 24).

Botetourt County Court, 13 April 1760. "Peter Looney, heir at Taw of
Peter Looney, dec’d, served in Capt. John Smith’s Company of Rangers last war
on the frontiers of this Colony as a Sergeant till he was taken prisoner by the
Indians in the year 1756, and that he did not return from them for near two
years, and that he never proved such service nor obtained any land, and is ord.
to be certified.” John Smith, heir at law of Joseph Smith, made a similar
claim. (Summers "Annals* p.313).

Aug 1760. Patrick Martin filed suit against John Smith and Margaret
(Chalkley I p. 323; Aug. Co. Court Judgements Aug. 1760).

17 Aug 1760 Col. Smith , although a Colonel, accepted assignment as
Captain of a company of Regulars, or enlisted soldiers, initally under the
command of Col. William Byrd 111 and later of Lt. Col. Adam Stephen, on the
Expedition against the Cherokees. Smith did not actually march against the
Cherokees, but led a company based first at Fort Lewis then at Fort Fredrick at
Drunkards Bottom on the New River below present day Radford. For this service
he obtained a warrant from Lord Dinsmore for three thousand acres of land
(Aronheim p. 20 and "4 Flags" p. 155 and "Annals of SW VA" p. 314).

Sept. 1760. Col. John Smith made a deposition in the case of Joseph Ray
vs. William Chandler, both of Bedford County. In August, being at Fort Lewis,
he (Colonel Smith) heard Chandler sell to the plantiff Ray L.100 worth of goods
to be delivered to Ray at certain places--the goods were not delivered at any
time during the campaign. Capt. John Blagg was with Col. Smith at Ft. Lewis in
Aug. 1760 during the campaign under Col. Boyd against the Cherokees. Col. John
Smith and company debtor to John Hamilton for provisions at Drunkard Bottom
Sept. 1760. While at Drunkard Bottom Col. Smith assumed the obligations of his
soldiers for goods and provisions (County Court Judgements Chalkley I, 341,
343, 349, 493 per’Kegley” p. 269-70).

On’that same day, "Colo. John Smith having made it appear to the court by
satisfactory proof that he served as a Captain of a company of new lines in the
year 1760 under the command of Colo. Byrd on the Expedition against the
Cherokees and was legally disbanded, for which service he obtained a warrant
from Lord Dunmore for three thousand acres of land. It further appears to this
court by due and satisfactory proof that the said John Smith had been appointed
a Captain of a Company of Rangers in August, 1755, that he raised the said
Company in Augusta County and continued on duty untill he was ordered on an
expedition against the Shawnees under the command of Major Andrew Lewis and
incorporated with a detachment of the Virginia Regiment and served until the
Expedition was at an end. And that he was further continued on duty by the
Governors orders till the 24th day of June 1756, when the Fort he then
commanded was attacked by a body of French and indians and the garrison were
made_prisoners and taken to Canada and that he did not return to his family
until the year 1758, that he never received or obtained any warrant for land
for said service, and that he has been an inhabitant of Virginia ever since his
return from his captivity.” (Ibid., p. 314-315).

In August 1760 he was stationed with his company at Ft. Lewis (now Salem,
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VA), and witnessed a transaction between two merchants, and with Peter Looney,
2gain serving under him, acted as suretjes to the transaction. The merchant

Suer debt, and even imprisonment {Aronhein, p. 20-1; Augusta co® Court
Judgements 1765-B and D, Noy" 1766)

The First people in Borden's Grant and the Fork of Janes were alnost
yholly Scotch-Irish in associasjon and ian i igi i

P- 21-2: Aug. Co. VA DB ] P357; DB 9 p. 277; W 3'p. 24)
19 May 1761. Wil of John Bowen proved by witnesses "gno. and Jonathan
Smith and Jno. Buchanan (Chalkley I1T P- 62; Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 24).

In Novenber 1767 , former soldier, John Kenney sueq Jdohn Smith for his
%ages as a soldier...L.q for g months service (Aronheim P- 21: Aug. Co. Court
i -A).

19 Nov. 1762. John Smith’s bond with Henry Smith as surety as
administrator of James Lawson (Chi]k]ey I p. 73; Aug. Co. B 3 p. 197).

19,Nov 1762 John Smith appointeqauiin® James Lawson, dec’d (Ibid. ‘vo1. 1
P- 102 Aug. Co. 0B 7 p. 3g0):

4 Feb 1763. Jno. Smith witnessed a deed John Thompson and Susannah to
Henry Ferguson on br. Glade creek (Chalk]ey III p. 394; Aug. Co. DB 11 p. 149).
15 Feb 1763. Jno. Smith wes o surety for Marha M. Gat1ive"s bong se s’ Jas.
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Gatlive (Ibid p. 76; WB 3 p. 214).

9 Apr. 1763 To Abraham Smith mortgage from John Smith for L.36, 100 ac on
James River adj. Robert Looney. Mortgage 500 years (Chalkley III p. 396;
Augusta Co., VA'DB 11 p. 183 per "Kegley" p. 349).

May 1763. Benjamin vs. Smith. John Smith sued over a note in payment for
861 wt. of beef "for use of my Company and the Cherokee Indians at the rate of
10/C., L.4.6.3 1/2" (Chalkley p. 486: Aug. Co. Ct. Judg. May 1763-B).

4 Jun 1763 Survey for John Smith 98 ac on James River S sd of br adj
Robert Looney and adj land on which he now dwells (Augusta Co. VA Survey Book
2, p. 35 per Kegley p. 349).

10 Sep 1763 John Smith wit. deed John Mann and Demis to Thomas Meek
(Chalkley III p. 416; Aug. Co. DB 11 p. 735).

16 Nov 1763 John Smith and others ordered to view the roads from Vaances
to the lead mines (Ibid, v. I p. 110; Aug. Co. 0B 8 p. 342),

21 Mar 1764 John Smith and David Looney securities for John Griffth,
ggmn of Robert 6riffith, dec’d (Aronheim p. 23; Aug. Co. VA WB 3 p. 220,

21 May 1764. John Smith wit. deed Matthew Patton to Robert Davis S. fork
of S. Br. of Potomac (Chalkley IIT p. 408; Aug. Co. DB 11 p. 545).

June 1764 Stewart vs. Smith--25 May 1762, John Smith note to John Green
for 1.2.4.0 C, M. VA. Test: Thomas Branan. Assigned to John Stewart (Chalkley i
p. 448; Aug. Co. Ct. Judg. June 1764-C).

28 August 1764 John Hamilton sued John Smith for debt arising out of the
Cherokee Expedition. Smith admitted the debt, and payment was required
inmediately. Unable to pay, Col. Smith was sent to jail. (Aronheim p. 24: Aug.
Co. Court Judgements Hamilton v. Smith Aug. 1765).

November 1764. Smith vs. Bowyer.-- Mortgage, Col. John Smith to Bowyer,
1762. Recorded. Witness Wilton Walton (Chalkley I p. 329; Aug. Co. Ct. Judg.
Nov. 1764-A).

In 1765 John Smith was the star witness in the continuing saga of the
Looney family which began in 1753 or 1754. (Chalkley I p. 448; Augusta Co.
Court Judgements May 1765-C and Original Papers filed with Aug. Co. Court
August 1764-8) .

May 1765 Articles of agreement between Robert Luney and Peter and David
Luney where Robert conveyed his homestead to his sons. John Smith was a witness
(Challkley I p. 493-4; Aug. Co. Court Judgements May 1765 [C]).

21 May 1765 John Smith served as security for Isabella, widow of Abraham
Biss as Extrx. (Chalkley IIT p. 85; Aug. Co. WB_3 p. 394).

Aronhein feels that John Smith was probably jailed in September 1765 and
probably remained at most for a few weeks or months because of his powerful and
wealthy friends, as well as his own prosperous sons (Aronheim p. 24).

Oct 1765. Hamilton vs Smith--Col. John Smith, debtor to John Hamilton for
goods for his soldiers at the Drunkard Bottom, and himself, Sept. 1760: Col.
John Smith, Lieut. Hansley, John Smith Boman, John LuKis, John Hamilton, Stamp
Evins, Richard Dodd, Richard Newport, Thomas Diegs, and John Cotril (Chalkley I
p. 341: Aug. Co. Court Judgements Oct. 1765 [D]). This was continued in Oct.
1765 (Ibid p. 349).

16 Oct 1765 Col. Smith deeded to William and Thomas Crow for L.50 two
tracts of land on Craigs Creek, one of 195 ac and the other 213 ac. On 24 Nov
1767 the Crows mortgaged this land for L. 100,11.1 (Chalkley III p. 466,
Aronheim p. 25; Aug. Co. DB 12 p. 392 and DB 14 p. 307).

In 1765 and 1766 John Smith and Peter Looney were defendants being sued
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as guarantors in a merchants transaction during the Cherokee Wars of 1760. It
was in one of these suits that he affirmed that he was born in 1701 (Aronheim,
p. 20-1: Augusta Co. Court Judgements Nov. 1766).

10 July 1766 John Smith entered Tand at the mouth of Purgatory Creek,
just across the James from the present town of Buchanan, 400 ac. where present
town of Pattonsburg is located. He sold this tract in 1769 to Col. John
Buchanan’s widow. (Aug. Co. DB 14 p. 303, DB 15 p. 246 per Aronheim p. 25).

Nov. 1766 Joseph Ray vs. William Chandler--Articles of agreement , &c.
6th Aug. 1760 between William Chandler od Bedford County and Joseph Ray, of the
said county. Chandler to deliver to Ray goods valued at L.100 at Drunkards
Bottom. John Smith, John Sutton, Peter Looney as sureties for Ray. Chandler did
not comply and sues for damages. Col. John Smith makes deposition stating he is
aged 65 and Tives 60 miles from court.(Chalkley I p. 131, 493; Aug. Co. Court
Judgements Nov. 1766 (B); Aug. Co. OB X p. 350).

28 Feb 1767. John Smith made over some of his slaves to his son Jonathan
for L.90. One of the witnesses was William, brother of his son-in-law Rees
Bowen (Aug. Co. VA DB 14 p. 229 per Aronheim p. 25).

May 1767 Court. John Smith agent for the James River and Roanoke land
grant files bill against James Patton’s executors for his pay from 1741 to
1751. The whole grant except Smith’s land had come into the hands of Patton’s
executors (Augusta Court Judgements, Nov. 1770-A, Chalkley I p. 361 per
“Kegley" p. 309).

13 Aug 1767 John Smith served as a witness with William Christian and
William Fleming and Daniel McNeal to a deed from Joshua McCormick to Israel
Christian L. 25 for horses and cattle (Chalkley III; Aug. Co. DB 13 p. 453).

May 1768. English vs. Smith. Sept. 25 1761. Note to William Ingles or
Cumpaney, etc. (Signed) John Smith. Test: Thomas Coaperd (Chalkley I p. 462;
Aug. Co. Ct. Judg. May 1768).

Nov. 1768 another due bill was presented by William English for an
indebtedness of 25 Sept 1761 (Aug. Co. Court Judgements William Ingles v.
Smith, May 1768 per Ibid). 27 July 1768 the Colonel again went up the river to
witness the will of John Bowen, Jr. a brother of his son-in-law Rees Bowen.
Joseph Looney was a witness and William Bowen an executor. Proved 17 Aug 1768
(Aug. Co. W8 3 p. 136 per Aronheim p. 26).

In 1769 the House of Burgesses allowed John Smith L.83/135/9 for the time
he was a prisoner in the French Dominions ("4 Flags® p. 155).

25 June 1769 Colonel Smith witnessed the will of his friend and neighbor
Col. John Buchanan, son-in-Taw of his former land partner Col. James Patton. On
16 Aug 1769 Colonel Smith, Jonathan Smith and George Skillern were named
appraisers for his property and goods on the James River (Aug. Co. WB 12 p.
375, W8 4 p. 233, OB 13 p. 322 per Aronheim p. 26).

4 Sept 1769/13 Nov 1770. John Smith, James and Thomas and Elinor Crow
witnessed the will of his often drunk old friend and neighbor Robert Looney
(Botentourt Co., VA WB A p. 3 per "Kegley" p. 362).

Botentourt County was_struck off from Augusta County at the end of 1769.
Botetort County Court in 1770 ordered a study to determine the best way to run
a road of "the several ways proposed for roads (by Mrs. Buchanan’s, Wm. Crow’s,
John Smith’s, and William Rowland,s) from Walter Stewarts on the north side of
the river to the courthouse.” (Minutes of Botentourt Co. Court, MAR. 1770 per
Summers *Annals”, p.85).

14 Aug 1770 Col. Smith journeyed to Fincastle, seat of the new county, to
prove the will of Looney (Botentourt Co., VA WB A p.4 per Aronheim p.27).
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16 Aug 1770 Margaret Smith, wife of John *for L.12 and good and diverse
reasons™ sold sold horses and crops to Samuel McCutcheon, Sr. On the 17th John
sold for L.3.10.10, cows to James and Samuel Clark with William McCutcheon as
witness. Also on the 17th Smith sold cows and horses to James Clark, Jr., for
L.27. These sales may have been to satisfy the debt to William English cited
above. (Aronheim p. 27; Aug. Co. VA DB 16 p. 438, 439, and 498).

24 Sep 1770 Col. Smith sold his son James for L.100 a 100 ac tract on the
S. sd of James River. This is the first mention of his son James in official
records and would indicate a probable birth date of about 1750 (Aronheim, p.
27; DB 1 p. 90 Botentourt Co., VA).

In November 1770 the Augusta Court ruled on the suit John Smith vs
Patton’s Executors filed in May 1767 regarding commissions and fees in payment
for the land sold in the 100,000 acre tract on the Roanoke and James Rivers in
1741, with John employed from 1741 to 1751. (Aronheim p. 27; Aug. Co. Court
Judgements Nov 1770-A).

May 1771. Alexander Stewart vs. John Smith and Margaret, his wife, late
Margaret Clark -- Debt. Writ, 15 Jan 1770. Bond dated 20 January, 1769
(Chalkley T p. 364; Aug. Co. Court Judgements May 1771 [B]).

"In 1771 Smith started an action against McCall and Company to recover
the equity he had been swindled out of by William Crow.” This was settled in
May 1773, Augusta Court. (*Col. John Smith" p. 27).

14 Aug. 1771 he made a duplicate deed to Malcom Campbell for the 400 ac
comprising the Big Lick, now the site of Roanoke (Aronheim 27; Aug. Co. VA DB 8
p. 238).

1772. John Smith took the oath as a deputy sheriff in Botentourt Co. ("4
Flags" p. 156).

27 May 1772 John Smith witnessed will of John Chrisman (Chalkley III p.
130; Aug. Co. WB 6 p. 114).

17 Aug 1722 Patent to John McDaniel, 10 July 1767, Teste : John Smith,
David McDonald, Issac McDonald (Chalkley I p. 521; Aug. Co. DB 18 p. 318).

In 1773 a case, filed much earlier, came before the court. Testimony was
that John told his son Jonathan and his son George to get a suit of clothes
from William Crow’s store in Staunton and charge it to him. Crow accomodated
them for he had a scheme to defraud the Colonel. While the Colonel was in
prison Crow came to him and offered to pay off his debts and secure his freedom
if he, Smith, would mortgage two tracts of land on Craigs Creek, which the
Colonel did. Crow paid off the debts but also sold the land, then sold Smith’s
bond to McCall and Company who later sued for payment. Thus Crow got the land
for nothing, and Smith still owed the debt, and Filed suit in 1771-1773 for
recovery (Aronheim p.24-5: Aug. Co. Court Judgements May 1773-A Col John Smith
v. McCaul and Co.). Also, in May 1773, the suit against McCall and Co. was
settled (Aronheim, p. 27; Aug. Co. Court Judgements 1773-A).

16 Nov 1773’ John Smith qualified Deputy Sheriff (Chalkley I p. 175; Aug.
Co. 0B XV p. 223).

On 16 Dec. 1773 "he received a warrant from Lord Dinsmore for 3,000 acres
of Tand for having served as a captain of the two new levies in Fincastle
County.” ( Boten. Co., VA DB 2 p. 2, 50). (Note: an entry of the Botentourt
Court in 1760 indicated this warrant had already been granted).

G 2ohr)| Smith turned in a list of delinquent taxpayers for 1773-4 (Chalkley
p. 421).

On Mar. 15, 1774 he assigned 1000 acres of the warrant to George

Skillern, wit: William Crow, his former enemy, Joseph Looney and son James
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Smith. 9 August he assigned 1000 acres to his son James."(Aronheim p. 28; Aug.
Co. VA DB 1 pp. 12, 102, 120).

In 1774 John Smith entered 100 ac. for his daughter Margaret Reed Smith
("4 Flags" p. 157).

Botentort Co. Court 15 Feb. 1775, Colonel Smith was exempted from paying
any levies to the county for the future. (Summers "Annals® p. 240).

9 Mar 1776/10 Apr 1779. John Smith witnessed the will of Mathew Emachs
(Botent. Co., VA WB A p. 109).

1777. Patent to John Bomgardner 10 Sep 1755. Teste: John Johnson, John
Smith, John I. Sheltman, Daniel Smith, Robert Maitland, Lachlan Campbell, James
Maury’ (Chalkley TIT p. 542; Aug. Co. DB 21 p. 29.

11 Feb 1778 John Smith, John Compton and John Mills were ordered to "view
the shore on William Anderson’s side of James and report to the court the most
convenient landing place for a ferry from Crow's land. Crow had bought the old
Looney place, including the ferry (Summers "Annals” p.266).

11 Mar 1778. John Smith and Margaret to Nicholas Seybert, on a br of the
Straight Fork of Potowmack at a place called Frame’s Cabbin (Chalkley III p.
554; Aug. Co. VA DB 22 p.238).

30 Nov 1778, John Smith witnessed the will of Richard Wilson (Botent.
Co., VAWB A p. 104).

Genealogists disagree on the date of death of Col. John Smith. Some state
he died in 1776 at the home of his son in Rockingham Co.; Kegley gives his
death as occouring in 1779. It appears that he really died in 1783, and that he
is the John Smith whose will, written 26 April 1779, presented for probate by
George Skillern, Exr., 13 March 1783 in Bottentort County. Skillern had long
been a friend and neighbor. His court appearances in 1780 and Andrew Boyd’s
Tetter in 1782 reinforce this belief.

Again, per Boogher, "He survived until the Revolutionary War began, and
then, his military spirit having been revived, he applied for a Commission and
was refused on account of his advanced age, then 78 years, which greatly
offended him. He died shortly after this at Smithlands, the residence of his
son Daniel, two miles north of Harrisonburg, Virginia.

"His sons, Abraham, Henry and Daniel, were also prominent in the French
and Indian Wars; his son-in-1aw, Hugh Reece Bowen, was killed Oct. 7, 1780 at
the Battle of Kings Mountain in the Revolutionary War near the close of the
fight, as a Lieut. of Campbell’s Regiment of Riflemen, Virginia Militia...."

1780. John Smith appeared on Captain Taylor’s Craig Creek muster with 9
horses, 21 cattle and 6 slaves ("Kegley" p. 464).

He also made 2 court appearances in 1780, one on 9 March and again on 13
April. The first was to ask that he be allowed the land warrant for his dead
son Joseph, and the last to ask the same thing for his own services, stating in
open court that "he served as Captain of a company of new lines in 1760 under
the command of Col. Byrd on the Expedition against the Cherokees.” At the time
he was 79." (Aronheim p. 20, 28 & Summers "Annals” 309, 314-5).

4 May 1780 John Smith surveyed 150 ac Beaver Creek adj. Isiah Shipman,
James Diver (Kaylor, Ibid, p. 99).

11 Aug 1781 John Smith bought 3 tracts of 85, 65, and 200 ac. on John’s
Creek from Edwin Carvin by Pat. Lockhart ("Kingsley" p. 462).

19 Oct 1782 Andrew Boyd, son-in-law of Col. Buchanan, a neighbor of John,
wrote William Preston about a lawsuit, saying *Colone]l John Smith would make an
excellent witness for us but he is a very ancient man" (Aronheim p. 28; Draper
Mss 50Q111).
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8 May 1783 the will of John Smith dated April the 26th 1779 was probated.
In the name of God Amen....of Botentourt County of Colony of Virginia, I John
Smith, being sound of mind and Memory but calling to mind the Mortality of my
body knowing it is appointed for all men once to die and as it has pleased God
to bless me with Some Small property of this life, it is my will that the Same
may be distributed in the following manner at the will of my Executor hereafter
mentfoned. First I recommend my soul to god who gave it, and my body to the
Earth to be buried in decent manner at the will of my executor hereafter
mentioned. Item. It is my will that my just debts and funeral charges be paid
out of my Estate. Imprimis. I bequeath to my dearly beloved wife all my
Moveable Estate during her Natural Life and at her death to devolve to my son
James Smith. Item. I Bequeath to my Son James Smith my part of a warrant for
officers claims now in thye hands of Colo Preston which is one thousand acres,
also one tract of land on Craigs Creek containing about one hundred and eighty
acres and one entry of land on Glade Creek the above lands to be at his
disposal to sell and dispose of as he thinks proper. I do hereby appoint my
trusty and well beloved friend George Skillern Executor of this my will and
testament requesting that he may act therein and see the same punctually
performed and 1 hereby revoke and make void all other wills and testaments by
me made and do publish and declare this to be my last will and testament in
witness whereof 1 hereunto set my hand and seal the day and year above written.
Signed (in a bold hand) Jno. Smith of Botentourt County and Colony of Virginia.
Wit: George Hutchinsons, Joseph Dickson, William Watson. March Botentourt Court
1783. This instrument of writing was presented in Court for the Last Will and
Testament of Colo. John Smith deceased. Proved by oath of George Hutchinson one
of the witnesses. And at another court for said county the 8th day of May 1783
the same was proved by the oath of William Watson another witness. Ordered to
be recorded. (Botentourt Co. VA WB A p. 180. A photocopy of will, showing his
signature, is printed in in "Kegley" p. 422-423).

It is unusual that only James was named, ignoring Abraham, David,
Jonathan, Henry, Daniel and Louvisa. Possibly he felt that they needed mothing,
and he expected James to care for the widow.

Col. John Smith is said to be buried at the Smithland estate cemetary of
his son Daniel, which now lies under the waters of Silver Lake, a man made
mill-pond in the present town of Dayton, VA. ("Smith Cousins 4* p. 2)

There are some disagreements and mysteries to be solved, particularly as
to the number and identity of John Smith’s children. A1l of the researchers are
agreed that he had the following children: Abraham, Daniel, Henry, John, Jr.,
and Joseph. ATl of these are named, as well as wife Margaret, in his claim for
head rights when he moved to Orange County, VA. His first will causes some
problems. He names two groups of sons in the first will. Abraham, David, Henry
and John Jr. are grouped together in one bequest, leaving them 5 shillings
each. No problem so far, except that son Joseph is omitted. He also names wife
Margaret and Daughter Louisa. No problem here, except that Louisa is not
mentioned in the claim for head rights, which might indicate that she was born
in Virginia. (It should be noted that fathers sometimes reserved the headrights
of their daughters for their future husbands).

He then names five additional sons who are to divide his remaining land.
These are William, Joseph, David, Jonathan and James Jordan. Boogher and others
believe the second set of sons have the surname Jordan and are really his
grandsons by daughter Louisa. If this is true, then son Joseph was indeed not
mentioned in his father’s will, and Louisa, in order to have had five sons by
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1753, when the first will is written, would have to have been born probably by
1720. That would make her far to old to be the wife of Reece Bowen.

Other problems arise. Waddell, in *Annals® gives us two more problems. In
addition to the accepted sons, he adds William, and declares there were thece
Sons of John Smith at Ft. Vauss, two who were killed at the seige and during
faptivity, (who we know to be John, Jr. and Joseph) and a third son who may
have been killed before the seige, not named, but believed to be Patrick

Aronhein in *Col. John Smith* further complicates the problem by
declaring that at least one son, probably named Patrick, was born between their
arrival in Anerica and 1741, and probably after they migrated to Virginia,
gince no head rights were claimed for him. He also adds that the church records
from The 01d Tinkling Springs Church in Augusta County record the following
births to John Swith and wife Margaret: David b. 10 Jul 1741, Jonathan b. 32
Ju1 1744, Louisa b. 6 Oct 1745, Janes, named in Col. Smith’s last will, he
feels was born later in Bottentort. He further states that Jonathan. dames and
Louisa were at home with their mother during their father’s captivity. Juncs.
he says, became a Captain in the Revolution serving with Nil1iam Cambel] on
the Expedition to New River against the Tories in 1779 and being present ap the
Surrender in Yorktown in 1781. Kegley says James lived in the Spreading Spring
comunity of Botentourt County.

Kegley names the five sons listed on the claim for head rights, Abraham,
Henry, Daniel, John, and Joseph. Louisa or Levisa who married Reece Bowen. and
James, mentioned in Col. Smith’s Tast will.

The record is further complicated by several of the researchers who
pelieve that there was a daughter Margaret who married Lieut. Hugh Reese (or
Rees) Bowen who died at the battle of King’s Mountain during the revelstion
ﬂthe;s feel that Louisa was the wife of Reese Bowen. Aronheim "Col. John Smith"
p. 5).

Boogher ascribes to John and Margaret six children; Abraham, Daniel,
Henry, Jofin, Jr., Joseph and Margaret, He states Margaret married Reese Bowen
(p. 333).

Most of the problems and disparities go away if we believe that the
Second group of sons were, in fact, sons of John and Margaret, and rather than

If Louisa was indeed born in 1745, the Five additional sons could mot be hewe
since she was only 8 when the First will was written. Son Joseph Would sow be
mentioned in the will. The son Aronheim believes to be Patrick is probably
William, if the younger sons were named in order of birth in the will, and he
may have been the additional son killed in the French and Indian Wars: fhe
reason for the seperate entries may lie in the fact that his four older sons
had already established themselves and were not needful of his help, while he
Provided Tand for the younger children not yet established. This also gives us
a beginning for James, or James Jordan Smith, who was the only heir, other than
the Mother, in the second will probated in Bottentort Co. Born in 1745, Louisa
could not have been named for headrights, not having been born. When viewed 1o
this Tight, all of Aronheim’s additional children are also accounted for in the
first will- Under this scenario James would have been born in Augusta County.
rather than Botentourt as suggested by Aronheim, since James Jorgan was mared
in the first will. Aronheim himself places James, along with Jonathan and
Louisa, as being at home while Smith was a prisoner (Aronhein p. 16).

May s apparently the source for the daughter Margaret Reed Saith Bowen,
basing it on the fact that "in 1774 he entered 100 acres on the S. sd of North
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River for his daughter Margaret Reed Smith", for which he offers no
documentation. There is agreement that Bowen did marry John Smith’s daughter,
and there is some agreement that he may have married Louisa. There are records
of a Margaret Smith, tithable in Rockingham County in 1788, but we assume this
is John’s widow Margaret. Since there is no other record of Margaret, the
author assumes that there was only one daughter, Louisa, who married Bowen. I
also assume that Patrick and William are the same person, since there is no
record of a Patrick, and no mention in the first will.

Why was no back pay secured for son Joseph as it was for John, Jr.? John
Sr. did claim Joseph’s Tand rights.

He married Margaret Harrington <?>, 1719, in Ulster, Ireland. Born,
circa 1700 (2), in England. Died, after 1788 (?), in Rockingham Co., VA.

Several of the many authors who have written of this family has provided
a surname "Harrington” for Margaret. None offer any documentation to support
their belief, and, we suspect, are quoting each other. I am including the
surname but caution that the name Harrington is suspect.

She could have been born in England, as her husband was, but probably was
born in Ireland, where they were married before coming to America. Since she
and John may have had a daughter named Margaret Reed Smith, it may be that her
Mother’s name was Reed, but there is no verification.

To add to the confusion, there was a lawsuit, Alexander Stewart vs. John
Smith and Margaret, his wife, late Margaret Clark, --Debt. Writ 15 Jan 1770.
gond d;ted 20 Jan. 1769 (Chaikley I p. 364; Aug. Co. Court Judgements May
1771-8).

If this suit is against OUR John and his Margaret, her maiden name may
well have been Clark.

25 June 1747 Margaret Smith released dower on the sale of 400 ac South
Fork of North River. (Aronheim p. 6; Aug. Co. VA DB @ p. 250).

When her husband was captured by the French at Ft. Vause, it was believed
he had been killed along with two of their sons. Margaret believed herself to
be a widow during the period of his captivity. The government awarded her L.20
for the relief of herself and her minor children, Jonathan 14, Louvisa 13, and
James, then a small child. The money was appropriated by the legislature May
1757, but was not paid until 12 January 1758, when William Preston rode over
with his sister Mary to deliver the funds. In a notebook, now in the Draper
Collection, Margaret signed in a bold hand "Margret Smith". (Aronheim, p. 16)

5 June 1749. Margaret, wife of John Smith, released dower on sale of 400
ac to Silas Hart (Chalkley III p. 274; Aug. Co. VA DB 2 p. 250).

In the first will of her husband, written in 1753 and probated while he
was a prisoner, left his home plantation to his wife Margaret during her
Tifetime.

8 Nay 1756. John and Margaret Smith to Mathew Hall, L.30, 250 ac N. br.
of South River of Shanando. Wit: Joshua and John Mathews, Jr. (Chalkley 1II p.
342; Aug. Co. VA DB 7 p. 307).

27 June 1759. Margaret accompanied her husband, son Jonathan, daughter
Louvina, Col. John Buchanan and Peter Looney to the home of John and Lillie
Bowen, 25 miles up the river. While there she signed as a witness to the will
of John Bowen (Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 155 per Aronheim: Chalkley III gives WB 3 p.
2-5).

21 Nov. 1759 John and Margaret Smith sold a tract of land on Goose Creek
at the Great Lick (now downtown Roanoke) to Malcomb Campbell (Aronheim p. 19;
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Aug. Co. DB 9 p. 238).

16 Aug 1770. Margrett Smith, wife of John Smith of Augusta County, to
Samuel McCutcheon, Sr., L.12, and divers good reasons, horses, crops. Teste:
James Crow and William Berry (Chalkley IIT p. 501; Aug. Co. DB 16 p. 437).

11 Mar 1778. John and Margaret Smith to Nicholas Scybert place called
Frame’s Cabbin. (Chalkley IIT p. 554; Aug. Co., DB 22 p. 238).

In 1788 Margaret Smith listed with 1 tithable in Captain Robert
Harrison’s Company of Rockingham County, VA with 175 ac of land. Children:

2 Col. Abraham® Smith.
3 Judge Daniel Smith.
4 Henry Saith Sr,

John Smith Jr.*. Born, 1730, in Ulster, Ireland. Died, 26 Jun
1756, in Ft. Vause, Montgomery Co., VA. Military Sv in French &
Indian, War. Occupation: Soldier.

Killed in the French and Indian Wars at Ft. Vaus,
Montgomery County, Va., while serving under his father, Capt.
John Smith. He was wounded during the battle, and was killed
before his father’s eyes by an Indian after the surrender.

1 June 1756. Silas Hart, gent., and Jane to John Smith,
Jdr., 230 ac, part of 400 ac patented to John McClure, 15 Dec.
11749 and conveyed by McClure to Hart, on S fork of North River
of Shannandore. Teste: Jno. Malkem, Alexander Herring, Robert
Gragg. Recorded on motion of Daniel Smith on behalf of John.
Delivered Henry Smith 28 July 1764 (Chalkley III p. 343: Aug.
Co. VA DB 7 p. 341).

His will dated 22 Jan. 1756 was proved and recorded in
Augusta County, VA., Aug. 18, 1756, Will Book 2 (1753-1760) Va.
State Library, Richmond, VA. Reel 42, p. 155-6. and in Augusta
Co., VA, Order Book VI, p. 43, 51, which covers the proving of
will and Abrahan’s relinquishment of rights as an heir. His
brother Daniel was executor and bondsmen were Silas Hart and
Robert Harrison.

Will of John Smith, Augusta Co., VA. ..to John Smith, son
of my Brother Daniel Smith all that Plantation lying on the
North River of Shenandoe which I purchased of Silas Hart...to
my beloved brother Daniel Smith all the horses, he paying out
of my effects L.10 Va. Currency to Brother Abraham Smith and
same to Brother Henry Smith...remainder to Brother Daniel
Smith. ..Danie] Smith Exr. 22 Jan. 1756. John Smith. Wit: Thomas
Sewell, Benjamin Finley, Daniel Smith. Proved Aug. 18, 1756.
Daniel Smith qualifies with Silas Hart and Robert Harrison made
bond 18 Aug. 1756. (Chalkley III p. 42; Augusta Co. Va. Will
Book 2 p.155-6).

16 Jun 1757 John Smith’s appraisment, by John Malkem,
Hugh Douglass, John McClure (Chalkley II1 p. 45; Aug. Co. WB 2
p. 194).

17 Nov 1757 Last will of John Smith, Jr., proved--Abraham
Smith, heir at law of John, came and relinquished his rights
under the will (Chalkley I'p. 78; Aug. Co. VA OB 6 p. 43).

Nov. 1770. Daniel Smith had a brother John Smith,
deceased 21 Oct. 1766 (Chalkley I p. 362; Aug. Co. Court
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Judgements Nov. 1770-B).

21 Nov 1766. Danl. Smith, exec. of John Smith, Jr.,
settles his accounts and recorded. Cash paid Abraham Smith, his
Jegacy; cash paid Henry Smith, John King, Hanna Dyer; to going
four times to Wns. burg to attend ye Assembly getting my
brother’s pay allowed; to cash received of Col. John Smith,
being the pay of my brother while in service ((Chalkley III p.
963 Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 486).

Joseph Saith®. Born, 1734, in Chester Co. PA. Died, Jul 1756,
in Ft. Vause, Montgomery Co., VA. Military Sv in French &
Indian, War. Occupation: Soldier.

23 Mar 1754 John and Joseph Smith ordered to work on road
from Campbel1’s Schoolhouse to Renix’s Road (Chalkley I p. 52;
Aug. Co. VA OB 4 p. 126).

Taken Prisoner at Ft. Vause, Montgomery Co., VA., while
serving under his father Capt. John Smith during the French and
Indian War, he died as a captive enroute to New Orleans. Joseph
is mentioned in his father’s will dated 1752 and probated 1756,
but no claim has been found for his back wages for military
service until the time of his death. His father did claim land
for his military service as his heir.

William Smith®. Born, before 1741, in VA. He is probably the
Patrick who Aronheim refers to in "Col. John Smith."

There appear to be several William Smith’s in early
Augusta County. It is difficult to sort them out.

1751. William Smith was among petitioners for Rees Thomas
to build a mill on his place on Brook’s Creek (Chalkley I p.
437; Aug. Co. Court Judgements 1751-2).

20 May 1752 a William Smith to be Overseer road from hm.
Guy’s to Ro. McCutcheon’s Mill (Chalkley I p. 50; Aug. Co. 0B 3
p. 248).

20 Aug 1752 a William Smith was qualified Captain of Foot
in Augusta Co., VA (Chalkley I p. 54; Aug. Co. VA 0B 1 p. 317).

David Smith”. Born, 10 Jul 1741, in Orange (Augusta), VA.

Not included among the children of Col. John Smith by
many genealogists. Aronheim cites the papers of the Tinkling
Spring Church in Orange Co., VA. He was named in the second
group of sons in_his father’s first will. Aonheim concludes
that he was the least successful of the brothers.

16 Mar 1768. Estate of Peter Looney, dec’d. Cash paid to
David Smith (Chalkley III p. 102; Aug. Co. WB 4 p. 80).

18 Oct 1768 David Smith wit. deed John Buchanan and
Margaret and Thompson and Mary to James Skidmore on James
River. 22 Oct 1768 Wit. same as above to Hugh Logan. Wit. same
as above to Thomas Stevenson, 22 Oct. 1768 Same as above to
David Smith, .40, 230 ac. similar deed as above (Chalkley 111
p. 486-7; Aug Co. DB 15 p. 456, 459, 463, 466).

Jonathan Saith.

Louvisa Smith <Louisa>®. Born, 6 Oct 1745, in Augusta Co., VA.
Died in Maiden Spring, Tazewell Co., VA. Christened, 1745, in,

Tinkling Springs, Church. She married Lieut. Hugh Reece Bowen®,
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son of John Bowen and Lily Rees <?>.

The will of Captain John Smith, written in 1753 and
probated after the capture of Ft. Vause, where he was
mistakenly thought to be killed but was rather a captive of the
French for two years, mentions his daughter Lovina (per Smith)
or Louisa ( per May), or Louvisa (per Aronhime), stating that
she is to inherit the bulk of his land and estate after the
death of her mother, Margaret. It was unusual for a daughter to
inherit the bulk of an estate, with her some of her brothers
receiving only 5 shillings each. Aronheim gives her date of
birth as 6 Oct. 1745, which was her christening date at
Tinkling Springs.

13 March 1760, she accompanied her parents, brother
Jonathan, Peter Looney and Col. John Buchanan to visit John
Bowen, who was gravely i11, and his wife Lillie, parents of her
future husband. The others witnessed the will Of John Bowen,
she being too young (Aronheim, p. 19).

On Nov. 15 1762 Lillie Bowen, as executrix for her
husbands estate, conveyed to Rees Bowen, their son, a tract of
230 ac on Glade Creek of Roanoke River for L.20. This loand
must have been near Vinton, northeast of Roanoke.

There is a deed in 1774 of Captain John, where he
patented 100 acres on the south side of North River for his
daughter Margaret Reed Smith. This 100 acre tract adjoined the
Tands of Adam Stephenson, Henry Miller *the iron man®, and the
widow Robinson. Some authorities feel that this Margaret, who
married Lieut. Hugh Rees Bowen, a revolutionary hero who died
in the Battle of Kings Mountain, is another name for Lovisa.

According to Aronhime, she lived out the rest of her
years at Maiden Spring in Tazewell County, VA.

James Jordan Smith®. Born, circa 1747, in Botentort Co., VA.

Some genealogists have not included this last-born son
who was the only heir, other than Margaret, his mother,
mentioned in John Smith’s last will probated in Botentort Co.,
VA. He is said to have been a Captain in the Revolution,
serving with William Campbell on the Expedition to the New
River against the Tories in 1779, and was present at the
surrender at Yorktown in 1781 (Aronheim p. 29).

August 1769. James Smith witnessed a note James Johnson
and Valentine Hannan to Samuel Pepper (Chalkley I p. 457: Aug.
Co. Court Judgements Aug. 1769-A).

He purchased from his father 100 ac 24 Sep 1770 for L.100 *
on S sd James River (Aronheim p.27). 15 Mar 1774 he witnessed
his father’s assignment of 1,000 ac to George Skillern. William
Crow and James Looney were aiso witnesses. 9 August another
thousand acres was assigned to him by his faher (Ibid, p.28).

He lived in the Spreading Spring community in Botentourt
County, VA.

i1 Jan 1771 John Mills, Sr., James Smith and John Looney,
Jr., appraised the estate of Robert Looney, which was recorded
12 Mar 1771 (Botentourt Co., VA W8 A p. 5 per Ann Chilton,
"Botentourt Co. VA WB A 1770-1781" p. 1).
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30 Apr 1773 Notice to take depositions in case of Col.
John Smith vs. McCaul and Co. given by Crow to Col. John Smith
and his son James (Chalkley I p. 367; Augusta Co. Court
Judgements May 1773-A).

9 Mar 1776 James Smith (son-in-law) named exr. in Will of
Mathew Emachs rec. 10 Apr 1779 (Botent. Co. VA WB A p. 109). It
is uncertain if this is "our” James Smith. A James Smith estate
is shown Ibid., p. 119.

He may be the James Smith listed in Botentourt Co.
personal property tax list of 1787 with 1 males 16 to 21; 1
black over 16; 5 blacks under 16; 8 horses, mares mules; 15
cattle, annd stud horse valued at 0.18.0 ( "1787 Tax
List-Botentourt” p. 220).

4 July 1799 Thomas Steele’s will made a bequest to a
James Smith™ (Chalkley IIT p. 224; Aug. Co. VA WB 9 p. 299),
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2 Col. Abraham” Smith (Col. John, 1)*°. Born, 1722, in Ireland. Died, circa
1781, in Rockingham Co., VA. Military Sv in French & Indian, War & Rev. War.
Burial: circa 1781, in Mossy Creek Cem. Occupation: Planter/Patriot.

The date of death of Col. Abraham Smith is uncertain, but is listed as
1782 per the Daughters of the American Revolution, Patriot Index p. 623.

Abraham, the eldest son of Capt. John Smith, who came with his family to
Pennsylvania about 1735 and to Orange (Augusta) Co. Va. about 1740, was a famed
and respected Captain of Militia during the French and Indian War from Sept.
11, 1756 to April 19, 1760. "Like his father, he became an Indian fighter, a
Civic leader, a farmer and a businessman.

"By August, 28, 1750, Abraham Smith, who was_then only 28 years old, was
already a captain of the Augusta County Militia.” The records reveal several
claims for expenses and salary for ranging and provisions for his company.
("Four Flags” p. 157). He was court martialed for neglect of duty in 1756, but
was declared innocent and his accusers punished. He was made a Hajor on Nov.
23, 1759, and in 1767 became Lieut. Colonel, and was elevated to Colonel in
1768." (*Four Flags” p. 158)

1749. With John, Daniel and Henry Smith, Abraham petitioned for a road
beginning at John Patton’s over the mountain to John Smith’s (Chalkley I p.
433; Aug. Co. Court Judhements 1749).

1 Sept. 1748. Abraham Smith was a buyer at the estate sale of Joseph
Harrison (Chalkley IIT p. 15; Aug. Co. WB 1 p. 208).

He settled on the North River near the site of present-day Sangerville,
Augusta County by Aug. 28, 1750.

He was also successful at acquiring land, acquiring much on Beaver and
Spring Creeks and Dry and North rivers. In 1751 he entered 200 acres on Spring
Creek and 215 acres on S side Beaver Creek adj. his own and brother Henry’s
Tands ("4 Flags" p. 159).

20 Mar 1754 Abraham Smith surety for adnnrx. bond for Anne Copeland
estate of Benj. Copeland (Chalkley IIT p. 32; Aug. Co. DB 2 p. 15).

21 Mar 1754. Col. James Patton to Abraham Smith, 86 acres by patent 2nd
Nov 1;50 on Craig Creek at Mulberry Bottom (Chalkley IIT p. 320" Aug/ Co./ DB &
p. 41).

22 Aug 1754 Abraham Smith Qualified Captain of Foot (Chalkley I p. 65;
Order Book IV, Augusta Co. VA. p. 269).

May 1755. Thomas Moore and Phebe, his wife, vs. Abraham Smith and Gabriel
Pickens.-- Phebe, late Phebe Davison. “Phebe Davison, spinster.” Bond dated
1751 (Chalkley p. 312; Aug. Co. Court Judgements May 1755 [C]).

22 Jan 1756. Abraham was named in the will of his brother John (Chalkley
111 p. 42; Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 155).

April 29 1756 Abraham Smith made claim for ranging and for provisions for
his company (Chalkley p. 72, Aug. Co. Order Book VI p.10).

17 June 1757. John Smith’s will was presented. Exers. refused to act.
Abraham Smith, one of the Exrs. and heir-at-law, was summoned, but failed to





image62.jpeg
DESCENDANTS OF COL. JOHN SMITH OF VIRGINIA 31 JuL 1995 25

SECOND GENERATIO!

appear (Chalkley I p. 76; Aug. Co. VA 0B 5 p. 371).

18 Nov 1757. Abraham Smith, eldest son and heir-at-law- of John Smith,
now a prisoner in the French Dominions, refused to adar. whereupon Israel
Christian, a creditor, qualified during Smith’s absence, with Abraham Smith as
3 bondsman (chalkley | p. 78; Aug. Co. VA 0B 6, Ibid 111 p. 47; WB 2. p. 220).
p. 51).

14 Apr 1758. Abraham Smith, claim for ranging and provisions for his
company (Chalkley I p. 80; Aug. Co. 0B 6 p. 144).

28 June 1758 George Mouse’s estate settlement. Received from Abraham
Smith, patterole money (Chalkley III p. 63; Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 30).

15 Nov 1758 Abraham Smith’s bond with Robert Cravens, Ephraim Love, as
adnr. Ludwig Fulk (Chalkley 111 p. 51; Aug Co. WB 2 p. 280).

18 Nov 1758 James Lockhart, Robert Breckenridge, Abraham Smith and James
Alexander, qualified Captain of Militia (Chalkley I p. 83; Aug. Co. 0B 6 p.

233).

16 May 1759 Abraham Smith bondsman for Exrs of William Stephenson
(Chalkley T11 p. 52; Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 52). 18 May 1759 John Smith’s bond with
Abraham and Dan’1 Smith, as admr. Jno Witchell (Mitchel1?) CChalkley 111 p. 54:
Tbid p. 314).

23 Nov 1759 Abraham Smith qualified Major of Militia (Chalkley I p. 85;
Aug. Co., VA 0B 6 p. 335).

Apr. 6, 1761 Abraham Smith surveyed 142 ac South br. of Potomack (Kaylor,
"Abstracts of Land Grant Surveys" p. 5).

15 Aug 1761 Johnston Hill’s estate appraised by Abraham Smith, Daniel
Harrison, Adam Stevenson (Chalkley III p. 66; Ibid WB 3 p. 78).

18 May 1762. Gabriel Pickens to Abraham Smith, L.50, 200 acres on a br of
Bever Creek; cor. Henry Smith; cor. Jacob Gillespy’s land. Delivered: Col.
Abraham Smith, March 1772 (Chalkley p. 384; Aug. Co. DB 10 p. 331).

11 Aug. 1762. Abram Smith to Israel Christian, L.20, 86 acres by deed, at
Mulberry Bottom on Craig’s Creek. Teste: Thomas Barnes (Chalkley III p. 388;
Aug. Co. DB 10 p. 502).

9 Apr 1763. John Smith to Abraham Smith, L.36, 100 ac on James River
joining Robert Looney’s, term 500 years. Mortgage. (Chalkley 111 p. 395; Aug.
Co. DB 11 p. 183).

On April 16, 1763, he became a Gentleman Justice for Augusta County,
serving until 1778 when he became one of the first Justices for Rockingham
County, and County Lieutenant,

31 June 1763. Samuel Caldwell and Ann to Abram Smith, 300 ac on
Christian’s Creek in Beverly Manor, part of 600 ac surv for James Caldwell;
Moses Thompson’s line. Teste: James Reed. Deliverec Col. Abraham Smith, March
1772 (Chalkley 111 p. 400; Aug. Co. DB 1i p. 300).

21 June 1763. Daniel Smith and Abraham were both sworn in as Augusta
County Commissioners (Chalkley III p. 107; Aug. Co. VA 08 8 p. 113).

23 Aug 1764, Michael Bowyer bound over for insulting Abraham Smith in
executing his office as Magistrate (Chalkley I p. 115; Aug. Co. 0B 9 p. 80).

16 Nov 1764, Daniel Smith and Jesse Harrison, exrs. of Robert Harrison,
to Abraham Smith, L.243, conveys two tracts of land adjoining each other, on
head of Dry Fork of Smith’s Creek, end of Timber Bottom, cor. Daniel Harrison,
Robert Craven’s line A. 400 ac patented to Daniel Harrison 20 Aug. 1741 and
conveyed by him to his son Robert, 16 Mar 1748. B. 260 ac same. Delivered: John
Poage, May 1765 (Chalkley III p. 417; Aug. Co. DB 11 p. 761).

22 Nov 1764. Abraham Smith and Sarah to Daniel Smith, L.243, same as
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above. Delivered: Daniel May 1765 (Chalkley Ibid, DB 11 p. 759).

In 1765 he entered 150 acres on Dry River, and 24 Jan. 1767 Thomas
Watterson and Mary, L.47.15, 540 ac. patented to Thomas 12 May 1759, line of
Frances Brown’s Tand. Teste: James Bell, Robert Curry, Jarrod Erwin, Benj.
Logan. Delivered: Col. Abraham Smith, March 1772 (Chalkley III p. 449; Aug. Co.
D8 13 p. 191). River.

Nov. 1766. Daniel and Abraham Smith to arbitrate Patterson vs. Harrison
(Chalkley I p. 349; Aug. Co. Court Judgements November 1766 [A]).

21 Nov. 1766 Abraham Smith received his legacy from brother John
(Chalkley 1T p. 96; Aug. Co WB 3 p. 486).

21 Mar 1767, Abraham Smith qualified Lieutenant Colonel of County
(Chalkley I p. 133; Aug. Co. OB 10 p. 500).

18 May 1767. William Shannon to Abraham Smith L. 35.9.5 . Mortgage on 300
acres on S. side North River of Shannandore, cor. David Davis (Chalkley III p.
456: Aug. Co. DB 13 p. 419).

20 May 1767. Wm. Watterson bound to peace for abusing Abraham Smith in
execution of his office (Chalkley I p. 134; Aug. Co. 0B 11 p. 76).

21 May 1767. Thomas Watterson to Abraham Smith, L.47. 15 horses and
cattle. Teste: James Divier, Daniel Henderson, Jacob Gillespy (Chalkley III p.
458; Ibid, p. 493).

17 Nov 1767. Abraham Smith and Sarra to James Hanna, L.5. (This is a deed
of B and S but recites a lease prior which does not appear in record of this
place) 150 ac. Corner Hugh Diver’s land. Teste: Wm. Crow, James Hill, Benj.
Keys (Chalkley IIT p. 462; DB 14 p. 96).

24 Nov 1767. Abraham Smith among those ordered to lay off dower of
Margaret Gregg, late widow of Arthur Johnston, deceased, in 237 ac of her late
husband (Chalkiey I p. 144; Aug. Co. 0B 11 p. 468).

Dec 1767 he entered 1200 acres on Dry River; 400 ac from the mouth of the
west fork to Skidmore’s Camp, 400 ac below the great fork of the Dry River, and
400 ac below Craig’s Hole ("4 Flags* p. 159).

May 1768. Abraham Smith gave a deposition in the case Alexander Herron vs
Patrick Quin (Chalkley 1 p. 468; Aug. Co. Court Judgements 1768-A).

14 Nov 1768. Col. Abraham Smith and Sarrah to Thomas Fulton, L.110, 200
ac. patented to Gabriel Pickens 12 May 1759 on a br of Bever Creek, corner
Henry Smith’s land; corner Jacob Gillespy. Teste: John Grattan, Raiph Lofftus,
Jese Harrison. Delivered: Ezekiel Logan, per James McGill’s order, exr. of said
estate, 10 July 1806 (Chalkley II1 p. 478; Aug. Co. DB 15 p. 109).

20 June 1769. Abraham Smith to William Shannon. Surrender of Mortgage, 18
May 17687. Teste: William Hogshead, Samuel McNab, Jonathan Lowry, Jr. (Chalkley
IIT p. 487; Aug. Co. DB 15 p. 482).

25 Aug 1769. Col. Abraham Smith’s plantation at South Branch, near Paul
Shever’s, containing 140 acres, there are 28 fruit trees planted, 4 acres
cleared Jand and 5 acres fenced, a very good house woth L.5, about 30 fruit
trees planted. By John Poage, James and John Skidmore (Chalkley IIT p. 113;
Aug. Co. WB 4 p. 291).

20 Jun 1770. Abraham Smith to James Fowler, of Lowdon County, L.100, 142
ac on a br of Potowmack called Licking Creek, above Paul Shaver’s Run.
Delivered; James Fowler, 10 Aug 1771 (Chalkley III p. 501; DB 16, p. 416).

He became an elder in the Mossy Point Presbyterian Church in 1770. He
resided near North Mountain on a large estate called Egypt, where he died.

17 Mar 1772. Abraham Smith to Daniel Hemnderson. Release of Mortgage
dated 18 Dec 1769 on Bever and Spring Creek. Not delivered (Chalkley ITI, p.
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the Commonwealth of Virginia vs. a former Presbyterian minister by the name of
Aloxander Miller, M. A., urging loyalty to the King in defiance of the act of
the General Assenbly passed 7 Oct. 1776 (Chalkley I p. 504-7; Aug. Co. Court
Judgements, Petitions, October Court, 1778).

17 Nov 1776. Daniel and Abraham Smith are members of the new Augusta
County Commission. (Chalkley I p. 189; Aug. Co. 0B 16 p. 128).

21 May 1777, Sarah, wife of Abraham Smith--commission for priv.
examination deed to Smith Tandy (Chalkley I p. 192; Aug. Co. OB 16 p. 191).

19 Augl777. (A Tetter addressed to Captain Buchanan) Sir::--1 have
received information from the deposition of David Harned, etc., that a certain
William Hinton has openly appeared in defense of George the Third, King of
Great Britain, and in open violation against the United States of America, and
has enlisted men in behalf of the King of Great Britain. These are therefore to
request you, in the name of the Commonwealth, to raise any number of
Volunteerss or as many as you think necessary without the loss of time. You are
Yo march your men to Smith’s to apprehend the said William Hinton and all his
abettors and all those concerned in behalf of said King and in violation
2gainst this Comonwealth. You are to bring them to Staunton and have them
Socured under 2 proper guard until proper proceedings can be had on them, and I
expect they will receive their proper reward of their deserts. You are to be
reinforced by Capt. David Bell, Thomas Hewit, Capt. William Anderson, Captain
Hopkins and Capt, Daniel Smith, Herein fail not. Given under my hand this 19th
Aubust 1777, (Signed) Abraham Smith. A further entry: Augusta Co. Sec. To the
Shoriff or Goaler of the County---. We send you herewith the bodies of William
Hinton, Martin Groender, and John Groeder, taken and brought by warrant of
Abraham Smith, Esq., County Lieutenant, upon information made on oath before
Daniel Smith, Esq., etc. (Chalkley I p. 509-10; Augusta County District Court
Judgements 1790) .

17 Feb 1778. Ordered to be certified to the Governor that the following
Justices are recomended for appointments in the new Counties, viz: In
Rockingham-- Silas Hart, Danfel Smith,...Abraham Smith, etc. (Chalkley I p.
1965 Aug. Co. 0B 16 p. 261). He and brother Daniel were among the justices
present at the first court 27 Apr 1778, and Abraham signed the minutes. On Apr.
58 both were present when Abraham was recomended to the Governor as County
Lieutenant, and Daniel was recommended as Colonel of Militia. On May 7, 1778,
on commision from the Governor they were sworn into office (Wayland "Rockingham
County" p. 67-69).

1779 purchased 175 ac. Beaver Creek from Daniel Henderson; March 17, 1772
675 acres on Beaver and Spring Creeks. ("Four Flags® p. 158-9).

June 26 1779 Abraham Smith sworn in as Sheriff. (Wayland "Rockingham" p.

75).

17 Aug 1779. Abraham Smith and Sarah, of ROCKINGHAM County, to Michael
Armingcost, on head of the South Branch of Potomack, Lynche’s Tine. Teste:
William Booney, Jonathan Shipman (Chalkley III p. 560; Aug. Co. DB 23 p. 90).

28 Nov 1780. "Abraham Smith having resigned the office of county
1ieutenant, on account of his ‘Disorders and Infirmaties,’ the court
;ggomnded Dan’1 Smith for appointment in his stead" (Wayland "Rockinghan” p.

21 Nov. 1782. Abraham Smith’s death abates suit (Chalkley I p. 228; Aug.
Co. 0B 17 p. 441).

17 March 1784. John Skidnore and Mary, his wife, and Sarah Smith, relict
of Abraham Smith, deceased, and John Smith, heir-at-law of Abraham, all of
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(Union Co., SC DB R-128%).

In 1823 he and Joseph Smith bought a tract of land in York Co. from John
Smith, (Ibid., DB K/10). Daniel bought 200 acres on Guyon Moores Creek from
Sanuei Chambers (DB K/109) and a tract on Goin (Guyon Moore?) Creek from Thos.
Norsworthy et al, in 1823 (York Co. DB K/109 and K/150).

In 1824 he bought 50 acres on Guyon Moore’s Creek, York Co., from Nancy
Hood (DB K/239). He also sold, in York County, 200 acres Moores Creek to
Charles W. Henry (DB K/210), and a tract to James G. Smith (DB M/26).

In 1824 he bought land from Nathaniel Guyton (DB S/117 Union Co., SC)

In 1828 he bought land from Aaron Guyton (DB T/127 Union Co., SC)

In 1831 he sold land to Aaron Williams (DB V/427 Union Co., SC)

He married** Ann C. Bird, circa 1815 (?). Born, circa 1790 (2), in York
Co., SC.

Possible ancestors of Ann include Mark Bird who made a number of land
purchases in York County in 1795, one of which was on Jumping Branch, but most
of which were on Kings Creek. In 1799 he sold most if not all of this land to
Henry and Edward Bird. (York County Deed Book D, pages 64, 67, 70, 74, 77, 80,
83, 89, 93. Deed Book E pages 253 through 261).

The 1800 census of Union Co., SC page 241 shows John Bird who lives nect
to Isaac Parker. He is over 45, there is a male and a female age 26-45, 2 males
16-25, 1 female 10-16, 2 females and 1 male under 10. There are 4 slaves. In
1810, page 231, John Bird is over 45, there is a male and a female age 16-26, 1
male under 10. Chances are good that John Bird is her father. Children:

Abraham® Sajth’”. Born, circa 1816.

John Smith®*. Born, 1824, in Union Co., SC. Died, 1824, in
Union Co., SC.

iii. Daniel Guyton Smith”>. Born, 1824, in Union Co., SC. Died,
1877, in Union Co., MS. He married, first, Rebecca Brister®*.
He married, second, Louise C. Brister’*. He was a twin.
James Calvin Smith’®. Born, circa 1834.

. Mary saith”®,

. Reddy Bird Smith**.

15. Catherine® Smith (Capt. Abraham Esq., 7)”°. Born, 1797, in York Co., SC.
Died in Pickens Co., AL.

The will of her father in 1806 is not entirely legible, but it is
believed she is the daughter bequeathed a young sorrel mare, and household
furniture comparable to what her married sister already received.

Sometime prior to Sept. 1827 her husband, Dr. William Richards, sold her
1/8 undivided interest in her father’s plantation to Amos Davis (Union Co., SC
DB $/499%). It is believed her widowed mother lived with her family, being the
70-80 year old woman listed in the 1830 census.

An interesting letter from her husband, Dr. D. William Richards, which he
wrote from Pickensville, Pickens Co., Al., in 1831 to her Guyton uncle, acting
under their power of attorney, which is included in Mary Smith’s York County
estate file. He was anxious to receive a settlement of the estate because times
were very hard.

She married Dr. D. William Richards, circa 1817 (2), in Union Co., SC.
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Rockingham County, to John Gumm. Delivered;: Peter Hull. by order lst April
1795. Abraham had made exchange with John Gumm and title was wade to William
Smith, recorded in Rockingham. Patent was issued in name of Smith and Skidmore.
Smith purchased Skidmore’s interest, title was made to him for the whole, but
not recorded in time Skidnore signs this deed. Patent dated 10 June 1780
(Chalkley 111 p. 570; Aug. Co. DB 24 p. 313).

No date. 517 acres patented to Thomas Watterson 12 May 1759, by Watterson
to Abraham Smith, deceased, and by him devised to his son, Benjamin Smith,
grantor here (Chalkley I11'p. 592; Aug. Co. DB 27 p. 120).

He married Sarah Caldwell’® in Augusta Co., VA. Died in Augusta Co., VA.
Children:

i. John® Smith'Z. Born, 16 Dec 1755, in Augusta Co. VA.
Occupaton: Farmer/Soldier. He married Mary Jane Smith
<Hart>?>, 14 Sep 1775, in Rockingham Co., VA.

19°Aug 1777 John Smith recommended as Ensign. Sept. 17,
177. John Smith qualified as Ensign (Chalkley I p.193-4; Aug.
Co. VA 0B 16 p. 216, 232).

As a soldier in the Revolutionary Army, he distinguished
himself at the Battle of Point Pleasant as Ensign in a company
commanded by his uncle Daniel. He inherited his father’s
plantation "Eqypt” at the foot of Narth Mountain in Rock ingham

0., VA.

ii. Henry Smith'*. Born, 1758, in Augusta Co. VA.

May 13, 1782. Henry Smith surv. 400 ac. Beaver Creek adj.
Andrew Johnson, Josiah Shipman, near a road. The above in
consequence of an entry by Abraham Smith, dec’d, and willed to
Henry Smith for 400 ac, dated Feb. 3, 1769. (Kaylor, p.
107-108).

20 May 1783. Henry Smith Revolutionary War claim for 15
days horse hire at 1/6 per day; 15 days for a pack horse at
2/6; day for a black horse L.14 (Janice Abercrombie and Richard
Slattern, Virginia Public Lu.u; Augusta County, ,r Athens,

Iberian Publ. Co., nd. p.

. A Judge Daniel® Smith (Col. John, 1)**. Born, 1724, in Ulster, Ireland.
Died, Oct 1781, in Rockingham Co., VA. Military Sv in French\Indian, Wars.
Burial: 1781, in Dayton Cemetary. Occupation: Planter/Soldier.

He served in the French and Indian War and the Revolutionary War, only to
be killed from a fall when his horse bolted during the victory celebration
following the Battle of Yorktown in the Revolution.

He accompanied his parents from Ireland to Pennsylvania to Orange (now
Augusta) Co. VA. where they lived on North River, not far from Narrow Back, or
Little North Mountain, around 1740. Like his father and brothers, he was a
civic leader, an Indian Fighter, a planter, and a businessman. While he did not
acheive as much distinction in military affairs, he may have acheived greater
distinction in civic affairs.

29 Nov 1749. Hugh Deaver to Daniel Smith, 80 ac on North River ,
Shannando. Corner Charles Deaver (Chalkley ITI p. 276; Aug. Co. DB 1 p. 336)

Nov. 1749. Abraham, Daniel, Henry and John Smith were among those
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petitioning for a road beginning at John Patton’s over the mountain to Cap.
John Smiths’ (Chalkley I p. 432).

28 May 1751 Henry and Daniel Smith with others are ordered to build and
keep_in good repair a road from John Davis’ mill to Woods New Cleared Gap
(Chalkley T p. 44; Aug. Co. VA 0B 2 p. 574).

1751-2. Daniel Smith among those who signed a petition for a road from
John Davis’ Mi1l to Wood’s Gap (Chalkley I p. 437; Aug. Co. Court Records
1751-2).

7 Sep 1753. Samuel McMahon to Samuel Henderson, 105 ac on Dry River
between Daniel Smith’s and Shifman’s lands (Chalkley III p. 218; Aug. Co. VA DB
5 p. 477).

2 Jul 1755. Daniel Smith wit. deed Thomas Beall of Fred. Co. D to
Jonathan Douglas, weaver, 400 ac. br. of Broad Run on a draft of Brock’s Creek
(Chalkley IIT p. 339: Aug Co. DB 7 p. 339).

During the French Indian Wars from 1753 to 1763 he rose to the rank of
Captain of foot in the Augusta County Militia (Order Book VI p. 307, 18 Aug.
1759, Augusta Co., VA), serving under Gen. Lewis at the Battle of Point
Pleasant.

22 Jan 1756. Daniel Smith named executor of his brother John Smith and
qualifies with Silas Harte and Robert Harrison (Chalkley III p. 42; Aug. Co. VA
WB 2 p. 155).

March 1756. Daniel, Henry and John Smith were among petitioners in King
vs. John 0Neal. See account under Col. John Smith.

18 Aug 1756. Daniel Smith and Jean to James Ramsey, 80 ac. on North River
Shanandore, cor. Charles Davir’s land. Teste: John Henton. Delivered : Jno.
McCoy, 9 Nov. 1767 (Chalkley III p. 344; Aug. Co. DB 7 p. 351).

16 Aug. 1756 Patent to Daniel Smith (wife Jean) 16 Aug. 1756. Delivered:
Nov. Court 1782 (Chalkley III p. 524; Aug. Co. DB 18 p. 465).

4 Sep 1756. Will of Alexander Matheson. Daniel Smith surety for Silas
Hart as admr. (Chalkley III p. 44; Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 175).

He was a Gentleman Justice of Augusta County from 1757 until Rock ingham
County was organized in 1778. 19 Aug 1757. Court--Patrick Martin, Richard
Woods, Robert Breckenridge, Patrick Martin, John Bowyer, Daniel Smith, James
Buchanan, John Archer, (Chalkley I p. 77; Aug. Co. OB 6 p.1).

16 Nov 1757. Daniel Smith surety for Jannet McDonald’s bond as admx of
Randall McDonald (Chalkley T1T p. 46; Aug. Co. W 2 p. 303).

18 May 1758. Michael Mallow’s bond (with Daniel Smith, Philip Harper) as
admr of Peter Moser. Daniel Smith’s bond (with Michael Mallow, Philip Harper)
as admr of Jacob Silvers. Michael Mallow’s bond (with Daniel Smith, Peter
Vennenan) as admr of George Mouse (Ibid p. 49: Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 244-6)

28 June 1758. Peter Moser’s estate settiement. Paid Daniel Smith for
clorking (clerking?) (Chalkley I1I p. 63; Aug. Co WB 3 p. 29).

16 Nov 1758. Daniel Smith’s bond (Woolrick Conrod, dno Dunkle) as admr of
Henry Lawrence (Ibid., p. 51: Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 286).

18 May 1759. John Smith’s bond ( with Abraham Smith, Dan’1 Smith, as admr
of Jno Witchell or Mitchell (Chalkley III p. 54; Aug. Co. DB 2 p. 314).

18 Aug. 1759 Daniel Smith qualified Captain of Foot (Chalkiey I'p. 85 and
II1 p. 77; Aug. Co. VA 0B 6 p. 335 and WB 3 p. 229).

22 Nov 1759 Jane Scott, aged 16, chose Daniel Smith her guardian. He made
bond with Jno Christian and Jno. Scott (Chalkley I p. 85; Aug. Co. VA 0B 6 p.
335; Chalkley III p. 56; Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 344).

26 May 1760. Daniel Smith an appraiser for Lodwick Foalke’as estate
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(Chalkley III p. 58: Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 389).

Feb. 1761. Scot vs Scott. Jane Scot, an infant, by Daniel Smith, her
guardian, daughter of Samuel Scot, of Augusta, deceased in 1749. Jane had a
sister and brother. The widow Scott intermarried with William Pickins. Jane’s
oldest sister was Mary. (Chalkley I p. 321; Aug. Co. Court Judgements Feb.
1761).

4 May 1761. Robert Harrison’s will. To brother-in-law Daniel Smith, watch
and L.20 for schooling Smith’s son Robert Smith. Exec. Daniel Smith and Jesse
Harrison. Exrs qualify with Wm. Preston and Michael Warren (Chalkley III p.
64-5; Aug. Co. DB 3 p. 60-1).

19 Aug 1761 Robert Hill, orphan of Auston Hill, age 16 yrs. old chose
Danl. Smith guardian (Chalkley I p. 92; Aug. Co. 0B 7 p. 61). Daniel Smith's
settlement of estate of Jacob Sivers approved. Daniel Smith’s settlement of
estate of henry Lawrence approved and recorded (Chalkley I11 p. 65; Aug. Co. WB
3 p. 75). 20 Aug. 1761. John Malckom's will proved. Wife refuses to execute.
Adnin. gnnled to Jno. Malkem who qualifies with Daniel Smith (Ibid, p. 66: DB
3p. 81).

24 May 1762. Daniel Smith, Mathew Patton and Michael Mallow, surviving
partners of Robert Harrison vs Wm Crow (Chalkley I p. 98; Aug. Co. OB 7 p.
238).

Aug. 1762. Hook vs Munsey. Daniel Smith deposes Aug. 23, 1762, that being
chosen guardian for Jean Scott, sister to Skidmore Munsey’s wife (Chalkley I p.
329; Aug. Co. Court Judgements Aug. 1762).

18 Oct 1762 Daniel Smith wit. deed Samuel Harrison and mary to William
Minter (Chalkley 111 p. 391; Aug. Co. DB 11 p. 79).

18 Nov 1762. Daniel Smith appointed guardian ad litem for Mary Harrison,
an infant, vs Andrew Hamilton (Chalkley I p. 101; Aug. Co. OB 7 p. 364).

Jan. 1763. Capt. Daniel Smith delivered deed on sale Daniel Harrison to
Robert Harrison on Dry Fork of Smith’s Creek (Chalkley III p. 350; Aug. Co. DB
7 p. 539).

5 Jan 1763, Daniel Smith was listed as owing a note due the estate of
John Wright (Chalkley IIT p. 75; Aug. Co. VA WB 3 p. 208).

27 Jan 1763. Daniel Smith surveyed 75 ac. Smith’s Creek (Kaylor
"Abstracts of Surveys® p. 11).

17 Feb 1763. Daniel Smith and Francis McBride sureties bond of Margaret
Van Pelt as adnx of Peter Bowman. Also Daniel Smith’s bond with Jno Madison as
guardian chosen by John Johnson, orphan of Arthur Johnson (Chalkley III p. 76,
78; Aug. Co. WB 3'p. 224, 250. Chalkley I p. 103; Aug. Co. OB 7 p. 462).

21 Jun 1763. Daniel and Abraham Smith members of new county Commission
(Chalkley I p. 107; Aug. Co. OB 8 p. 113).

22 Jun 1763. Daniel Smith wit. deed James McCowen and Margaret to Gabriel
Jones, 380 ac on Catawba of James River (Chalkley 111 p. 398; Aug. Co. DB 11 p.

238).

10 Sep 1763. Daniel Smith wit. deed Daniel Poder to Joseph Rutherford
(Chalkley 11 p. 403; Aug. Co. DB 11 p. 382).

10 Mar 1764 Dan’1 Smith one of apraisers of Jonathan Langdon (Ibid, W8 3
p. 83).

9 Apr 1764 Samuel Harrison to Daniel Smith, L.100, 100 ac on So. br. of
Linville Cr., pat. to Samuel 5 Sept. 1749. Teste: Walter Crow, Peter Kinder,
Felix Shelman. Delivered: Daniel Smith, Nov. 1765 (Chalkley Iil p. 412; Aug.
Co. DB 11 p. 647).

In 1764 Daniel Smith settled in his stately mansion at Smithland at the
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head of Smith’s Creek, which, for a time, served as the seat of justice in
Rockingham County, of which Daniel was one of the first comissioners. The
house was torn down about 1895 (Nancy B. Hess, The Heartland *Rockingham
County* n.p., n. d., p. 227-8). The home site was 2 miles below Harrisonburg
(Wayland “Rockingham Co.* p. 54fn).

22 Nov 1764. Daniel Smith and Jesse Harrison, exrs of Robert Harrison, to
Abraham Smith, L.243, conveys two tracts adj. each other on head of Dry Fork of
Smith’s Creek; A. 400 ac. patented to Daniel Harrison 20 Aug. 1741 and conveyed
by him to his son Robert 16 Mar 1748, and pur. by Abraham from exec. of Robert,
end of Timber Bottom; B, 260 ac. pat. to sd Robert Harrison 20 Aug. 1741 and
so01d to Abraham by his exec., end of Timber Bottom, corner Daniel Harrison,
Robert Craven’s line. Delivered, Daniel, May 1765. 22 Nov. 1764 Abraham Smith
and Sarah to Daniel Smith, 2 parcels above. (Chalkley p. 417; Aug. Co. DB 11 p.
759-761).

23 May 1765 Daniel Smith surety on bond for Eliza Moser’s bond as admx of
Eliza Moser(?) (Ibid, WB 3 p. 90).

24 May 1765. Daniel Smith’s mark recorded. (Chalkley I p. 132; Aug. Co.
0B 9 p. 375).

14 0ct 1765. Daniel Harrison to Daniel Smith, L.50, 200 ac on Muddy Creek
and Dry River, high bank of rocks opposite an island. Delivered: Daniel Smith,
March Court 1772 (Chalkley 111 p. 437; Aug. Co. DB 12 p. 398).

16 Oct 1765 Daniel Smith’s settiement of estate of Robert Harrison
allowed and recorded (IBid, p.429)

1765. William Ingles vs Joseph Ray. Settlement sworn to before Daniel
Smith (Chalkley I p. 489; Aug. Co. Court Judgements 1765).

Aug. 1766. Deed from Alex. Hite and Rebecca to John Wright delivered to
John Johnston by order Capt. Daniel Smith (Chalkley IIT p. 366, 445; Aug. Co.
DB 9 p. 108 and DB 12 p. 81).

21 Nov 1766 Daniel Smith’s settlement of the estate of John Smith, Jr.,
approved and recorded. Cash paid Abraham Smith, Henry Smith, John King, Hanna
Dyer, to going three time to Wms. Burg to attend ye Assembly getting my
brother’s pay allowed; to cash received from Col.  Smith, being the pay of my
brother while in the service (Chalkley III p. 96; Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 486).

18 Nov 1767 Margaret Null declines to act as extrx for Nicholas Null;
asks Daniel Smith to admr. Daniel Smith makes bond with John Malcomb and Benj.
Logan as admr (Chalkley IIT p. 101; Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 61. Chalkey I p. 141; Aug.
Co 08 11 p. 347).

May 1768. Alexander Herron vs Patrick Quinn. Daniel Smith, Gent., about
thirty-seven years, deposes (Chalkley I p. 467; Aug. Co. Court Judgements May
1768-A).

§ May 1768 Daniel Smith surv. 15 ac adj. Rutherford and his own land
(Kaylor, "Abstr. of Surveys" p. 37).

9'May 1769. Daniel Smith an appraiser for estate of Robert Shanklin
(Ibid, DB 4 p. 109).

Oct. 1769. Cowden vs McCroskey. Daniel Smith, aged about 39, 25th March,
1769 (Chalkley I p. 360; Aug. Co. Court Judgements 1769-A).

7 Jan 1770 Daniel Smith surety for Ann Warren, admx for Jacob Warren
(Ibid, WB 4 p. 112). 22 Aug. Daniel is surety for Michael Matthew’s bond as
adur of Noah Roundtree (Ibid, W8 4 p. 326).

21 Nov 1771. Daniel Smith qualified as vestryman (Chalkley I p. 165; Aug.
Co. 0B 13 p. 295).

16 May 1772 Daniel Smith to Joseph and Hennery and Lawens. Teste: Silas
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ga;; Felix Gilbert, Abraham Smith (Chalkley IIT p. 521; Aug. Co. DB 18 p.

8 Nov 1772 Daniel Smith and Felix Gilbert commissioned to take privy
Séal;l;‘natig;)uf Catherine, wife of George Conrad (Chalkley ITI p. 505; Aug. Co.

p. 42).

18 Nov 1772 Daniel Smith made bond as Sheriff of Augusta County. Felix
Gilbert , Sampson Mathews, Abraham Smith, Robert McClenachan, Wn. McDowell were
bondsmen”. 21 Nov. 1772. Daniel Smith made bond for collection of county
proportion with Felix Gilbert and Abraham Smith (Chalkley IIT p. 126, 127; Aug.
Co. WB 5 p. 34, 46).

From 1771-1778 he was a Vestryman in Augusta Parish.

16 May 1772. Daniel Smith to Joseph and Hennery and Lawens. Teste: Silas
Hart, Felix Gilbert, Abraham Smith (Chalkley III p. 521; Aug. Co. VA DB 18 p.

282).

27 May 1772. John Hinton qualified as Exr will of John Christman with
George Crisman and Daniel Smith (Ibid.p. 130, DB 5 p. 141).

1772. Abraham Wright sells to Daniel Smith land at or near the head of
the Dry Fork of Smith’s Creek, west of the Irish Road ("Rockingham Recorder” p.
171).

18 May 1773. Thomas Lewis and Daniel Smith’s bond with Garbriel Jones as
adnr Thomas Jackson, Clerk (Chalkley IIT p. 120; Aug. Co. WB 5 p. 89).

Aug. 1773. Daniel Smith vs. Wn Bower. Regarding land of Daniel Harrison,
dec’d (Chalkley I p. 368; Aug. Co. Court Judgements Aug. 1773-A).

13 Aug. 1773 Daniel Smith and Jean to Daniel Stover. Pat’d to Samuel
Harrison 5 Sept. 1749 and conv. to Daniel. Teste: John Henton, Joseph Smith,
Daniel Smith, Jr. (Chalkley III p. 532; Aug. Co. VA DB 19 p. 338).

g »; Nov 1773 Daniel Smith witnessed wil of Thomas West (Ibid p. 135: WB 5
. 135).
P G Nov. 1773, Aron OTiver wiTl proved. Daniel Smith signed bond for the
widow Jemima as extrx. 20 Nov. 1773 Daniel Smith made bond for collection of
County proport ion with Robert McClendon (Chalkley III p. 132, 3; Aug. Co. WB 5
p. 180, 181. 184).

4 Aug 1774. Daniel Smith bondsman for Francis Kirtley admr. will of
Francis Kirtley (Ibid p. 137; WB 5 p. 282).

20 Sep 1775. Daniel Smith, late sheriff of Augusta County, to John
Ashburner and Thomas Place, merchants in Baltinore. Whereas Mathew Harrison,
late of Augusta County, 22 May 1769, sold to Richard and Peter Footman by
mortgage. The Footman’s foreclosed by suit_in County Court and Sheriff ordered
to se];éslge'livered; Mr. Lickton, 27 Mar. 1776 (Chalkley IIT p. 545; Aug. Co. DB

1 p. .

23 Nov 1775. John Christian made bond as Collector of County proportion
with Daniel Smith, Dan’1 Kidd. (Chalkley I1I p. 403, Aug. Co. WB 6 p. 403).

22 Jan 1776, Daniel, John and Robert Smith witnessed a deed Abraham
Ildg;;er and Elizabeth to John Kring (Chalkley III p. 553; Aug. Co. VA DB 22 p.

In 1776 Daniel became a Captain of Militia for Augusta Co. (Wayland
“History of Rockingham® p. 54fn).

14 Aug 1777. David Harned swore a statement before Daniel Smith regarding
William Hinton and others still professing loyalty to the King. Brother Abraham
ordered their arrest (Chalkley I p. 509; Aug. Co. District Court Judgements,
Apri1 1790).

29 Aug 1777. List of those indebted to the estate of Roger North includes





image70.jpeg
34 31 JuL 1995 DESCENDANTS OF COL. JOHN SMITH OF VIRGINIA

SECOND GENERATION

;:esnnta;‘i:l)\ “John Smith, son of Daniel, dead” (Chalkley III p. 167; Aug. Co.
p._340).

17 Feb 1778. Ordered to be certified to the Governor that the following
Justices are recomended for appointment as Justices will fall in the new
Counties: Rockingham-- Silas Hart, Daniel Smith, Abraham Smith, etc. (Chalkley
I p. 196; Aug. Co. 0B 16 p. 261).

The General Assembly of Virginia decreed that the first court for
Rockingham County would be held at the house of Daniel Smith (9 Hening,
Statutes at large, p. 422 per "The Rockingham Recorder” V.I No. 1 p. 23)

27 Mar 1778 Abraham and Daniel Smith and others took the oath of office
as Justices of Rockingham Co. On the first day of court, 27 Apr 1778 both were
present. Abraham Smith signed the minutes. (Wayland, "History of Rockingham"
p.65-67).

28 Mar 1778. Daniel Smith recomended to Governor and council as Colonel.
Abraham Smith recommended as County Lieutenant. Daniel Smith was named Coroner,
and he_signed the minutes for the second day of the session (Ibid, 66-7)

7 May 1778 Daniel Smith commissioned as Colonel by the governor (Ibid).

3 Oct. 1778. Daniel Smith and Gaw’th Hamilton take privy examination of
Judith, wife of John Carthrea, 19 Aug. 1777 (Chalkley III p. 557; Aug. Co. DB
22 p. 467).

23 Nov 1778. Dan’1 Smith, and Jane, his wife she being first privily
examined acknowledged their deed of Bargain and Sale to Francis Mcbride
("Rockingham Recorder, V1, No. 1, p. 02)

22 Nov 1779. Rockingham County Court moved from Smithland, the home of
Daniel Smith, to the plantation of Thomas Harrison, site of Harrisonburg
("Rockingham Recorder* p. 177).

14 Apr 1780 Daniel Smith surveyed 88 ac. drafts of Dry Fork of Smith’s
Creek adj. Darby Ragan, Felix Shalpman, John Shelpin, Richard Ragan. the next
day he surv. 210 ac Dry Fork of Smith’s Creek adj Reuben Harrison, Horn. On
same date Daniel Smith, 375 ac, East Br. of Linvils Cr, incl. Grub’s Spring,
adj. Jerry Ragan, Walter Crow, Eversole, Warren, Bear. N. B. The above in
consequence of an entry made Jul 4, 1770. On April 20, Daniel Smith suy=rv. 300
ac between br. of Linvils Creek and Dry Fork of Smith’s Creek adj Bell,
Harrison, Sellers. (Kaylor, p.100, 107). 100).

28"Nov 1780 "Abraham Smith, having resigned as County Lieutenant, on
account of his Disorder and Infirmaties, the court recommended Danl. Smith for
appointment in his stead.” Daniel was sworn in 27 Mar 1781. On 24 Sept. 1781
Daniel signed as presiding justice for the last time. (Wayland, *Rockingham
County" p.83-6).

He was also a Colonel in Rockingham County Militia, and on Sept. 20, 1781
was commissioned Deputy Purveyor for the Southern Department of the
Revolutionary Army. He resigned as Justice 24 Sept 1781 and joined his 4 sons

John, Daniel, Joseph and Robert in the Revolutionary Army at the siege of
Yorktown. On his return to the county, following the surrender, he called for a
grand review to celebrate the victory. His horse was frightened by troops
giving a "running Salute”. Their fire caused his horse to throw him, resulting
in his death (Nancy B. Hess, Ibid, p. 227). He and his sons accumulated more
than 4,294 acres of land in Augusta and surrounding Count fes.

fiis brother-in-law, Robert Harrison, bequeathed Daniel a gold watch in
his will proved Aug. 18, 1761, as well as 20 Lbs. to help pay for his son’s
education, and also 1/6 of his land, Tivestock and personal property. As
executor of Robert’s will, Daniel sold his brother Abraham 2 tracts of land 10
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March 1771 for 243 Lbs., then bought it back from hin. These two tracts were
situated about two miles north of present Harrisburg on Dry Fork and Naked
Creek, two branches of Smith Creek, containing 660 acres. Here Daniel built his
plantation manor home Smithland, where his father later died. (Deed Book 1,
Augusta Co. VA.; "Gleanings” p.337-8.) The land was situated on Linville Creek,
and his home was the first brick house erected in the area, on land patented
8/20/1741 by Daniel Harrison.

His descendents were copied from the Family Bible in posession of James
Smith, St. Paul, MN.

1798. Estate of Thomas Gregg in account with Benj. Smith, exr. of Daniel
Smith, who was exr. of Thomas Gregg -- 1790, 17th May paid James Reece as
Tegatee, ditto Sanuel Redman, ditto Elizabeth Gregg; to recording the inventory
in 1773 (17937) (Chalkley 111 p. 214; Aug. Co. WB 8 p. 313).

Daniel’s estate records are probably in Rockingham County, VA.

He married Jane <Jean> Harrison'®, daughter of Daniel Harrison and
Unknown woman, circa 1751, in Augusta Co. VA. Born, 1735. Died, 1796, in
Rockingham Co., VA.

In George Washington’s journal, recounting his tour of Virginia, Sept.
30, 1784, he paused at the widow Smith’s enroute to a Mr. Lewis’s to spend the
night. He passed by the widow Smith’s again on Oct. 2, 1784 (Wayland "VA
Valley" p. 118-119). Children:

6 i. John® smith.

ii. Daniel Smith'®. Born, 25 Jun 1754, in Augusta Co., VA.

24 June 1776 Lieut. Daniel Smith and Ensign John Smith
requested pay for service against the Cherokees in June 1774.
Daniel was allowed 1s.6d. per day amounting to 21.17s. (Wayland
"VA Valley" p. 85).

iii. Joseph Smith'”. Born, 9 Feb 1756, in Augusta Co., VA.

In 1788, Joseph Smith was issued a voucher for 4 slaves
and 3 horses supplied the Rockingham Militia Company (Wayland
"VA Valley" p. 98.

iv. Robert Saith’®.’Born, 28 Nov 1757, in Augusta Co., VA. Military
Sv in Rev. War.

He fought in the Battle of Yorktown, Revolutionary War.

22 January 1776. David, Jopseph and Robert Saith
witnessed a deed Abraham Miller and Elizabeth to John Kring
(ChaTkley ITI p. 553; Aug. Co. VA DB 22 p. 153).

There was a Robert Smith who was involved in a multitude
of Tawsuits in York County, SC according to "York Co. SC
Minutes of the County Court 1786-1797" by Robert K. Wells
(Brent Holcomb, 1981, Columbia, SC). It is not know if there is
a connection.

v. Margaret Smith’®. Born, 27 Oct 1759, in Augusta Co., VA.

Could she be the Margaret Reed Smith, supposed to be the
daughter of Capt. John, who married Lt. Bowen?

vi. Lieut. Benjamin Smith”. Born, 25 May 1761, in Augusta Co., VA.
Died, 18 Aug 1812, in Lancaster, Ohio. Military Sv_in Rev. War.
Burial in Lancaster, OH, Methodist Cem. He married® Elizabeth
Cravens’”, daughter of Robert Cravens and Unknown woman, circa
1782 (2), in Augusta Co., VA.
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A Lieutenant in the Revolutionary War, he was present at
the surrender at Yorktown. He owned a fine estate near
Harrisonburg, Va, about two miles from his father’s estate
"Smithland, and about the same distance from Judge Daniel
Smith’s "Waverly.” His home was known as the "01d Stone House".
"He was a man of high integrity, strong character, and
religious conviction.” He moved to Ohio 5o he might free his
slaves.

In 1793. Estate of Thomas Gregg in acct. with Benjamin
Smith, executor of Daniel Smith, who was exec. of Thos. 6regg
--1790, 17th May paid James Reese (?) as legatee, ditto Samuel
Redman, ditto Elizabeth Gregg; to recording the inventory in
1773 (1793?) (Chalkley III p. 214: Aug. Co. WB 8 p. 313).

vii. Ann Smith®’. Born, 6 Sep 1763, in Augusta Co., VA.
viii. Jane H. Smith. Born, 19 Jul 1765, in Augusta Co., VA. She
wmarried Smith Lofland.
ix. Sarah Smith. Born, 13 Oct 1767, in Augusta Co., VA.
X. Abraham Smith®*. Born, 23 Jul 1770, in Augusta Co., VA.
xi. William Smith®>. Born, 20 Aug 1775, in Augusta Co., VA. He
married Diana McDonough®*.

See "Gleanings” p. 562 for his five children.

xii. James Smith®". Born, 6 Mar 1779, in Augusta Co., VA. Died in
Wt. Vernon, OH. He married Rebecca Emmett, 1804 (7).

See “Gleanings” p. 365 for his seven children.

Having scruples about slavery, he moved to Ohio about
1807, where he was clerk of the county court for twenty years.
Member of the Christian Church.

4. Henry® Saith Sr. (Col. John, 1)**-*7_ Born, 1727, in Ulster, Ireland.
Died, 1792, in Smith’s Ford, York Co., SC. Military Sv in French-indian, & Rev.
Wars. Resided: 1738, in Augusta Co., VA. Resided: 1766, in Craven (York}, Co.,
SC. Occupation: Planter/Soldier.

This ancestor served in both the French and Indian and Revolutionary
Wars, and four of his sons also served in the Revolutionary War. While his
father and brothers were officers in the French and Indian Wars, it appears he
was a private, and little is recorded about his service. An old Revolutionary
War_veteran swore in an affidavit for Henry’s son Jonathan’s pension
application that said Henry’s house on the Broad River in South Carolina was
considered a haven for distressed Whigs during the struggle for independence.

Born in Ulster, Ireland, he came to York, SC., via Pennsylvania and
Orange (Augusta) Co., Vi

Before leaving Virginia, Henry was a member of the Augusta Presbyterian
Church, also called the 01d Stone Church, where his first two sons were
baptised in 1748 and 1749 (Rev. John Craig "01d Stone Church" p. 21 per "Smith
Cousins 4" p.9).

1749 Abraham, Daniel, Henry and John Smith signed a petition seeking a
road from John Patton’s over the mountain to Cap. John Smith’s in Augusta Co.,
VA (Chalkley I p. 432).

The following land transactions by Henry Smith occured in Augusta County,
Va: 3 Nov. 1750 Henry Smith patented 135 ac on Howell’s Branch, cor. Abraham
Smith (Chalkley IIT p. 343; Augusta Co., VA DB 7 p. 347). 1 June 1756 Henry
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Smith took delivery of a deed from Silas Hart, gent., and wife Jane to John
Smith, 230 ac part of 400 ac pat to Jno. McClure 15 Dec 1749 (Ibid, p. 341); 1
June 1756 Silas Hart, gent., and Jane to Henry Smith L.50, 170 ac on South Fork
of North River Shanando, part of 400 ac above (Ibid p. 343). 18 Aug 1756 Henry
Smith and Amie (Emie) so1d to John Poage. for L.45, 135 ac on Howells Br
patented to Henry, 3 Nov 1750, cor. Abraham Smith. Teste: Simpson Archer,
Daniel Callachan (Chalkley I1i p. 343; Aug. Co. VA DB 7 p. 347); 18 May i762.
Gabriel Pickens sold to Abraham Smith, L.50, 200 ac. on a br of Bever Creek;
cor. Henry Smith ( Ibid DB 10 p. 331). 13 Sept 1763, James Humphries of Rowan
Co., NC, to Henry Smith , L.30, 400 ac. on Free Mason’s Branch of North River
Shanando. David Davis’ line, pine on top Castle Hill on s. sd. North River,
pat’d to James 20 Jun 1747. Test: Jno Malcomb. Henry conveyed this property to
William Shannon for L.62.10, 24 Nov. 1763 (Chalkley 111 p. 404, 409, 487; Aug.
Co. DB 11 p. 413, 559 & DB i5 p. 470 Ff); 24 Nov. 1763 Henry sold 400 ac.; 27
Jun 1764, Henry Smith patented 400 ac. on North River of the Shanando (Chalkley
111 p. 420; Aug. Co. DB 11 p. 815).; 27 Sep 1764.--Henry Smith, farmer, and
Anelia, to Adam Stephen of Fredrick Co., L.136, 170 ac. conveyed to Henry by
Silas Hart, 1st June 1756, on South Fork of North River of Shanondoe.
Delivered: Robert Stephen, 29 Sept. 1797. Teste: William Teas and Wm. Smart. 27
Sept 1764. Same to same, [.100.10, 400 ac by patent, 27 Jun 1764 to Henry
Smithnon North River of Shanando, Hickory in the Barrens (Chalkley 111 p. 420;
Aug. Co. DB 11 p. 813-816)

28 May 1751 Henry and Daniel Smith among those ordered to keep the road
from John Davis’s mill to Wood’s New Cleared Gap in good repair (Chalkley I p.
44; Aug. Co. 0B 2 p. 574).

19 Aug 1752, John Lynn, an orphan boy, complains that Ro. Edge had
brought him from the lower parts of this Colony and indentured him to John
Ransey, and he to Henry Smith, and he to Silas Hart. Indenture declared void
;rltg)lirdens ordered to bind him out (Chalkley I p. 53; Aug. Co. VA 0B 3 p.

22 Jan 1756. Henry was named in the will of his brother, John, who died
at Ft. Vaus (Chalkley III p. 42; Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 155).

March 1756. Henry, Daniel and John Smith signed a petition in the case of
King vs. 0’Neal (see Coi. John for description).

21 June 1757. Mortain Cornet-- Servant of Henry Smith (Chalkley I p. 76;
Aug. Co. VA 0B 5 p. 426). This order repeated 21 Dec. 1757 (Ibid p. 79; OB 6 p.
87).

21 Dec 1758. Henry Smith was one of the witnesses to the will of William
Stephenson (Chalkley IIT p. 52; Aug. Co. WB 2 p. 300).

19 Aug 1761. Henry Smith and John Malone, to view ground from Mr. Hart’s
to the Meeting House on Cook’s Creek, for road (Chalkley I p.92; Aug. Co. 0B 7
p. 56). Also 19 Aug. Henry Smith recorded as a purchaser at estate sale of
Jacob Sivers (Chalkley IIT p. 86, Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 75).

19 Nov 1762. Henry Smith surety for John Smith as admr. of James Lawson,
and also for Edward Erwin as excr. of John Erwin (Chalkley III p. 73; Aug. Co.
VA WB 3 p. 197, 199).

22 Mar 1764. Commission for examination of Amey, wife of Henry Smith.
(This was probaly in relation to dower rights on the sale of land when they
moved to Carolina) (Chalkley I, p. 112; Aug. Co. 0B 8 p.410).

Nov. 1764. William Shannon vs. Henry Smith--1764. (Chaikley I p. 330;
Aug. Co. Court Judgements Nov. 1764 [B]).This would have been about the time
Henry went to the Carolinas. Shannon may have learned that Henry was leaving
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Virginia and sought judgement to protect a mortgage.

Mar. 1765. Henry Smith vs. John Craig.--Qui Tam. Writ, 28th June 1763.
Roanoke (or Hance’s) Meadow, near New River Chalkley p. 331; Aug. Co. Court
Judgenents March 1765 [B]).

Oct. 1765. Henry Smith vs. Samuel Cowdon.--Henry on 15 Sept. 1758, became
security for Thomas Fulton on a bond of Margaret Dyer--payable on or before
16th September next ensuing date. After same was payable and before it was paid
it was assigned to John Cravens, who married Margaret to Robert Cravens
(Chalkley I p.349; Aug. Co. Court Judgements October 1765 [D]).

21 Nov. 1766 Henry received his legacy from his brother John (Chalkley
111 p. 96; Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 486).

According to Joe and Annie Laurie Hamrick, the present owner of the
Smith’s Ford property, other families who came with the Smith’s from Virginia
included Bratton, McGil1 and White. The original South Carolina home of Henry
Smith, probably built in the 1760’s, was located at Smith’s Ford on the Broad
River, on the York County side of the river. The original house no longer
stands, but a home built about 1800, known to have been later occupied by
Henry, ‘grandson of Abraham, stands at approximately the same location, and is
still occupied. The original part consists of two rooms down and two rooms up
constructed over a cellar. Joe and Annie Laurie Hamrick, the present owners,
were kind enough to show me through the property in 1993 and again in 1994. It
has been maintained in pretty much the original condition and is furnished
according to the period. Parts of the fish traps can still be seen in the river
in the channel between the island (Smith or Mud Island, just south of the ford,
about a mile long and about 60 acres) and the York County side of the river.
The house sits on a tree-shaded rise a short distance from the river at the end
of a dirt drive off of Smith’s Ford Road, which turns west (right) off of Hy.
211 a short distance south of Walnut Grove, SC just after you pass the first
church on the right and before you reach the second church. After a couple of
miles there will be a sign on the right warning that there is a school bus stop
ahead. On the Teft there is a wrought iron sign saying *Smiths Ford Farm." A
dirt road turns off to the left, soon goes down a steep hill, and the Hamrick
house is at the end of the road. The site is almost due west of Hickory Grove.

The Ford itself begins at an indentation in the bank just opposite the
house. According to Joe Hamrick, the course of the ford meandered across the
river in a long "S" shape. Howeil’s ferry, later used for crossing the river,
was reached by continuing past Smith’s ford, some distance to the north. The
Hamricks say it was actually owned by John, son of Henry, who lived to the
north of Henry. The Hamricks in 1944 took a group of us to visit the abandoned
cemetary of the John Smith Family which is back on Smith Ford Road about a mile
back toward Hickory Grove in the woods atop a steep highway cut.

Henry served as a Private and as a Sergeant in Col. Taylor’s Regiment
during the Revolutionary War, serving at least 116 days. He was a horseman for
26 days in the expedition to Congarees Fort in 1781, when he would have been
aged 54. In 1782 he served 26 days as a footman on an expedition to Bigan
Creek, and 66 days as a Sgt. of foot on an expedition to Orangeburg. He lost
his horse at Ashes Defeat (elsewhere called Briarcreek Bridge defeat) for which
he received L.60.0. According to the indents included in the file, he also
supplied at various times wheat, oats, forage for horses, rations, corn etc.,
for Gen. Sumpter and other forces of the Whigs. There is some confusion about
the time served in the militia, for it appears that some of the time reported
in his Indents account was probably by Henry, Jr. That reported above
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Born, 1789 (2), in York Co., SC. Died in Pickens Co., AL. Census: 1830, in
Pickens Co., AL. Census: 1840, in Pickens Co., AL. Census: 1850, in Pickens
Co., AL. Occupation: Physician.

The 1830 census of Pickens Co., Al., p. 114 lists William Richards at
Pickensville, man and wife age 30-40, 1 female 10-15, 2 females 0-5, 2 males
5-10. There is a female age 70 to 80 who is probably Mary "Molly" Guyton Smith,
widow of Abraham, and his mother-in-law.

In the estate file of Mary "Molly" Guyton Smith in York Co., SC. there is
a letter from him to his uncle Joseph Guyton, who he and his wife had given
power of attorney to secure their inheritance.

The 1840 census lists William Richards, man and wife 40-50, 1 male 20-30,
1 male 15-20, 2 females 10-15, 1 male 5-10.

The 1850 census of Pickens County, Al., p. 91 lists William Richards, age
61, a physician, born in SC, owned $700 in Real Estate; wife Catharine, age 52,
born in SC; Elnathan D., age 29 Male, born SC, a farmer; Daniel M., age 19,
farmer, b. AL; John R., Farmer, age 17, AL; Living with them are a teacher
named E1i Barefield and two children, relationship if any unknown: William
Powell, age 6 birn Texas and Mary J. Powell age 3 born MS. Thomas A. Richards,
a farmer, ‘probably a son, Tives next door He is 32, owns land worth $400, born
in SC. His wife is Mary B., age 17 and child Catherine R., age 1, the last two
born in AL. Children:

4. Thomas A.® Richards. Born, 1818, in Union Co., SC. Census:
1850, in Pickens Co., AL. Occupation: Farmer. Shown in 1850
census of Pickens Co., AL., p.71 age 32.

i1. Elnathan D. Richards. Born, 1821, in Union Co., SC. Census:
1850, in Pickens Co., AL. Occupation: Farmer. Shown in 1850
census of Pickens Co., Al, p. 71. age 29.

ii1. Daniel M. Richards. Born, 1831, in Pickens Co., AL. Census:
1850, in Pickens Co., AL. Occupation: Farmer. Shown in 1850
census of Pickens Co., AL., p. 71, age 29.

iv. dJohn R. Richards. Born, 1833, in Pickens Co., AL. Census: 1850,
in Pickens Co., AL. Shown on 1850 census of Pickens Co., AL, p.
71, age 17.

v. William Powell Richards. Born, 1844, in Pickens Co., AL.
Census: 1850, in Pickens Co., AL.

16, Whitaker* Smith (Jonathan, 11)”7-7°. Born, 26 Jan 1787 (2), in York Co.,
SC’°. Died, 15 Sep 1850, in Anderson Co., SC. Burial in Hopewell Church,
Cemetary.

Whitaker Smith was a First Corporal during the War of 1812 in Nash’s
Regiment, South Carolina Volunteers. Named as a coexecutor of his fathers will,
he received 1 shilling. He made bond as Executor with his step-mother Elizabeth
on 29 Sept. 1829.

He married Mary Moorhead®®, 31 Mar 1808. Born, 8 Oct 1788 (?). Died, 2
Jan 1875, ‘in Anderson Co., SC. Burial: 1675, in HopeweTl Bapt., Cemetary.
Children:

i. Aaron John® Smith. Born, 21 Jan 1830. Died, 30 Jul 1864. He
married Ann Smith.
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specifically states Henry Sr. From the record it appears that 50 days of his
service was under the command of his son Daniel. In addition to his
compensation, the same file lists the compensation paid to Henry on behalf of
his son, Lieut. Daniel Smith, who died from wounds recived at The Battle of
Stono, who also Tost a horse valued at L.100.0. (Audited Rev. War Account of
Henry Smith and Daniel Smith #7127, Ro11 136, Frames 326-350, S. C. Dept. of
History and Archives, Columbia, SC¥).

Henry owned at least 1605 acres in South Carolina, Tocated at Smith’s
Ford on the east side of the Broad River, near Howard's Branch, and an island,
His home was a refuge for General Sumpter, who, wounded at the nearby Battle of
Blackstocks, was brought to the home by two of Henry’s sons for rest and
doctoring. For an account of Smith Ford being used as an assembly point for
troops_between July and August 1780, see "History of Union Co.” p.63-4.

The following land transactions were recorded in Mecklinburg County,
North Carolina, but were later discovered to be on land in Craven (now York)
Co., South Carolina:

23 Aug. 1765 Land grant for 150 ac. on East side of Broad River.
According to S. C. Auditor General Memorials dated 14 Dec. 1773, v. 12 p. 450%,
Tand began at a hickory on Gavin (Guyon) Moore’s Corner. Orig. grant to Henry
Smith by Gov. Tyron, of NC, but since determined to be in Craven (York) Co.,
SC. According to the plat, this property is just north of Howard’s Branch, and
just touches the river near the south end of the island, and apparently is just
South of Henry’s Smith Ford property.

He bought 400 acres from John Love, heir of William Love, for L.37 4 Jan
1767, Tand originally granted to William Love 3 Sept 1753. A confirming SC deed
was issued 14 Dec 1773 to confirm the original transaction recorded in NC. This
property included Henry Smith’s own improvements and lay on both sides of the
Broad River, and is probably the site of Smith’s Ford and his home. Granted to
William Love, 3 Sept. 1753...John Love (S) Martha Love (S).(DB 4 p.223-4, Meck.
Co. NC). This Smith Ford property was conveyed by John Love, heir of William, 3
Jan 1767, per S. C. Auditor General Memorials dated 14 Dec. 1773, v. 12, p.
45+

17 Apr. 1767, Henry Smith of Meck. Co., NC, to John Russell of same, for
#40...%and on E side of Broad River, above Wn. Loves patent, including an
fmprovement bought of Michael Taylor...granted to sd Smith 30 Oct. 1765...Henry
smith (S), Ema Smith (A), Wit: Thomas Chadwock, Nath. Clark, Reyderius Clark.
Proved July term 1768. DB 3,p.157-8 Mecklinburg Co., NC ("Meck. Co., NC Deed
Abstr.” p. 78).

7 Aug. 1767 Henry Smith of Meck., to William McMullan of same, for
#40...190 ac...part of a tract of land patented in the name of William Love of
400 A. 3 Sept. 1753, and since conveyed by John Love, heir to sd. William Love,
unto Henry Smith...Henry Smith (S), Amy Smith (), Wit: Henry Clark, Matt.
Floyd, George Gibson, Prov. Oct term 1767. DB 4, p. 223-4, Meck. Co. NC. (Ibid,
p. 103).

11 Aug. 1767 Henry Smith and Abraham Smith witnessed a deed Andrew
Campbell and wf Jean to Matthew Floyd for L.30..Tand on both sides of Broad
River adj. above Paul’s land 195 A granted to Andrew Campbell 26 Sept. 1766. DB
4, p.359-61 (Ibid, p. 111).

15 222 1768, Jno. McKnitt Alexander and Henry Smith witnessed a deed
between Matthew Floyd to Daniel Warlock and others, 50 A including a school
house for #10. DB 4, p. 437-9, Meck. Co. NC (Ibid, p. 117).

20 Apr. 1768 Henry Smith witnessed a deed Joseph Jolly to Thomas Wade of
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SC, merchant, for L.15 proc. money 160 A on Thicketty Creek. DB 4, p. 499-500,
(Ibid, p. 119).

21 0ct. 1768 Henry Smith witnessed a deed from John McMillan, planter of
Meck., to John McKnitt Alexander of same, for #30 proc. money, 100 A on E. Side
of Broad River on both sides of Bullocks Creek adj. Smith, Hartness,
Stephenson, Armstrong, Riggs, granted to McMillan 25 Apr. 1767...John McMillan
(S). DB 4, p. 840-1 Meck. Co., NC (Ibid, p. 139).

2 Jan. 1769, Henry Smith witnessed a deed from Robert Wilson, planter of
Meck., to John McKnitt Alexander of same for #5 proc. money, 100 A on E. side
of Broad River on both sides Moore’s Creek adj. McKinney, Floyd, granted to
Robert Wilson, 1768...Robert Wilson, (S), Wit: Henry Smith, Jacob Gardner. DB
4, p. 840-1, Meck. Co. NC (Ibid, p. 139).

A plat of 200 acres was_surveyed for Henry Smith on the waters of Rocky
Creek, Craven Co., SC 7 Aug 1771 bd by Bonner’s land and vacant land. (S. C.
Surveyor General, Colonial Plats, v. 19 p. 529, S. C. Archives, Columbia¥).

A plat of 100 acres was surveyed for Henry Smith on a Branch of the Broad
River in Craven Co., S. C. bd SH John Taylor and all other sides by vacant land
on 12 Sept. 1771, ($. C. Surveyor General, Colonial Plats, v. 19 p. 525%).

The following filed S. C. Auditor General Memorials which showed their
Jands bounded by that of Henry Smith in 1773 and 1774: Thomas Kelsey (v. 12 p.
gég-} James Taylor on Gill’s Creek (vol. 13 p. 89*), and Hugh Mose (voi 12 p.

Henry Smith claimed a Colonial Grant of 210 ac Craven Co., SC, on Rocky
Cr. surveyed 8 Jul 1774, granted 11 Aug 1774 (SC Colonial Grants v. 32 p. 146
and SC Auditor General Memorial filed 24 Jan 1775 v. 13 p. 253+).

Henry Smith was granted 100 ac Broad River, Craven Co. SC surveyed 10 Feb
}Zéi plat entered 3 Apr 1775, SC Colonial Grant 28 Aug. 1775 (v.36 p. 47).

"In the year 1775 a large group of settlers in this area (Then Craven and
Berkley counties, later Union (Cherokee) and York Counties, SC) found that
their lands were actually located in the Province of South Carolina, whereas
the grants to the lands had been issued by the Province of North Carolina. "To
correct this situation they jointly petitioned the Earl of Dartmouth, his
Majesty’s Principal Secretary of the State for America at Whitehall...for the
relief of your petitioners as may effectually tend to quiet and estabiish them
in peaceable posession and enjoyment of their said Tands..." ("A History of
Union Co. SC*, Union County Historical Foundation, p. 15-7). Henry, Abraham,
William, Jonathan, Gide, Daniel and another Jonathan Smith were among the
signers of the petetion.

On Sept. 13, 1784 Henry bought a tract of land for L.71 from Ralph Rogers
Tocated on Gilkies Creek, Ninety Six District between lands patented to John
Winn on the south and on the north of Jonathan Gilkies containing 200 acres
granted to Archibald Robison by patent 28 May 1766. Ralph Rogers. Wit: Solomon
Mangham, John Hyndman. Recorded 28 Mar 1786. (DB A/92-3 Union Co., SC*)

July Court 1786, York County, SC, MB A, p. 33: John Steen vs. Joseph
Robison. Henry Smith Senr sun’d Garnishee failed to appear. ordered that a
scire facias issue against him. ("York County Court Records’, p. 10).

Henry was_granted 77 acres by the State of SC 96 District on &ilkies
Creek, a br of Thicketty Cr, surveyed 17 May 1788 (SC State Plats v. 23, p.
312%) and granted 6 Oct. 1788 (SC State Grants v. 24 p. 478*)

C. E. May, on p. 73 of "4 Flags", relates that Henry entertained the
Methodist Bishop Asbury one evening, and at bedtime offered the Bishop a Bible
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and a flask of brandy. The great Bishop accepted only the Bible, saying he
thought that would suffice.

In the 1790 Census of the Camden District, York Co., SC, page 30, both
Henry and his son Henry, Jr. are listed, as well as his other sons. The elder
Henry is believed to be the first entry which shows 1 male over 16 and 4
females, living near Capt. Abraham Smith and Aaron Guyton.

Will of Henry Smith. In the name of God, Amen. I Henry Smith of York
County State of South Carolina being weak in body and much distressed by pain,
yet through the assistance of Divine Providence, of sound judgement & memory.
Do make this my Tast Will & Testament, hereby excluding all other hithertofore
made by me. Commanding my Soul to God who gave it, to be received by him
through the merits of Jesus Christ, And my Body to the dust to be decently
Buried, at the expence of my Executors, and First, I will that my beloved wife
do hold and posess all my Estate real and personai during her life or
widowhood, and then to be disposed of in the following manner--And first to my
oldest son Abraham I Will and Bequeath my Second Volume of Pools Anotations. To
my son David I will the plantation where on I live to Hold the same in Fee
Talc. and in case he dieth without Heir of his body, to be sold and divided
amongst the rest of my Children Male and female. To my son John I Bequeath
fifty Acres of Land. And to my son Henry One hundred acres the which they are
already posessed of and also to my son Henry my Negroe fellow named Sam
together with one half of the fishery in his Brother John’s division. To my son
Jonathan 1 will my Negroe Wench named Rose reserving at the same time forty
pounds to be paid by him to his Brother William in trade & her first Child if
she has any to my Daughter Sarah Ramsey. To my grand Child Henry Jolley I
Bequeath a Mare worth ten pounds together with two Milch Cows to his Mother to
be paid by my Executors And the Remainder of my Estate to be equally divided
amongst my Daughters, married and single. Appointing my beloved Wife and my two
sons John and William Executors of this my last Will and Testament. Sign’d &
Seal’d this Eleventh Day of July in the Year of our Lord one thousand seven
hundred & ninety Henry Smith. Wit. Nathan Guyton (X), Nicholas Carney. (Will
Book A-12 p. 65 York Co., SC.*).

The Will of Henry Smith Senior , deceased, was proved by Nathaniel Guyton
and ordered to be recorded on the first Monday in May, 1791, York County Court,
MB A, p. 305. ( "York County Court Records® p. 94). (His son, Abraham Smith
Esquire, was a_judge on this court).

7 Feb. 1792. The York County Court (on which his son Abraham sat as a
Justice) ordered that the Will of Henry Smith Senr decd be set aside, and that
Adninistration of said Estate be granted to Abraham Smith Esqr and John Smith
who came and took the oaths required by law. (Ibid, p. 103).

In 1794, Henry’s administrators sold by the Sheriff in York County 95
acres to James Jordan and 100 acres to Henry Smith (Jr.). (DB C/542 and D/303*)

6 Feb. 1795. An account of the Estate of Henry Smith Senr dec’d was
produced by Abraham Smith Esq’r the Administrator, whereby it appears that
there is due by said Estate by obligations, funeral and other expences,
1.36.5.5 Ster’] and by Accounts L.183.13.1 and that the amount of said Estate
in the)hands of Adninistrator is L.107.10.5 per York County MB B, p. 103 (Ibid,
p. 148).

He married®® Amelia Unknown "Amy, Emie, Aime"*°, circa 1746 (2), in
Augusta Co., VA. Born, circa 1726 (22) in VA. Died, circa 1792 (2), in Smith’s
Ford, York Co., SC*°.
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18 Aug 1756. Anie (Emie) Smith signed dower rights on sale of land to
John Poage ((Chalkley III p. 343; Aug. Co. VA DB 7 p. 347).

There has been much speculation about her given name since it is
variously spelled Any, Eny, Aime, Ainy. The deed she signed 27 Sept. 1764,
Henry Smith, farmer, and AMELIA, to Adam Stephen, indicates her real name was
AneTia_(Chaikley III p. 420; Aug. Co. VA DB 11 p. 813-4).

The Tineage papers of Mrs. Dollie Forester filed with the Daughters of
American Colonists, p. 277, show that Henry Smith, son of Capt. John Smith,
married Amelia Hampton in 1770. This cannot be the correct date, and is
probably not the right person, since she was born 1749, making her younger than
several of Henry’s children. I also find no record of Henry and Amelia having a
child named Delilah, who was born 1798, after Henry’s death. Children:

i. Letty® Smith <Letitia?> <Lettice?>. Born, circa 1743 (2), in
VA,

Her brother Jonathan named one of his daughters Lettice
or Letitia, which may have also been her name. She or her
sister Leah married a Jolley, since Henry’s will bequeathed a
mare worth ten pounds and two milch cows to his grandson Henry
Jolley.

Leah Smith. Born, circa 1745 (2), in VA.

Capt. Abraham Smith Esq.

John Smith.

Henry Saith Jr.

Willian Saith.

Jonathan Smith.

Lieut. Daniel Smith®**>*. Born, circa 1764 (?), in Augusta Co.,
VA. Died, circa 1777 (2), in Battle of Stono, SC. Military Sv
in Rev. War.

Daniel was a Revolutionary War soldier, and was killed at
the Battle of Stono, as attested by an old veteran in his
brother Jonathan’s Revolutionary War Pension Application.

12 ix. David Smith.
x. Sarah Smith. Born, circa 1770 (?), in York Co., SC. Died, after
1792. She married Unknown Ramsey.
In the will of her father dated 1790 and probated 1792
she, Sarah Ramsey, was bequeathed the first child of Negroe
wench Rose willed to her brother Jonathan.

ESoay

3;1 Jonathan® Smith (Col. John, 1)>>. Born, 22 Jul 1744, in Orange (Augusta),

Many genealogists do not include Jonathan among Col. Smith’s children,
but his name does appear in the second set of sons named in John Smith’s first
will of 1754.

Records of the Tinkling Springs Church in Orange Co., VA. gives his
christening date as 22 July 1744 (Howard M. Wilson The Tink1ing Spring McClure,
VA 1954, p. 481 per Aronheim p. 5).

13 Mar 1760 Jonathan accompanied his parents and others to the home of
John Reese and witnessed his will (Aronheim p.19; Aug. Co. WB 3 p. 24).

28 Feb 1767 John Smith to Jonathan Smith, L.90, slaves. Teste: John
Mills, Joseph Luney, James McKain, William Bowen (Chalkley III p. 465; Aug. Co.
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VA DB 14 p. 229).

21 May 1767. Jonathan Smith qualified Captain of Militia (Chalkley I p.
134; Aug. Co. VA 0B 9 p. 82).

16 Mar 1768. James McKain and Jonathan Smith’s bond to James Ledderdale
who with John Miller (now deceased) was surety of Margaret Looney as admx of
her Tate husband Peter Looney. 17 Mar 1768. Jonathan Smith made bond (with
Joseph Looney) as guardian of Peter Looney, orphan of Peter Looney (Chalkley
TI1 p. 103; Aug. Co. VA WB 4 p. 93-4). 17 Mar 1768 Jonathan Smith appointed
guardian of Peter Looney (Chalkley I p. 146; Aug. Co. OB 11 p. 507).

18 May 1768. James McKain to Jonathan Smith, Robert Faris and James
Lauderdale, 1.30, 1 waggon, 2 black horses, 1 bay mare, 1 bay horse. Teste:
Margaret McKain (Chalkley 111 p. 470; Aug. Co. VA DB 14 p. 445).

29 Aug 1768. Jonathan Smith one of the appraisers of John Bowyer’s estate
(Chalkley 111 p. 107; Aug. Co. VA WB 4 p. 182).

4 Mar 1769. Jonathan Smith witnessed a deed John Buchanan and Margaret to
Michael Daugherty, L.10, in forks of the James (Chalkley 111 p. 480; Aug. Co.
VADB 15 p. 251).

16 Aug 1769. John and Jonathan Smith and George Skillern appointed
appraisers on the James River part of the estate of John Buchanan (Chalkley I
p. 158; Augusta Co. 0B 13 p. 322).

About 1765, his father told him to take his son and buy both a suit of
clothes at William Crow’s store in Staunton. This led to an attempt by Crow to
cheat the Colonel. The matter came to trial in 1773 (Aronheim p. 24; Chalkley I
p. 367; Aug. Co. Court Judgements May 1773-A).

28 Feb 1767 Col. Smith made over to his son Jonathan some of his slaves
for L.90. William Bowen, brother of Rees Bowen was a witness (Aug. Co., VA DB
14 p. 229 per Aronheim p. 25). According to Aronheim, Jonathan was barely more
successful than brother David, who was not successful at all.

17 Mar 1774, Road from Jacob Aberman’s Mill to the North Fork, at mouth
of Seneca Creek--to be viewed by Jonathan Smith, William Smith, Jacob
Stalnacker and John White (Chalkley I p. 178; Aug. Co. OB 15 p. 326).

10 May 1778. Jonathan Smith, George Westfall and George Jackson appointed
constables (Chalkiey I p. 197; Aug. Co. 0B 16 p. 291).

He married Unknown woman. Children:

i. George® Smith>*.
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6. John® Smith (Judge Daniel, 3)>>. Born, 30 Nov 1752, in Augusta Co., VA,
Died, before 1778, in Augusta Co., VA.

17 Aug 1774. Abraham Smith to John Smith, son of Daniel Smith/ Whereas
John Smith, brother of said Abraham Smith, about 1753 did agree with Silas Hart
for the purchase of a tract on South Fork of North River of Shanandoah; John
died in year 1757, having will wherein he devised to above John, son of his
brother Daniel Smith; Daniel paid the consideration to Hart, 1st June 1756, and
received deed to John, 1st June 1756. John Smith’s will was proved by only one
witness and may be called in question by the heirs of said Abraham, who was the
oldest brother and heir-at-law of John, deceased (Chalkley IIT p. 539-40; Aug.
Co. VA DB 20 p. 371).

22 Jan 1776 Daniel, Joseph and Robert Smith witnessed a deed Abraham
Miller and Elizabeth to John Kring (Chalkley III p. 553; Aug. Co. VA DB 22 p.
153).

24 June 1776 Lieut. Daniel Smith and Ensign John Smith claimed pay for
service against the Cherokees in June 1774. John was allowed 3s.6d. per day, or
61.135_(Wayland "VA Valley" p. 85).

29 Aug 1777. List of those indebted to the estate of Roger North includes
"John Smith, son of Daniel, dead" (Chalkley III p. 167; Aug. Co. WB 6 p.
334-41).

26 May 1778 Rockingham Court ordered that Josiah Harrison, Jno. Smith,
son of Danl, John Herdman and Nehemiah Harrison, or any three of them, being
first sworn appga;se the estate of Alex Herring, dec’d ("Rockingham Recorder”
V. 1, No. 1p. 80).

John Smith is Tisted on the Botentourt Co. VA Personal Property Tax List
of 1787, 0 white males 16-21; 4 blacks over 16; 2 blacks under 16; 8 horses,
mares, colt and mules; 23 cattle (Schreiner-Lantis and Love "Tax List 1787,
Botentourt Co" p.20).

He married Margaret Davis, circa 1776 (2), in Augusta Co., VA. Children:

i. Judge Daniel* Smith. Born, 1779, in Harrisonburg, VA. Died, 8

Nov 1850, in Rockingham Co., VA
“A’learned, pure judge, and a good man. ... In 1805 he was

a member of the VA house of Delegates; from 1804-1811 he was
Commonwealth’s Attorney for Rockingham; on 10 April 1811, he
was appointed a Judge of the General Court, and from the same
date ti11 his death (1850) he was judge of the circuit and
superior court for Rockingham County. His portrait now adorns
the Rockingham County Courtroom. His residence was a short
distance north of Dayton near the Shrum brick factory.*
(Wayland "History of Rockingham Co.", p. 352).
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7. Capt. Abraham® Smith Esq. (Henry Sr., 4)°. Born, circa 1747, in Augusta
Co., VA. Died, Jun 1806, in Union (Cherokee), Co., SC. Military Sv in Rev. War.
Census: 1790, in Camden Dist., York Co., SC. Census: 1800, in Union Co., SC.
Occupation: Judge/Planter.

Revolutionary War Officer. Captain in York County SC Militia. Magistrate,
Justice of the Peace, County Judge, Intermediate Court Judge, Tavern Keeper,
and Planter in York County, SC. He performed the marriage of Aaron Guyton, his
brother-in-1aw, and Margaret McCurdy, a heroine of the revolution. Around 1795
he moved across the river to what was then Union (now Cherokee) County.

A soldier in the Revolutionary War, and a captain in the state Militia,
the DAR has his birthdate in error in the "Patriot Index” p.623, showing 1723,
which was the date of birth of his Uncle, Colone] Abraham Smith. In Rev. John
Craig’s The 01d Stone Church , p.21 Abraham, son of Henry Smith, was baptised
at the 01d Stone Church, Augusta Co., VA 2 Oct 1748.(*Smith Cousins 4" p. 9).

11 Aug. 1767, Abraham and Henry Smith witnessed a deed from Andrew
Campbell and wf Jean to Matthew Floyd. DB 4, p. 359-61, Meck. Co., NC. ("Meck.
Co. Deed Abstracts” p. 111).

John Bremar and Peter Sinkler filed plats showing their land bd by
Abraham in 1770 (SC Col. S. 6. Plats v. 19 p. 493, 443%).

In 1772 Geo. Shed, whose land was "2 miles South of Smith’s Ford on Broad
River” owned land bd by Abraham Smith (S.C. Col. S. 6. Plats v.19 p. 413%).

In 1775 Abraham Smith was among those petitioning the Earl of Dartmouth
for recognition of their grants to property now determined to be in South
Can;;ig; which had been issued by North Carolina (*History of Union Co., SC*,
p. 15-6).

Per the audited Revolutionary War accounts of Abraham Smith #7100 (Ro11
135 frames 425-8 SC Archives), he provided sundries for the Continental
Militia, paid L.15.15.3 1/2 stg. 28 Oct 1784 (Ident 422 Book L); 19 Dec. 1780
he provided 200 wt. of hay and a hog for the troops.. On July 6, 1781, he
provided a black horse about 14 1/2 hands high and feed and forage for 16
horses of the saddled Dragoons on command of Capt. Stevenson. On 9 Aug. 1781,
he provided 3 bushels of wheat for Gen. Sumter’s army. On 20 Aug. 1782, he
provided 4 bushels of wheat, and on May 3, 1784 half a bushel of corn for Col.
William Hills troops. There is also an ident for a bay horse, but details are
illegible.

770 acres_in Camden District on Love’s Creek was surveyed for Abraham
Smith 11 Feb. 1787, plat recorded 5 Mar 1787 (SC State Plats v. 11 p. 263*),
grant issued 7 Nov. 1787 (SC State Grants, v. 19 p. 115%).

The following references to records of the York County Court are taken
from "York Co., SC Minutes of the County Court 1786-1797":

April term of York County Court, 1786, p. 18: Abraham Smith, Hugh Quinn,
and Capt. James Thompson appointed Commissioners to lay out and mark a road
from Mr. Hugh Quinn’s to Hilhouses ford on Turkey Creek. (Ibid, p. 5).

July term of York County Court, 1786, p. 37: Abraham Smith and Clayton
Rogers proved deed of sale from James Hamiiton to Ralph Rogers.(Ibid, p. 11).
He had apparently been a notary before this time, for another entry refers to a
deed formerly proved before Abraham Smith. On page 42, on Thursday, July 13th,
1786 a Tawsuit Samuel Montgomery vs. Abraham and John Smith was dismissed when
plantiff failed to appear. (Ibid, p. 12). On page 45 of the minutes, Abraham
was named a Petit Juror for the October 1786 term. (Ibid, p. 14).

In the October term of the York County Court, 1786, Abraham served as a
petit Juror on several cases, including one between James Hannah Senior vs
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Rachel Smith and William Smith. (Ibid, p. 23-27).
o S(l:r)l 1787 he bought a tract of land from James Campbell (DB B p. 230 Union

In the January Court, 1788, York County Minutes page 131, Abraham Smith
was granted a license to keep a Comon Tavern at his dwelling house. On page
133 of the minutes, Maj. William Hannah and Abraham Smith were appointed to
arbitrate a lawsuit between John McCool and John Dennis involving a charge of
slander. (Ibid, p. 39). On page 137, George Ross and Abraham Smith proved a deed
from William and Ann Harris to John Martin. (Ibid, p. 39).

April Court 1788 Minutes, York Co., SC, p. 150; Capt. James Martin and
Abraham Smith and others appointed to arbitrate a suit James Gill vs. James
Hogg. (Ibid, p. 44).

Named a Justice of the Peace, he was seated as a County Judge and
Intermediate Court Judge in the July Court, York County, SC in July 1788, and
retained the position at least until 1795. During this period, he was licensed
to operate a comnon Tavern in his home. Sometime between 1795 and 1800 he moved
across the river to Union County apparently south to Gilkey’s Creek. According
to census records, he lived near his brothers, John and David, and his father
Henry.

July Court 1788. Abraham Smith Esqr, appointed a Justice of the Peace for
this county, produced his commission and fook his seat on the bench. It appears
at that time the Justice of the Peace was a member of the County Court and an
intermediate court_judge. (Minute Book A, p. 156 per Ibid, p. 46). In the July
tern, there was a lawsuit between the County and James Barron vs. Abraham Smith
which was dismissed when the plantiff failed to appear. (Ibid, p. 48) On page
168 of the minutes Joseph Carr was appointed constable and ordered to qualify
before Abraham Smith, Esqr. (Ibid, p. 49).

0n 12 Feb 1788 Abraham purchased 150 acres on a br of Love’s Creek of
Broad river in York County, SC, part of an original grant to Thomas Price by
the Colony of NC 22 Dec 1768, from James Davidson of Burke County, N. C., Wit:
Moses Edmiston, Jacob Hofstetler (X), recorded 15 Apr 1788. (York Co., SC DB
B-42%). This seller was probably not the James Davidson whose descendants later
internarried with the descendants of Abraham Smith.

October Court, 1788, Minute Book A, p. 173: Abraham Smith and others
rendered an arbitration decision in a case Edward Moorehead vs. James Harbison.
(Ibid, p . 50). On page 182, Abraham is on a panel to arbitrate a dispute
between Matthew Black and Peter Patterson (Ibid, p. 53)

January Court 1789, Minute Book A, p. 194. Abraham Smith licensed to keep
a common tavern for one year.(Ibid, p. 97).

April Court, 1789, Minute Book A, p. 203. Abraham Smith and others
returned arbitration between John Patterson vs Peter Patterson. (Ibid, p. 60).

July Court, 1789, Minute Book A, p. 220. Colo John Barber appealed a
decision by Abraham Smith Esqr which was overturned. (Ibid, p. 65).

October Court, 1789, Minute Book A, p. 240. William Blakely appealed
verdict of Abraham Smith Esqr which was overturned. (Ibid, p. 71).

January Court 1790. Minute Book A, p. 244. Abraham Smith licensed to keep
a comon tavern at his dwelling. (Ibid p. 72). P. 251. Abraham Smith and other
Captains ordered to constitute parties to patrol in their different Captains
Companies or elsewhere that they think necessary....(Ibid, p. 75).

July Court 1790, M8 A, p. 271. Abraham Smith Esqr. vs. John Martin. P &
S. Decree according to the Specialty with Interest and Costs. (Ibid, p. 82)

1790 Census of Camden District, SC., page 30, show Capt. Abraham Smith
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with 1 male over 16, 5 males 0 to 15, 3 females, and 10 slaves. His father and
brothers Tived nearby.

January Court 1791. M A, p. 294. Abraham Smith Esq’r vs. John Martin.
Debt. The jury found for the plantiff L17.10 without interest with costs of
suit. (Ibid, p. 90).

July Court 1791, M8 A. p. 309. Abraham Smith Esquire vs. James and John
Martin. Debt. Judgement confessed according to note with interest and costs.
(Ibid, p. 95) M8 A, p. 313: Daniel Kelly vs. Abraham Smith. Debt. Ordered that
a Ded. Po. issue to William McCulloch Esquire of Union County, by consent of
the parties, to take the deposition of John Hope, de bene esse. (Ibid, p. 97).
The minute book A p. 315, indicates that as a Judge, Abraham Smith stepped down
from the bench during the hearing of the suit of Daniel Kelly against him. The
court appointed surveyors to examine the land and report to the court at the
next session. (Ibid, p. 97). Minute Book A, p. 320 shows that Abraham Smith was
?r:nted a license to keep a common tavern at his dwelling house for one year.

Ibid, p. 99)

11 Nov. 1791 Abraham Smith of York Co. bought land from Wilson Jolley of
Union Co. 100 ac. for L.100 west side of Broad River on a br. of Thicketty Cr.
known as Gilkey’s Creek, and from Nathaniel Jeffries and Sarah, his wife, 400
ac. for L.100 Tand on both sides of Suches (?) Br. of Thicketty Cr. Union
County (DB C p. 122%, 312* Union Co.).

February Court 1792, Minute Book A, p. 330. Ordered that the Will of
Henry Smith Senior decd be set aside, and that Administration of said Estate be
granted to Abraham Smith Esqr and John Smith who came and took the oath
required by law. (Ibid, p. 103). MB A, p.341: Daniel Kelly vs. Abraham Smith
Esqr. Debt. Jury finds for the plantiff according to the bond with interest
from 16th June 1788....Def'ts attorneys prayed an appeal to the Superior Court
....((Ibid, p. 106-7) MB B, p. 28. Daniel Kelly vs. Abraham Smith. Debt.
Defendant moved that the original bond filed in the clerk’s office should not
be taken from thence, until the cost be paid up by the plantiff by his
attornies acknowledged that they had discontinued their proceedings or suffered
a nonsuit in the Superior Court of Law, to which they had appealed. (Ibid, p.
120).

From his father, he inherited the 2nd volume of Pooles Anotations (York
County Estate Papers, SC, Estate of Henry Smith, SC Archives, Columbia, SC.
Case 63, File 2875.

July Court 1794, M8 B, p. 79: Abraham Smith Esqr wished for a tavern
Ticense, but as no Judge but himself was present, it was laid over to the next
Court. (Ibid, p. 140).p. 86. Edw’d Moorhead, Admr, vs James Pinkerton. Trover.
Left to the arbitration of Abrm Smith, Col. Love, & Malcom Henry Esq’rs, their
award to be the judgement of the court. (Ibid, p. 142).

In 1794 Abraham bought a tract of land from John Thompson (DB D p. 54
Union Co., SC). As Administrator of his father’s estate by the Sheriff he sold
95 acres in York County to James Jordan. (DB C p. 542).

February Court 1795. MB B, p. 110. Abraham Smith Esqr, a Judge of this
court, reports that he has administered the oath to Thomas Gillham Esquire, one
of the Justices of the peace for this county. (Ibid, p. 151). MB B, p. 114.
Abraham Smith Esq’r, a judge of this Court, reported that he had administered
the oath to William Love Esq’r a Justice of the peace for this county. Abrahma
Smith and others return the decision in an arbitration between Edward Moorhead
vs. James Pinkerton. (Ibid, p. 152).

3 Apr. 1795. From John Thompson of Union to Abraham Smith 2 negroes Tom
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and Sharper, 3 geldings, sorrell mare, bay mare, 15 cattle for L.50 (Union Co.,
SCDB D p. 54-5%).

July Court 1795, MB B, p. 119: Abraham Smith Esqr was allowed 3 dollars
for public services as a Justice of the Peace. (Ibid, p. 154).

In 1797 Abrahan purchased 186 acres of land in York County from George
Black. (DB E p. 61)

The following events were recorded in "Union County SC. Minutes of the
County Court 1785-1799":

26 Dec. 1787. Abraham Smith proved a deed from John Steen Senior to
Gideon Smith.

23 Sept. 1788. Deed from Janes Cambell to Abraham Smith proved and
recorded. (Ibid, p. 174).

7 June 1792. Deed of Conveyance from Wilson Jolly and Mary his wife to
Abraham Smith proved. (Ibid, p. 339).

April term 1795. A mortgage from John Thompson to Abm. Smith. (Ibid, p.?)

Feb. 8. 1796 Abraham held a mortgage for James and John Martin secured by
a tract of land from James Martin and wife Lilly for L. 490, 700 ac. land both
sides of Thicketty Cr.including widow Stockton’s improvement and the spring
where Charles Clanton lived, James and John Martin, and Martin Sanders (DB G
pages 231-2%, 235%).

The 1800 census of Union County, SC., p. 241, shows Abraham Smith with 1
male 0-10, 1 male 10-16, 3 males 16-26, 1 male 45+, 2 females 0-10, 1 female
10-16, 1 female 26-45, and 13 slaves.

15 Mar 1802 James Clark to Abraham Smith for $150 bay mare 10 yrs old Bay
colt 2 yrs old cow 8 yrs old and calf, feather bed and furniture (Union Co. SC
DB H 111-2%).

19 Sept 1802 Martin Saunders of Christian Co., KY to Abrm. Smith of
GILKEY’S CREEK, 199 ac. Thicketty Cr. for $ 530, (DB G 306-7 Union Co., SC*).

1 Oct 1803 Abraham bought land from Ben Stockton and wife Elizabeth, and
Margot (2) Stockton, widow of David Stockton, dec’d, Land granted to John Steen
land on both sides of Thicketty Cr. including improvements (DB H p. 60-1 Union
Co., SC) and James Clark, (Ibid p. 111).

12 Nov. 1804. Henry Smith, Jr., Exec. for Gideon Smith to Abraham Smith
for $500, 200 ac both sides of Thicketty Cr. Union Co. bd. John Steen. Joseph
l;;reh;l?. John Luck incl. Gideon Smith’s Improvements (Uniomn Co., SC DB

68-9%).

8 Oct. 1805 John Bird sold to Abraham Smith for $100 13 ac. land in Union
County on S. side Gilkey’s Creek (DB I/232-3 [also marked 233-4] Union Co.,
SC*) and 17 March 1806 Wn. Steen to Abraham Smith a gray gelding, a bay mare, a
dark bay horse, a sorrell horse, a waggon and all gear (DB H p. 445-6 Union Co.
SC).

In Will Book A, pages 97-101 dated 13 May 1806, recorded in Union Co. SC,
14 June, 1806, will of Abraham Smith of Union District: to my son John Smith,
200 acres joining Clanton land being part of the land where he now Tiveth, and
what money he oweth me, and to my daughter Polly Humphries, 100 acres, it being
the place whereon she now liveth, also a negro wench named Rachel; and to my
daughter Hannah Alexander, ...that Negro wench she received of me named Winney,
to my grand-child Polley Alexander. a negro girl Sarah. and -to my grandchild
Abraham Alexander, my young mare; to my son Henry Smith, the old survey whereon
he now Tiveth in York District at the ford, about 100 acres also the Tand
adjoining to him formerly granted to Bridges, including the place granted to
his Grand Father whereon Joseph Luck lived; also negro fellow Harry,now in his
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20 i1, Nancy Saith.

17.  Capt. Aaron® Saith (Jonathan, 11). Born, 26 Jul 1789 (?), in York Co.,
SC. Died, 15 Aug 1864 (2).

He was named as a coexecutor of his father’s will, but apparently did not
serve. He received a bequest of 1 shilling in 1829.

He married®® Elizabeth Smith®*, daughter of Nimrod Smith and Letty Wyatt,
19 Jul 1810, in York Co., SC. Born, 16 Sep 1791 (2), in Pendleton Dist., SC.
Died, 31 Mar 1876 (2).

For all descendants see "Some Descendants of Joseph Guyton and Hannah
Whitaker* Guyton Bobo McCall, Atl. Ga. Children:

i. Whitaker Guyton® Saith.
4i. Luther Preston Smith.
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posession; to my son Joseph Smith, remainder of that tract of land upon
Thickety Creek formerly called Stockdills (?) Tand adj. below his brother John,
and negro fellow Tom; to my son Daniel Smith, part of the land whereon or
adjoining to that I now live on, beginning upon Youngs old line east side of
creek, running down the branch where Murpheys School house stood, crossing the
creek near the mouth of Said branch and there a straight course to the Upper
Kelleys o1d field, with all below adjoining Morgans Land, also negro fellow
Ned; to my daughter Salley Smith, negro wench Jude and child called Nancy with
negro girl Patt, and a good bed and furniture; (Catherine?)---. ith
his young sorrel and mare & saddle, with house hold furniture proportionate to
what her married sister has already received; Next to my well beloved wife
Molly Smith ...a11 the remainder of my land whereon I now live to be enjoyed as
her natural rite during her life or widowhood, also negro wenches Hannah & Rena
and Kate, to Dividend as she pleaseth, and also my three negroes London, Pompey
& Mark, for the purpose of working the plantation Whilst she liveth in
widowhood, and for the purpose of Raising and Educating my two youngest
children and then to be disposed among my children as She pleaseth. To my son
Moses Smith, the remainder of the land where I now live at his mothers Death or
or Marriage Also my negro boys named Jacob and Charles. To my daughter Kattey
Smith I give and bequeath my five little negroes, Dave, Arnold, Sam, Daun and
Cloi to be given to her if they all should live by my executors when she is
Maried or of full age. My son Moses to have his two Negroes if they should Tive
when he is of full age---Remainder to be sold, debts to be collected and wife
Molly to Dividend it among my children as she sees fit, and also the marketable
produce ready made to be Equally Divided among my children. My Waggon and house
to be kept upon the farm for the benefit of my widow and two youngest children,
and the remainder of my estate consisting of Goods and Chattels My Will is that
my Executors----divided in the most equitable manner- my wife Molley
Smith and my son Joseph Smith Exec 31st May 1806, Abraham Smith (X) his
mark. Wit: Nicholas Corry, Henry Good, Spencer Morgan. (Will Book A, p. 202-4
recorded 31 May 1806. Box Package.)* Brent Holcomb, Union County SC Will
Abstracts p. 70-71.*

14 June 1806, Recorded 21 July 1806. John Jeffries, Spencer Morgan,
Abraham Guiton, Alex’r Martin, Drury Herrinton appointed appraiser for estate
of Abraham Smith. Appraisal filed 22 July 1806; personal property amounting to
$7,061.69 including a ninety and a forty-Five gallon still, many cows and hogs,
3 lambs 13 horses (one of them blind), 18 slaves, 158 gallons of whiskey.

30 July Inventory of debts due Abraham Smith total $2,917.80.

4 Aug. 1806. Order of sale to Mary Smith and Joseph Smith, exrs.

25 Sept. 1806. Sale Bill estate of Abraham Smith. Proceeds $1475.60 1/2.%

It is uncertain where he or his father are buried. According to the
Hamricks who occupy the ol1d house at Smith’s Ford there are several unmarked
graves on that property. None of these Smith’s have been found in the local
cemetaries, including the John Smith Cemetary. Abraham was Tiving on Gilkey's
Creek in Union County when he died, so may now be buried in Cherokee County in
an o1d_church or family graveyard.

The following reference probably belongs to another Abraham Smith, as he
would have been too young to buy land at the time. 1 June 1759 150 acres of
Tand was platted in Craven Co., SC for Abraham Smith (SC Colonial Surveyor
General Plats, v. 7 p. 105%). S.C. Colonial plats v. 7 Pp. 228 and 457* show
that Susamah Fickert and Cather ine Suydrin ouned lands Bounded by Abrahan
Smith in 1760.
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He married Mary Guyton "Molly">’”, daughter of Joseph Guyton <Giton,
Gyton, Gaiton> and Hannah Whitaker, circa 1774 (2), in Camden Dist., York Co.,
SC. Born, circa 1755, in Craven (Union), Co., SC. Died, 1831 (?), in Pickens
Co., AL. Census: 1830, in Pickens Co., AL. Census: 1810, in Union Co., SC.
Census: 1820, in Union Co., SC.

Widowed in 1806, her husband bequeathed her the "remainder of the land
where I now Tive and slaves Hanna, Rena, Kate, London, Pompey and Mark."

She moved to Pickens County, Al., during the late 1820s, probably living
with or near her daughter Hannah and her husband, Dr. Samuel Alexander.

The 1810 census of Union County, SC, page 232, shows the widowed Mary age
454, with 1 male 0-10, 1 male 16-26, i male 26-45, 1 female 10-16, 1 female age
16-26. Abraham’s brothers John and David live nearby. In 1820, also in Union
County, p. 146, there are two males at home, age 16-25 and 26-45, Mary, over
45, and 7 slaves. Abraham’s brother William lives nearby.

In 1818 Deed Book Q/65-68 Union County, SC, John, George and Samuel Smith
s01d a tract of Tand 306 ac on Hages Creek Union Co. to Mary Smith for $1,000.
On 26 Aug 1818 Samuel Smith, George Smith and Mary Smith sold to John Smith 340
ac. Union Co. waters of the Broad River on Fannings Creek for $1,000 (Union
Co., SC DB Q 67-68*).

26 Apr. 1822 Mary Smith and John Smith, planters, sold 42 ac to John
Jeffries for $210, being an 1/8 part of 336 acres on Gilkey’s Creek deeded to
Abrm. Smith by Nathaniel Jeffries (Union Co., SC DB R-128-129%). 26 Apr. 1822
Mary Smith and John Humphries sold 84 acres to John Jeffries Sr, being an
undivided 1/4 of 336 acres located on Gilkey’s Creek. (Ibid DB R-129-130%) 2
May 1822 Mary Smith late wife of Abraham Smith, dec’d, and Daniel Smith to John
Jeffries, Sr. for $210. 42 ac. being an undivided 1/8 part of 336 ac located
both sides of Gilkey's Cr. (Ibid DB R-128-129%). 5 Nov. 1824 Mary Smith to Amos
Davis for $350 42 acres being an undivided 1/8 of Tands willed by Abraham Smith
to me during my life, then to Moses Smith, my son, who died intestate without
heirs. Both sides Gilkey’s Creek (Ibid DB S/498-499%). 5 Nov. 1824 Mary Smith
to Amos Davis 84 ac for $350 1/4 part of 366 ac willed by Abrm. Smith dec’d to
me during life and at death to my son Moses who d. intestate w/o heirs. Both
sides of Gilkey’s Creek (Ibid $-500-501*)

20 Sept 1827 Samuel J. Hoey and wife Clarissa sold to John Jeffires Sr.
126 ac for $630, being an undivided 3/8 interest of 336 ac. purchased from the
individual interests of Mrs. Sarah Davis, Dr. Samuel D. Alexander and wife, and
Dr. William Richards and wife by Amos Davis and conveyed to me.(Ibid DB
5/499-500%).

In the 1830 census of Pickens Co., Al., p. 114, she is probably the
female age 70-80 Tiving with Dr. William Richards, her son-in-law.

16 Sept. 1830. Mary Smith of Pickens County, AL, widow and relict of
Abraham Smith, appoints Joseph Guyton to be attorney in fact to sell land on
Gilkey’s Creek, Union County, SC containing 336 acres, land willed to her by
her deceased husband Abraham Smith. Mary Smith. Wit. William K. Brown and
Alex'r Martin (Union Co., SC DB T-486-487%).

Abstract of York County SC Probate case 2 file 59: Sarah Davis suit for
partition of two tracts of land formerly belonging to Abraham Smith, dec’d, of
Union District now in the estate of Mary Smith, dec’d, of Pickens County, Al.,
who died in 1831 and whose will was recorded in Book W, P. 359 York Co. SC, 1
Aug 1831, which shows her heirs to be as follows:

Sarah Davis of York Co. SC; John Smith; Daniel Smith; Abraham Smith; Mary
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Humphres, wife of John Humphries of Mississippi; Hannah, wife of Samuel Davies
Alexander; and Abraham Smith, Jr. as guardian for the children of Henry Smith,
dec’d: Rachel Smith Morgan; George; Henry; Nathaniel: Sarah; Janey (or Jamey)
Eleanor, Synthia ( or Seymantha).

The Sheriff of York County sold for Mary Smith 239 acres on Bullock’s
Creek York County to John Hemphi1l, Deed Book L, p. 456 in 1832.

Hannah and Samuel Alexander sent power of attorney executed 9/3/1833
which was notarized by their son, J. M. Alexander. Copies of estate papers are
in authors’s files.

FOR THE CONTINUATION OF THIS LINE SEE THE ABRAHAM SMITH FAMILY Children:

13 i. Hannah* Sajth.
4i. John Smith>>. Born, 1776, in York Co., SC. Died, before 1831
(2). He married Ann Unknown surname.

From his father, Abraham, he inherited the 200 acres
adjoining Clanton where he then Tived. Also mentioned in his
mother’s will of 1831.

In 1797 he purchased land from John Peter Saxton (DB
E/276 Union Co., SC). In 1797 bought land from William Smith
(DB F/73).

In 1806 Nathan Langstry sold a tract of land to John and
Ann Smith, as did John McClure and F. Smith (DB 1/15-6 Union
County). Also in 1806 they sold land to Benjamin Smith (DB
1/568) In 1811 he bouht Tand from Wm. Moorehead (DB L/54) and
in 1813 2 tracts from E1ijah Dawkins and one from John Rusk (DB
L/320, M/142, 284 Union Co.). In 1815 he bought land from
Nathaniel Jeffries, Elijah Dawkins and John Boyd in DB N/43,
414, 429. In 1819 he sold Tand to William Smith (DB P/247). In
1820 he bought land from Samuel Smith (DB Q/67 Union C0.) and
he and George and Samuel sold land to his mother Mary, and he,
Samuel and Mary sold land to George Smith, probably trading on
the settlement of an estate. (DB 065,66,67.) In 1820 he also
s01d Tand to John Jeffries, Wn. Dillard, and Betsy Smith (DB Q
93, 96, 120 Union Co.). 26 Apr 1822 Mary Smith and John Smith
planters sold In undivided 1/8 interest in the homeplace to
John Jeffries Sr_for $210 (Union Co., SC DB R/128%).

He bought land in 1822 from Joseph Smith (DB R/354), in
1824 from Nathaniel Rochester (DB S/315) and in 1831 from
Presley Willians (DB T/405 Union Co.).

iii. Henry Smith®>. Born, 1778, in Craven (York), Co., SC. Died,
before 1831 (22).

In his father’s will probated in 1806 he was bequeathed
the Tand in York County, SC, where he then lived, including his
Grandfather’s o1d place, as well as the slave Harry.

iv. Aaron Smith*°. Born, 1780 (2), in York Co., SC. Died, before
1806 (2), in_York Co., SC.

v. Joseph Swith®'. Born, 1781 (2), in York Co., SC. Died, before
1831 (22). He married Ann C. Bird.

In his father’s will he was granted land on Thickety
Creek and the negro Tom. Not mentioned in his mother’s will of
1831.

In 1806 Joseph Smith purchased land from Aaron Odum,
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David Kenworthy, John Springer in Union County, SC. (DB
1/101,128,187) and in 1815 from John Jeffries and John Putman
(DB N/128. 168 Union Co., SC). In 1817 Joseph Smith et al to
John Putman (DB 0/233, in 1819 to Wm. Mitchell (DB P/308), in
1820 to John Jeffries (DB Q/50) and in 1822 to John Smith (DB
R/354 Union Co., SC).

The following land tranactions were recorded in York
County SC: 1813/7 bought from William Smith 180 acres Broad
River. (DB H/221). In 1814/7 he bought 200 acres on Fishing
Creek from John Smith and 100 Acres on Howards Creek from
Thomas Kennedy (DB H221). In 1830 Joseph Smith and William F.
Smith sold 317 acres Catawba River to Walter Izad (DB L/362).
In 1832/3 he and Daniel bought a tract on the Broad River from
John Smith (DB K/10, York Co., SC.

Mary Smith *Po11y"*%. Born, 1783, in York Co., SC. Died, after
1831 (2?). She married John Humphries**, before 1806 (2), in
York or Union Co, SC.

She was bequeathed the 100 acres where she then 1lived and
the negro wench Rachel in her father’s will. 26 Apr. 1822 her
husband John Humphries sold her 1/8 interest in her father’s
home place with Mary Smith for $210 (Union Co., SC DB R/
129-130%). She was mentioned in her mother’s will in 1831.
Abraham Smith Jr**. Born, 1785 (?), in York Co., SC. Died,
before 1806 (?), in York Co., SC.

Not mentioned in his father’s will recorded in Will Book
W, p. 349, York Co. Historical Society, York, SC. See probate
case 2 File 59, York Co., SC.

The following purchases by Abraham Smith are assumed to
be those of Abraham Jr., since they take place after his
father’s death:

In 1815 he purchased 100 acres Guyon Moores creek, York
Co., from James Neeland (DB H p. 200). In 1824 he purchased 143
acres Guyon Moores Creek , York Co., from Jeremiah Smith ( DB K
p. 219).

An Abraham 6. Smith, who may be someone else, purchased
250 acres Guyon Moores creek, York Co., from Ebenezer N. Scott
in 1825 (DB K/311), and sold 40 acres of same to Thomas
Whiteside in 1830, recorded 1831 (DB L p. 399).

Daniel Smith.
Sarah Smith "Salley"**. Born, 1790, in York Co., SC. Died, 1840
(), in York Co., SC. She married Unknown Davis'®.

In 1806 she inherited the negro wench Jude, child Nancy,
and gir] Patt from her father. Prior to 1827 she sold her 1/8
interest in her father’s homeplace to Amos Davis (Union Co., SC
DB $/499-500¢). In 1831, as Sarah Davis, she sued for partition
or sale and division of land in York Co., SC, owned by the
estate of her mother who had died in Pickens County, Al. "Smith
Ancestors”, p. 1 states she married a Robert Foster (1785
Va-1845 96 Dist. SC) son of Francis Foster (1745 VA-1845 VA)
and his wife Polly Foster, a first cousin. Salley may have been
married twice as the lawsuit shows her as a Davis.

Moses Smith®”. Born, 1794, in York Co., SC. Died, before 1822,
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in Union Co., SC.

Not mentioned in wills of his parents, however in DB R/26
in 1822 there was a transfer of land to Moses Smith, Legatee by
Alexander Martin.

In 1814, recorded 1816, Moses Smith bought 298 acres on
Buffalo Creek, York Co., SC from Charles Boyd et al (DB H/133).
Deeds issued by his mothe in Union County in 1822 refer to him
as deceased, intestate without heirs (Union SC DB 5/498-500 and
R/128-130%)

15 xi. Catherine Smith.

8. John® Smith (Henry Sr., 4)*°. Born, Feb 1747/8, in Botentort Co., VA.
Died, 31 Dec 1834, in Smith’s Ford, York Co., SC. Christened, 27 Apr 1749, in
Augusta, VA., 01d Stone, Presb. Church.

Since Abraham Smith, his brother, had a son John born in 1776, deeds
after 1800 may belong to either. ATl are listed here.

John, son of Henry Smith, was baptised at the 01d Stone Church in Augusta
Co., VA on'2 Apr 1749 (Rev. John Craig "01d Stone Church”, p. 21 per "Smith
Cousins 4%, p. 9).

1 Jan. 1773. (This is probably not "our" John Smith) James O1liver to
John Smith, both of Anson County, for 50f proc. 200 acres on southwest side of
Peedee, begin at James Vanderford’s line on south side of small branch of
Savannah Creek, including the plantation whereon Samuel Phillips now dwells,
Tying between the head branches of Savannah Creek and Cedar Creek, part of 400
acres granted to John Smith 16 Dec. 1769 and since conveyed to Timoth Montseer
by his death to his brother, Thos. Montseer, and from him to James Olliver.
Mary Oliver also relinquishes rights. Wit: Mark Allen, Wm. Bond. Prov. April
Court 1774 by Mark Allen. DB K p, 47. ("Anson Co. NC Abstracts of Early
Records”, May Wilson McBee, GPC, Baltimore, 1978. p. 53,88).

This same source, on p. 59 fn states that John Smith, Little River
(Thicketty Creek) had the following sons: Jasper, Charles, William, Joseph and
probably James. This may or may not be the son of Henry Smith Sr, since part of
Anson later became York Co. SC.

According to Annie Laurie Hamrick who lives on Henry Smith, Sr.’s old
home place, John Tived on the next property East of Henry, and the old homesite
with a corn crib still standing, and a family cemetary located at the top of a
steep road cut, located about a mile back toward Hickory Grove from the Smith’s
Ford driveway on the north side of the road. The cemetary is no longer
maintained by the family since someone died each time they cleaned it up, hence
Smith’s will no longer die. There are a number of marked graves.

Received payment for service in Col. Brandon’s Co. during the
Revolutionary War. ("Union County” p. 21).

In 1777 (recorded 1786) John Smith purchased 56 acres on the Broad River,
York Co., SC from John Moore. (DB A/133).

Dec. Court 1785. John Smith, James Bogan, and William Smith were under
bond to testify against James and Martha Benson. (“Union Co. Court” p. 12) and
John, Archibald and William Smith, along with Moses Guyton, were named as petit
Jurors. (Union Co. Court”, p. 13). In June 1788, John Smith and others were
excused for non-attendance at the petit jury with costs.

13 July 1786. Samuel Montgomery vs. Ab‘m Smith and John Smith. Case. The
P1'tf called failed to appear. Ord’d that he be nonsuited. York Co. Court, MB
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A, p. 42 ("York Co. Court Records® p. 12).

On the second Monday in October 1786. York Co. Court Records MB A, p.48.
Deed of sale from Jacob & Mary Gardner to Wm Smith for 100 acres, dated 19 June
ms proven by John Smith and Henry Smith Junr, evidences thereto. (Ibid, p.

10 October 1786 John and Abraham Smith served as petit jurors. York
County Court MB A, p. 50, 53. (Ibid, p. 14, 16).

12 Oct. 1786. Deed of release of 56 Acres from John Moore to John Smith
dated 25 July 1777, formerly proven by Danie] Smith before Abraham Smith Esqr,
ordered to be recorded. York Co. MB A, p.58 (Ibid, p. 17).

9 Jan. 1787. Deed of Sale from John Smith to Samuel Swan Junr for 250
acres dated 9 Jan 1776, formerly proven by Thomas Wallace before San’l Swan
Esqr, ordered to be recorded. York County Court MB A, p. 65 (Ibid, p. 19).

24 Sept. 1787. A deed of gift from William Smith to John Smith
acknowledged in_open court and ordered recorded. ("Union Co. SC Court® p. 116).

26 Dec. 1787. Abraham and John Smith proved a deed from John Steen Sr. to
Gedion Smith. ("Union Co., SC Court” p. 138).

16 Oct. 1789. William Fergus, James Meck and John Smith appointed
Commissioners to Jay out a road from York Court House to Smith’s Ford on Broad
River, & that said commissioners appoint overseers to open out and keep said
road in good repair. York Co. Court, M8 A, p. 243 (Ibid, p. 72).

Also in 1789, he bought 151 acres in York County from Henry Smith, his
father (DB C/400).

14 April 1790. Ordered that the price of an Estray Mare proven to be the
property of John Smith be paid to James Smith upon his producing an order from
said John Smith. York Co. Court, MB A, p. 262 (Ibid, p. 79).

The 1790 Census of York Co., Camden District, SC, page 30, shows John
Smith with 1 male over 16, 3 males 0-15 and 4 females.

11 Apri1 1791. John Smith and Peter Eakin appointed appraisers of the
remainder of the Estate of Rueben Denton decd, to take the oath prescribed
before Abraham Smith, Esquire, to act in conjunction with Peter Quinn or David
Allen formerly appointed. York Co. Court, MB A, p. 302 (Ibid, p.93).

C/m)ln 1791 he also bought 30 acres York County from Joshua Denton (DB

6 Feb. 1792. Ordered that the Will of Henry Smith Senr decd be set aside
and that Administration of said Estate be granted to Abraham Smith Esqr and
John Smith who came and took the Oath required by Law. York Co. Court, MB A, p.
330 (Ibid, p. 103). In the will of his father he was granted 50 acres already
in his posession. He had been named an Executor in the will with William and
his mother .

12 Feb. 1793. Colo. Samue] Watson & John Smith, executors of the Will of
James Ferguson dec’d, came and took the oath required by law. York Co. Court,
M8 B, p. 26 (Ibid, p. 119).

In 1798 he purchased 155 acres on Fishing Creek from Benjamin Cook (DB
£/193 York Co., SC). Tn 1803 he bought 127 1/2 ac. Catawba River, York County
from Olsey Rogers (DB F/183) and 230 A. Crowders Creek from Sam’i Neeley (DB’
6/533), in 1804 200 acres, 10 acres and 23 acres from Wm. Ferguson (DB H/321)
and in 1807 a Tot in Yorkville from Jonathan Beatty (DB G/5). In 1808 he bought
Tand on Bullock’s Creek, York Co., from John Smith (DB H/320), In 1819 bought
278 acres Beaver Dam Creekfrom R. Hill et al (DB H/492) and 1821 377 acres on
Fishing Creek from James Garrison by the Sheriff (DB 1/281 York Co., SC).

His land sales in York County SC are as follows: 1776/87 to Samuel Swan
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Jr. 250 ac. Broad River (DB A/49); 100 Ac. Catawba River to Wm Hill (DB A/307);
in 1780 from Alexander Glass 245 ac. Allisons Creek (DB B/345) and 126 ac.
Catawba River (DB b/347). In 1803 sold to Daniel Smith 111 1/2 ac Broad River
(DB F/450), 1804/5 Lot in Yorksville to Jonathan Beatty (F/385); 1806 140ac.
Moores Creek to John Peters Sr. (DB G\5) and a tract Broad River to Daniel
Smith (6/6). In 1808 he gave a power of Attorney to John Clark (DB G/84) and
sold 200, 10, and 23 acres on Bullocks Creek to Hugh Smith and also another
tract (DB H/319,320). In 1814 sold 200 acres Fishing Creek to Joseph Smith (DB
6/555), in 1815/6 250 ac. Guyon Moores Creck to James Scott. (DB H/118). In
1818 230 ac. Beaver Dam Creek to Edward Avery (H/455); in 1822 48 ac. Beaver
Dam Creek to Bethe] Academy (1/394), in 1828/1839 he sold 373 acres to Sarah
Smith (M/605) and in 1834/5 134 Acres Bewaver Dam Creek to John Moore (DB M/62
York County, SC).

The od Smith burying ground Tocated on a high bank on Hwy. 211 about 3
miles west of Hickory 6rove was shown to the author by the Hamricks in 1994.
His marker reads: "John Smith, Born in Bottentourt County, Va. February
1748, Died 31 Decemnber 1834 in his 87th year."

He married Sarah Guyton "Sally"*®, daughter of Joseph Guyton <Giton,
Gyton, Gaiton> and Hannah Whitaker. Born, 29 Oct 1763, in Union (Cherokee],
Co., SC. Died, 17 Apr 1800, in York Co., SC. Burial: 1800, in Smith Cem., York
Co., SC.

Her marker in the o1d John Smith cemetary reads " Sarah Smith, Born 29
October 1763, Died 17 April 1800 in her 37th year". She was another of the
Guyton girls who married 3 of Henry Smith’s sons. Children:

i. Children® Unknown.

9. Henry® Smith Jr. (Henry Sr., 4)°°~>. Born, 18 Aug 1759, in Rockingham
Co., VA, Died, 8 Jan 1840, in Franklin Co., GA. Military Sv in Rev. War.
Occupation: Planter/Soldier.

His Revolutionary War Pension Application W2183 and Bounty Land Warrant
33764-160-55, dated 18 January 1833 when he was aged seventy-three and resided
at Franklin County, GA., indicates that he was drafted in the York District of
SC., to serve under Capt. Robt. McAfee and Colone] Thomas Neal, and was marched
to Oconee River in Ga. thence to Ogeehee near Shelly’s (?) Fort where they
stayed about a month, then was marched home and discharged as a Private of
Horse, furnishing his own horse, serving three months, this being in the autumn
of 1776. In the Spring of 1777 he volunteered at York under Capt. McCullough
and Major Ross and marched to Savannah River opposite Augusta, GA. and there
Joined General Williams--also a regiment of Regulars, but doesn’t remember the
names of any officers except Lieut. Thomas Prince who was killed at Stono. Was
marched from there to Briar creek in Georgia where he joined Gen’1 Ash, was at
the Battle of Briar Creek, but was out on a scouting party as a trooper during
the fight and the British having encamped in our camp ground, his detachment
was near being taken on their return as they thought it their own camp, and all
escaped except one, who was taken prisoner. He and the rest retreated and
Jjoined General Williamson opposite Augusta. From thence he was marched into
Georgia under Maj. Ross after some Indians who had taken and.burned a fort. Had
a skirmish with the Indians near Rocky Comfort Creek and Maj. Ross was wounded,
and died after we returned to Headquarters under Gen’1 Williamson. He was then
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discharged after serving two months as a Private of Horse furnishing his own
horse. His brother was a First Lieutenant of a company under Capt. Barnet from
York and had marched to Charleston about a week after deponent started on
horseback to join them as a volunteer and joined them about two days after the
Battle at Stono and was marched to Charleston and his brother who was wounded
at Stono was placed in the 01d Barrack Hospital and deponent was appointed to
tend to him and did so from June until August when he died. He served in this
term two months, and after the death of his brother returned home. He does not
remember the year. He again volunteered at York under Capt. Barnett, Col.
Watson, and General Sumpter in the autumn of 1780 and marched and joined Col.
Hanpton and the Regulars at Monk’s Corner near Charleston--from there after the
British and the Tories near Cooper River and returned to camp...There to Granby
in SC where the Tories were in a Fort which surrendered, from thence he marched
to Tiger River where there was a battle with the Tories at Blackstocks, where
General Sumpter was wounded and carried to deponents Father’s where deponent
was_discharged by Gen’1 Sumpter, having served three months as a private
horseman furnishing his own horse. Again volunteering at York under Gen’1
Morgan to pilot him through the county. Took them to Pacolet and was sent out
from there as a spy after Bill Cunningham and the Tories at Bush River, took
two prisoners and returned to camp where Col. Washington and his Light Horse
joined Morgan and deponent was sent to pilot Col. Washingtons troops to
Cunningham’s camp on Bush River where they were defeated by Col. Washington who
took a number of prisoners and returned to camp. He was sent as a guard and
pilot of the prisoners to Roan CH North Carolina and returned to camp where he
-arrived the day after Tarlton’s defeat when he was sent under Capt. Barnet to
aid in picking up the British stragglers and was kept near Broad River scouting
upon the watch for Cromeell’s army and followed his trail into North Carolina
and was 772 and was kept up under Capt. Barnet after the Tories till nearly the
tine Cornwall surrendered in Oct. 1781. Served nine months this term as Private
Horseman furnishing his own horse. A part of the time under Col. John Moffett
after Cornwallis went to NC. Served altogether one year and seven months. He
further stated his place and date of birth and that he has lived in Franklin
County Georgia for 37 years.

Ident No. 238 Lib. T Issued to Henry Smith 29th June 1785 for thirty nine
pounds , 175/1d/1/2 stlg. for 558 days Militia Duty in 1778 and 1782 as per
account audited. Ann. Int. L2.15.9

John Smith and Henry Smith Junr proved a deed of sale between Jacob and
Mary Gardner to William Smith for 100 acres dated 19 June 1779, Minute Book A,
p. 47, October Court, 1786, York County, SC. (*Minutes of York County Court
1786-1797", p. 14.)

28 Mar. 1786 An Indenture and deed of conveyance between Ralph Rogers of
the one part and Henry Smith of the other part, for two hundred acres of land
ordered to be rocorded. ("Union Co.SC Court” p. 31)

25 Sept. 1786. Henry Smith proved an indenture and deed of conveyance
between Moses Qualls and James Terrill. (*Union Co. Court, SC" p. 65).

26 Dec. 1787. A Deed of conveyance from William Rodger of the one part
and Henry Smith of the other part for one hundred acres of land proved by oath
of William Bostick...and ordered to be recorded. (*Union Co. SC Court* p. 139).

22 Dec. 1788. A Lawsuit between Jonathan Gilkie assa. Plantiff vs. John
Steen and Henry Smith Defendants. Debt. carried over to next term by consent.
(“Union Co. SC Court” p. 186).

Tn York County Court for July 1789, Minute Book A, p.*2

, Henry Smith
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The 1790 Census of York Co., Camden District, s, P. 30, shows Henry
Smith (Jr.) with 1 male over 38, 2 males 0-15 and § fema s

28 Dec. 1791 Elizabeth Hogan to Henry Smith Jr. 178 ac for L.20 land in
Union Co., Thicketty Creek (0B 0/48-9 Union Co., SC*).

In 1792 in the will of his father he received 100 acres of Tand already
in his posession and Negrog sun together with half of the Fishery in John’s
division.

100 ac., remainder of 150 ac. granted Henry Smith Sr, in 1765 bd. E. by Smith’s
old place, E. by John Smith and W. by Wm. Smith, sold to Henry smith (Jr.) for

Sereb- 1795 Henry Smith of Vork to. to James Lockhart of Union co. 150
Unioneers of Gilkie’s Creek Union Go. gor L. 150 Dower Sa1ly smith (05 pygq

In 1
N/314) and in'1829 From Danie] Pasrer. oo T/417) In 1828 he s01d Tand to gy
Jeffries (D T-14 Union Co., S}

He married, first, sarah Unknown Surname®?, before 1800,

He married, second, Margaret Henning®*, 10 Feb 1819, i, Franklin Co., ga,
Died, 18 Dec 1865, in Franklin Co. GA. Children:

i. Children* Unknown,

10, Willian® Swith (Henry sr_, )5 Born, circa 1761 (2), in York co., sc.
Died in sC.

In 1775 he joined others n Petitioning the Earl of Dartmouth to
{ncegnize the grants made by North'Cone o Sovering land now determined to pe
in South CaroTina. (*History of (o County SC* p."15-17)
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The following land transactions in Union County, SC: In 1776 William
Lowhels so1d Jand to William Smith and Wife. (DB A/62 Union Co., SC). In 1782
William bought land from John Lofton (DB A/62), in 1787 from Lsaac Cook (DB
B/239), In 1794 from John Reid (DB D/318), in 1799 DB F/66 from Joseph Mangles,
DB 6/8. 379, 381 in 1800 from Isaac Darneils, Wm. Hughes, and Hugh Bankhead,
and DB 1/209, 311, 348, and 403 in 1803 from Hugh Bankhead, Seth Wilson, Thomas
Lamb, and Daniel Barnett. In 1806 he bought land from Jonathan C?? and Daniel
Floyd and James Duncan in 1806 (DB I/2, 6, 13), and in 1809 from Daniel Tucker
(DB K/257), in 1813 from Wm. Sharp (DB'M/i78), in 1817 from James Moorman and
Olivia Hawkins et al (DB 0/196, 322), in 1813 from John Smith (DB P/247), in
1824 from Allen M. Johnson and John Bates (DB S/113, 367) and in 1828 from
George Perry (DB 7/233) all in Union County, S. C. There was also a purchase
oin 1803 from John Stokes to William and Niles Smith. (DB G/169)

William s01d land in Union County as follows: DB A/467 to John Smith
1785, DB A/468 1785 to Joseph Smith, On 7th day 9th month 1789 Wm. Smith, whose
mark was an elaborate "W' s01d 15 ac. for L.2 to Isaac Cook, parcel between
Swift Run and Atterson’s Cr bd by Isaac Cook and Wm. Smith. (Union Co., Sc DB
b/239*). DB B/416 in 1791 to Oliver Smith, DB D/434 and 435 To John Smith and
Ann Smith in 1794, and DB F/73 in 1799 to John Smith, and in 1822, two sales to
Richard Thompson (DB R/397-8), all in Union County.

There are just as many land transactions recorded in York County. I will
mention only the first few: He purchased in 1779/1786 100 ac. Broad River from
Jacob Gardner et al, and another 100 acres from Jacob Gardner in 1787 (DB A/101
» 289). He purchased 300 acres on the Broad River in 1795 from Wm. Given (DB
D/27 York Co., SC).

Dec. Court 1785. John Smith and William Smith put up bond for John Smith
to appear to testify against James and Martha Benson. ("Union Co. SC Court” p.
12-3).

21 Mar. 1786. An Indenture and Deed of Conveyance between William
Smith...and John Foster... for 200 acres of land ordered recorded. ("Union Co.
SC Court” p. 30).

25 Sept 1786. An Indenture and deed of conveyance between William Smith
and Martha Smith of the one part and William Lockard of the other part for One
hundred and Fifty acres of land proved by oaths of James Terrell and Abner
Robinson witnesses thereunto and ordered recorded. (*Union Co. SC Court” P

65).

October Court 1786. Deed of sale from Jacob and Mary Gardner to Wm Smith
for 100 acres, dated 19 June 1779, proven by John Smith and Henry Smith Junr,
Evidences thereto. York Co. Court, MB A, p. 48 ("York Co. Court Records" p.

14).

26 Mar. 1787. Two William Smith’s were ordered to serve on the petit
Jury. ( "Union Co. SC Court™ p. 100). Also served 26 Dec. 1787. (Ibid, p. 141.)

11 Apri1 1787. James Hannah Senr vs. Rachel Smith and William Smith.
Trover. Petit Jury including Willian Love and Abraham Smith. Verdict for
defendants. York Co. Court MB A, p. 82 (Ibid, p. 25).

13 April 1787. James Hannah, Senr vs. Rachel Smith and William Smith
Ex’rs. On motion for a new trial Ordered to lie over until next court and that
the reasons be filed and then argued. York Co. Court MB A, p. 89. (Ibid, p.
27).

24 Sept. 1787. Deed of Gift from William Smith to John Smith and another
to Joseph Smith acknowledged in court and ordered to be recorded. (*Union Co.
SC Court” p. 116)





